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CHAIRMAN’S

STATEMENT
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I present herewith the annual
report of New Universe
Environmental Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2024.
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FANEREHRHTFRREBER
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Dear Shareholders,

As we look back on 2024, it's evident that the hazardous waste
disposal sector in China, especially in Jiangsu Province, still faced a
challenge which marked by overcapacity of the market, which led to
a drop in handling prices. Naturally, these market conditions had a
continuing impact on the Group’s financial performance.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s revenue from
continuing operations decreased by 13.9% to HK$349,416,000 as
compared to the previous year, and the Group recorded a post-tax
loss of HK$31,605,000 versus a net loss of HK$35,767,000 in previous
year.

Adjusted EBITDA in 2024 decreased by 11.7% to HK$72,783,000
(2023: HK$82,450,000).
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BEMRER :

OE—_ZFT_WE B3R PENERE
MERETE LHEEREIHEAXTERNE
HHIZEREBNMKE  SEHTREBR
HTFE - BAMA  BEMBRRBEZE
ERENTHRR -

BE_Z_NWE+_A=+—HILEE &
EEREFELCEEBNREHEFMALET
#£13.9%%349,416,00058 7T * 7N 52 B A F
$% 15 75 1% B51831,605,00058 7T © M = F 8%
518 835,767,000/ 7T °

TR CNMEEMNARENERITE REHA
R EEBITDA) T [£11.7% 272,783,000/ JT
(ZZ= = =4 : 82,450,000 /&7T) °



For the year ended 31 December 2024, the loss attributable to owners
of the Company was HK$26,335,000 (2023: loss of HK$28,582,000)
arisen from continuing operations.

Equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31 December
2024 was HK$869,053,000 (2023: HK$908,251,000). Total
bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2024 was
HK$44,752,000 (2023: HK$44,000,000). Cash and cash equivalents
of the Group as at 31 December 2024 was HK$220,823,000 (2023:
HK$186,365,000).

Final Dividend
On 21 March 2025, the board (the “Board”) of directors (the

“Directors”) recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.0016 per share out of the retained profits of the Company as
at 31 December 2024 for the year then ended to express gratitude
for the continued supports of the shareholders, which is subject to
the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the “AGM"). Upon shareholders’ approval at the AGM,
the final dividend is expected to be payable on 31 July 2025 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on 6
June 2025.

Business Prospects
Looking ahead, it is imperative that we adapt our business strategies

in the face of the continuing challenges we encountered in 2024.
While we had anticipated a stable business environment and a
resurgence in market demand, the actual situation proved to be far
more complex. In response, we took decisive action by temporarily
halting operations in certain loss-making units. These strategic moves
will empower us to re-assess our capabilities comprehensively and
allocate resources with greater precision and efficiency.

In 2025, we are set to proactively explore opportunities for business
restructuring, with the firm aim of enhancing our operational
efficiency and bolstering our financial performance. Our commitment
to achieving stable performance targets, upholding exemplary
corporate governance, and ensuring strict environmental governance
remains unshaken. We are acutely aware that in the ever-evolving
market landscape, a more agile and responsive approach is essential
for us to thrive. Despite the uncertainties introduced by a multitude of
economic factors, we remain steadfast in our belief in the long-term
viability and sustainability of our environmental-related business
development.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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BE-_Z-_NWEF+-_A=+—HBIEFE &
ARBEBAEBLREFELEERTES
E518 526,335,000 L (Z T =F : 5B
28,582,000/ 7T) °

RZE-_WNE+_—_A=+—8 AQ5%EEH
A JE (b % 7S #E 2% £869,053,00008 L (==&
— =4 :908,251,0008 L) - R T U4
+TZA=+—H8 AEEMRITEEATEA
44,752,000 7T (= Z = = 4 : 44,000,000
BIL) RZE-_WNMF+_A=+—H" =&
SENRE EERIRSIEE &220,823,000
BT (T =% :186,365,000/87T) °
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f%0.001678 70 2 R EAAR B DAL ¥ A% SR APS &Y
BB IER R - MEEFRE N EERE
BFRe((RERBFRE]) EHEEZFAIE
o FREAREBEF RS E#E% - FEE
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FRANARZYBRELM 2 BE SRR
=
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B RMABAFAERXRBEE BERMERE
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“ECRF RMAKERRSEREAOK
B BERNRAEBER RS ERTEE
BoBMEERAREXERR REFEHAQ
AlER ARERBEBREGENEAERE
% ZMBF LT HD > ETENRENH
BgEE  EHEMEL AR R
EPERNARAE BERZLBERRS
KT AREEMN - BRFAKARERMARER
MRAXBEERMAITHEMATSEEER -

—E_NEFH HFEREEBR LA

5



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESE R

Acknowledgment
I would like to extend my most sincere and heartfelt gratitude to all

our esteemed customers, reliable suppliers, valued business partners,
supportive bankers, and loyal shareholders. Your unwavering support
throughout the challenging year of 2024 has been the bedrock of our
resilience and progress, and it will continue to be indispensable on our
future journey.

I am also deeply appreciative of our dedicated employees, outstanding
colleagues, and the committed management team. Your hard work,
unwavering perseverance, and unyielding spirit, even in the face of
less-than-satisfactory results, have not only been noticed but have also
been the driving force behind our continued efforts.

As we step into a new year, we have a clear understanding of
the areas that demand improvement, and we are wholeheartedly
committed to making strenuous efforts to achieve remarkable results.
I am resolute in my determination to lead the Group towards a
prosperous, profitable, and sustainable future. Let us join hands,
confront all challenges with courage, draw valuable lessons from our
past experiences, and emerge stronger and more competitive than
ever before.

0L/

N

XI Yu
ZE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

FIERITEARE

Hong Kong, 21 March 2025
BB —E_AF=A=-+—H
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B B #Z

o Revenue from continuing operations down 13.9% to HK$349,416,000.
REFHESEEBL 2 WE T 813.9% £349,416,000% 7T

o Loss attributable to owners of the Company was HK$26,335,000 in
2024 versus loss of HK$33,118,000 in 2023.
HE—ZE - =F51833,118,0008 1 RZS_-_NMEAQTEEAEEE
526,335,000 T °

o Adjusted EBITDA down 11.7% to HK$72,783,000.
KA MEBITDAT %11.7% £72,783,00058 7T ©

. Equity attributable to owners of the Company was HK$869,053,000
as at 31 December 2024.
REZBZMF+ZA=+—H  ZARHEF AEHGKRZA%869,053,000/E T

. Bank borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$44,752,000 as at
31 December 2024 increased by 1.7%.
J%@:iziﬁ-:ﬁ =+—H ZEBENRTEER44,752,000/ T - 1B
011.7% e

o Cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to
HK$220,823,000 as at 31 December 2024.
R-ZEB-MOFF+ZAZ+-H FEENREREHAREER AR
220,823,000 7t °

J Basic loss per share attributable to owners of the Company was HK
cents 0.87 in 2024 versus basic loss per share of HK cents 1.09 in 2023.
HE—Z-=F8RELEFR1.09E RZZS-NFAQRFREEAEM
BREXEER0.87E -

o The Board resolved to declare a final dividend of HK cents 0.16 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2024.
§$§Z§§Eﬂﬁ§§:%:ﬂi+zﬁ ST-HLEFEZRERESR
0.167 °

REVENUE*
TEs

(Thousand HK$ F&7T)

©
F
il
o
<
©

2024 2023

SPoNEER HFRAESEARAT

"

LI1111111772072;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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ADJUSTED EBITDA DIVIDENDS PER SHARE
RFAEMWEBITDA BREE
(Thousand HK$ F&T) (HK cent #l)

’

2024 2023 2024 2023

SEGMENT REVENUE*

2 ER R *
2024
63.5%
35.4%
1.1%

Provision of environmental treatment and disposal
services for industrial and medical wastes

RETERBREMRRLEREERY

‘ Provision of environmental plating sewage treatment services
in Eco-plating Specialised Zone

RRREBFEEEARHIRRELTKEE RS

. Equity investments in plastic materials dyeing business

BHAEEBHBRARE

%  Derived from continuing operations

REFELEER

8  New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2024

2023

66.6%

0.9%



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2024, the financial performance of the Group was still at a loss
with similar position as that in 2023 amidst the continuous impact of
the changing market encountered by the hazardous waste treatment
sectors.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s revenue from
continuing operations decreased by 13.9% to HK$349,416,000
(2023: HK$405,612,000) and recorded a net loss of HK$31,605,000
(2023: net loss of HK$31,231,000) from continuing operations.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the loss attributable to owners
of the Company was HK$26,335,000 (2023: attributable loss of
HK$33,118,000).

Equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31 December
2024 decreased to HK$869,053,000 (2023: HK$908,251,000). Total
bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2024 increased to
HK$44,752,000 (2023: HK$44,000,000). Cash and cash equivalents
of the Group as at 31 December 2024 increased to HK$220,823,000
(2023: HK$186,365,000).

F VT S
WEW T @ MW T ;m
MEW WEW WEw ‘.l"! LGl El !nl

X EE

—ToME pERRERBES TS

ItHFE  KRBE-_S - =FF5
B RIBII B E 1B AR BE -

CEEH

HE-_Z-_HWNF+-_A=1+—BLFE"
REBEKAF zE?%%%i%m”&ﬁnﬂ@Q
13.9%%349,416,0008 L (=T =~ = F :
405,612,000 70) © WS m%%m#%
7% % 5 831,605,000 T (ZE - =4 :
E5831,231,0008 7T) °

HE-_ZTZ-_WNF+-_A=+—HLEFE " K
NEIHEA AFEALE 18 526,335,000 7T (—
T - =4 E(HEE33,118,00087T) °

R -_ME+_A=+—HH KRQRA%E
A A FE {5 B AR 4> £869,053,00058 T (=
T — =4 : 908,251,000/ 7T) ° A& ERP
—E_ME+_A=+—RHZERITEERL
B 1% 40 544,752,000 T (Z B = =4 ¢
44,000,000/ 70) c AEBR T W F
+— A=+ HZEBE2RKRERRKELEER
#INZE220,823,0008 T (B - =& :
186,365,000/ 7T) °

—E_MEER HFRAREBEBR AT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEES B R DN

Environmental Treatment and Disposal Services for

Industrial and Medical Wastes

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company’s subsidiaries
had collected from external customers for treatment and disposal in
aggregate of approximately 167,964 metric tonnes (2023: 96,686
metric tonnes) of different wastes, with 96,078 metric tonnes (2023:
95,754 metric tonnes) of hazardous waste and 71,886 metric tonnes
(2023: 932 metric tonnes) of non-hazardous industrial waste, from
various cities in Jiangsu Province, the PRC and the total segment
revenue from the provision of environmental treatment and disposal
services for industrial and medical wastes was approximately
HK$224,254,000 (2023: HK$272,671,000).

TENEEEYVRREENEE
AR 7
BE_Z-_MWEF+_A=1T—BHLFE"
AARWB AR NP ET&HE Z @EMMH
INHBEFPWERENEES £H167,9641
Wi (T - =4 : 96,686 AF) ZfBREEY) -
HAEBEYI6 078 M (Z T - =4
95,754~ ME) - EER T EEW71,8861
Wi (T =% :9320M) - BEITER
EEEVRREEREERT 25 BWE
HEEH) B224,254,0008 T (ZE =4
272,671,000 7T) o

2024 2023
—EMEF —E-=F
Waste Waste
collected Segment collected Segment
and disposed revenue and disposed revenue
WEREEREY AR E KEREBEY 7 EBU R
metric tonnes HK$'000 metric tonnes HK$'000
N} FET N} FAET
Hazardous industrial waste fEfg T EEY) 88,752 176,779 87,410 227,168
Regulated medical waste & HIEEEY 7,326 36,122 8,344 44,046
General industrial solid — e T ¥ [E 2

waste and others BEY) K EoAth 71,886 11,353 932 1,457
Total @t 167,964 224,254 96,686 272,671

The Group holds interests in two associates, with 30% equity interest
in Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste Disposal Limited* (“Zhenjiang
Xin Qu”) which was licensed for flexible landfill disposal of 20,000
metric tonnes and rigid landfill disposal of 20,000 metric tonnes of
hazardous waste respectively per annum, and 30% equity interest in
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Tianyu Solid Waste Disposal Company
Limited (“NCIP") which was licensed for collection, incineration and
disposal of 38,000 metric tonnes of hazardous industrial waste per
annum in the PRC. The attributable results of Zhenjiang Xin Qu and
NCIP are accounted for on equity method and classified under the
operating segment of environmental treatment and disposal services
for industrial and medical wastes of the Group. For the year ended 31
December 2024, the Group shared a net profit of HK$1,279,000 from
Zhenjiang Xin Qu (2023: net profit of HK$656,000) and shared a net
loss of HK$10,724,000 (2023: net loss of HK$10,072,000) from NCIP
respectively.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2024

REBAMEBE AR FEED  RETH
EEEREERGBERAR (EIFEDH
B30% D ERERELBTEXRKRFER
BEMEEBRAR ((BRAF] FH30%
I AEETAEERESRSFREEA
1 FZ #20,00072 ME K [ 4% 5 32 55 #£20,000
RUEERREEY) - BB YRR BE A S
e RIEREEBR T E¥EEYSF38,000
AW SETHERERAFEGEEILRRE
HAANEARDBEAEE I XREERE
MRREENEENEEDIBZT - HEZ
E_NF+—A=+—RHLFE FAE£EH
Bl FE (5 $E T 37 & A A8 1,279,000 T (=&
— =% : #5751656,000/ 70) R EME R R KXF
K FE51810,724,0008 L (2 - =F : B
810,072,000/ 7C) °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group holds 65% equity interest in a Sino-foreign joint venture,
Liuzhou Xinyu Rongkai Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited*
(“Xinyu Rongkai”), which owned the capacity for collection,
incineration and disposal of 20,000 metric tonnes of hazardous
industrial waste per annum in Liuzhou, Guangxi Province, the PRC.
The attributable results of Xinyu Rongkai is accounted for on equity
method and classified under the operating segment of environmental
treatment and disposal services for industrial and medical wastes of
the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group shared
a net loss of HK$10,660,000 (2023: net loss of HK$11,726,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the loss margin (pre-tax)
of the Group’s operating segment of environmental treatment and
disposal services for industrial and medical wastes was approximately
16.2% (2023: 7.5%).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s combined capacity of
the licensed waste treatment and disposal facilities for the provision
of environmental treatment and disposal services for industrial and
medical wastes was summarised as follows:

&8 8 5 i

REBBERIINEGEDENINFFEINE
BEVEEARAR ((HFLY]) H65%
Bk R AREREEE WM ES W E -
RiE - REFF20,0003MEER TEEYD
ER  REBEGFTFRIMERRERSE
ARUEDBEREB TERBEEYRR
BRELRRENKEENBZT HE-_T -
F+_A=Z+—BHLEE KEBEMGLF
&5 1810,660,0008 L (Z T =_=F : FEI8
11,726,000/ 7T) °

BHE_Z-_NF+-_A=+—HLEFE &
EERBETIEREEEYRREERESR
BRI E D BB AIEEENA162% (ZF
::¢-7.5°/0>

REEHR  ARERKIEREREYR
REENEERG < EFFAIENREREE
RipzHramIEee N NT

2024 2023
—SE-mE —EC=HF
Annual Annual
capacity capacity
Note metric tonnes metric tonnes
FREBD FREER
hg=d AW NI
Subsidiaries in the PRC: RAPEIMELTF :
Licensed hazardous waste TEET Al fa b BE K I
incineration facilities R 135,400 135,400
Licensed epidemic medical waste B E R REREY
incineration facilities R EERHE (i) 11,467 10,490
Licensed epidemic medical waste BT E A EEREY
detoxification treatment facilities mELRERIE 3,300 3,300
Associated companies in the PRC: RPBEBE QT :
Licensed hazardous waste TR Al el EE I 5
incineration facilities B2 38,000 38,000
Licensed hazardous waste B e EE AR
landfill facilities B (i) 33,333 20,000
Joint venture in the PRC: RABEEELE !
Licensed hazardous waste FERT Al fE R EE K I
incineration facilities 3531 (iii) = 15,880
Combined licensed waste EHUENEER
treatment and disposal facilities BEEBRESHE (iv) 221,500 223,070

—E_MEER HFRAREBEBR AT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

s E @

Notes:

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

ok R

A new operating permission licence has been granted to a subsidiary
located at Sugian, Jiangsu Province, the PRC for incineration of
regulated medical waste with an annual capacity of 5,000 metric tonnes
in February 2023. A renewal operating permission licence has been
granted to a subsidiary located at Zhenjiang, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
for incineration of regulated medical waste with an annual capacity
increased to 800 metric tonnes from previously 80 metric tonnes per
annum in June 2024.

A renewal operating permission licence has been granted to Zhenjiang
Xin Qu for flexible landfill disposal of 20,000 metric tonnes and
rigid landfill disposal of 20,000 metric tonnes of hazardous waste
respectively per annum in May 2024.

The operating permission licence of Xinyu Rongkai for collection,
incineration and disposal of hazardous industrial waste with an annual
capacity of 20,000 metric tonnes has lapsed in October 2023 and is
pending governmental approval to resume operation.

The combined capacity of the licensed waste treatment and disposal
facilities represents the total effective treatment and disposal quantity
of hazardous waste allowable to handle under the valid operating
permission licences with contribution to the results of the Group as
at the end of the reporting period calculated on annualised basis. The
combined licensed treatment and disposal facilities above does not
include the hazardous waste landfill facilities with an annual capacity of
18,000 metric tonnes constructed and owned by a subsidiary situated
at Yancheng, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, of which the operating
permission licence has lapsed in November 2017 and is pending the
governmental approval to resume operation.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2024

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

RIE-_=ZF_A NRPRIHEEE
TH—ZXHBARDNESEERERESE
I B8 B BE 05,000 AMARE 1 2 SIS & RF Al 5 o
RZZE-_WFEXA MNRPBRTHEET
TH—ZXHEBEARBNESREREEXE 2
FERE W SE BT B 80 A WA I = F 8002
WABE 2 BITICE A 3F -

R-ZB-_MERA HIFENEDANE
22 M E 8 ER TR 20,0002 WA K M I 8 R
120,000 AMBEBREEY) 2 BHTIS AR AT FE ©

FFRIFBETFINRE REREE
&% T 2 FF #20,000 i 0 48 & 5F ] &
RZE-_=F+AK% AFEBRIHEA
A IRIEE S -

EHFUBEYVEERESR B HEEERE
NERFEAEEFERREPREASE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Environmental Plating Sewage Treatment Services in

Eco-plating Specialised Zone

For the year ended 31 December 2024, total revenue from the

operating segment of provision of environmental plating sewage

treatment services and provision of leasing facilities and related

utilities in the eco-plating specialised zone owned by the Group
situated at Zhenjiang, Jiangsu Province, the PRC (the "Eco-plating
Specialised Zone") was approximately HK$125,162,000 (2023:
HK$132,941,000) and the segment profit margin (pre-tax) was

approximately 20.7% (2023: 11.9%).

7 M

RREEZRMNIRREESKEE
AR 7%
BE-_Z_NMFE+-_A=+—HILEE &
URPBTHEAETIMZRESESRER (3R
REFHRER]) ARHERAREBESKEEZR
BRIBEREREREEEERSHECE D
B UL 2R 48 BA 49 /5125,162,0008 T (Z B - =
F 1 132,941,000 7T) -+ 15 B AT F)H =X
HAE207% (ZE-=%F :11.9%) °

EEES W

Segment revenue

7 EB Uk =
2024 2023
—B-MEF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Industrial sewage treatment and TESKEER
providing public utilities and REAAEER
management services B AR 95,865 100,481
Leasing of factory buildings and facilities &E K& 2 HE 29,297 32,460
Total et 125,162 132,941
2024 2023
—E_MEF —F-=
Average gross floor area of factory EHEEIRERS REE2
buildings and facilities available for EHREmEmE (FAK)
leasing (square metres) 101,034 101,034
Average utilisation rate of buildings B N 5% b 2 P9 A A K
and facilities 85.2% 90.7%
Plating sewage handled by the SRR 5KEERATEEEESK
centralised sewage treatment plant (BF A M)
(metric tonnes per annum) 315,038 330,615
Average utilisation rate of sewage EKEBRE N ZFHRBXR
treatment capacity 19.1% 20.0%

—E_MEER HFRAREBEBR AT

13



SOOS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE B RSN

The Eco-plating Specialised Zone has a total land area of
approximately 180,000 square metres, in which, office building,
factory buildings, and centralised filtering plants were built.
Currently, the office building and centralised sewage filtering and
sludge treatment plants were built with a total gross floor area of
19,560 square metres, and factory buildings and facilities with a
total gross area of 106,807 square metres and available for leasing
to manufacturing clients which undertake their plating-related
operations inside the Eco-plating Specialised Zone. The Group owns
22 factory buildings in the Eco-plating Specialised Zone which are
leased by 33 (2023: 35) manufacturing clients as at 31 December
2024. The Group operates a centralised plating sewage treatment
plant, a centralised industrial sludge treatment plant and customised
facilities equipped for all clients in the zone.

Investments in Plastic Materials Dyeing Business
The Group holds the equity interests in three manufacturing entities,

which principally engaged in plastic materials dyeing in the PRC, as
equity investments. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the profit
margins (pre-tax) of Suzhou New Huamei Plastics Company Limited
("Suzhou New Huamei”), Danyang New Huamei Plastics Company
Limited (“Danyang New Huamei”) and Qingdao Zhongxin Huamei
Plastics Company Limited (“Qingdao Huamei”) were 2.0%, 2.4% and
4.3% (2023: 0.7%, 2.3% and 4.2%) respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, total dividend received by
the Group (before PRC dividend withholding tax) in relation to the
results of Suzhou New Huamei, Danyang New Huamei and Qingdao
Huamei in previous year was approximately HK$3,745,000 (2023:
HK$3,945,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
confronted a continuing downturn in operating revenue. The market
for hazardous waste incineration treatment services across cities
in the PRC, particularly in Jiangsu Province, was competitive, with
overcapacity leading to a decline in treatment prices. This had a
significant impact on the Group’s financial performance. In response,
the Group firmly implemented the strategic decision to temporarily
suspend operations in certain loss-making units. Despite these
challenges, the Group remained committed to upholding national
environmental protection standards and continuously maintained its
waste treatment facilities. Entering 2025, the Group will spare no
effort to ensure the timely renewal of hazardous waste operating
licences for its subsidiaries and minimise the downtime for necessary
adjustments to the incineration facilities.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s four subsidiaries in the PRC
maintained a licensed annual incineration capacity of 135,400 metric
tonnes of hazardous waste and 11,800 metric tonnes of regulated
medical waste. The centralised sewage filtration system in the
Eco-plating Specialised Zone and its sewage treatment plant have
been continuously optimised and adjusted in good condition to serve
the current 33 professional plating clients inside the zone, with a
leasable factory floor area of 101,034 square metres.

Despite the uncertainties and challenges in the business environment,
the Group will remain steadfast in its focus on environmental-related
businesses. We will prudently explore opportunities for business
restructuring and industrial upgrading to enhance the sustainability of
our environmental operations.

The Group is dedicated to upholding corporate governance and
environmental governance to ensure the smooth and stable operation
of the entire Group.

Barring any unforeseen uncertainties emerging from the hazardous
waste treatment sector and local economies in the PRC, the Group
remains optimistic about the future. We are committed to improving
operations, returning to profitability, and maintaining a strong
emphasis on environmental protection and waste management.
Through optimising resource allocation and enhancing operational
efficiency, we are confident that we can achieve an improvement in
performance in 2025 and create greater value for shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
TR E N B KD

FINANCIAL REVIEW

B 75 [

BHE_Z-_NM&F+_-_A=+—HLEFEZZ
FEEMEZT (BER-_ZS_=ZFZ2HEHT)

The summary of annual results for the year ended 31 December 2024
together with corresponding figures for 2023 is presented as follows:

Summary of annual results

ZHmTE

PEXEME

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+T—HLEE

2024 2023 Change
TECDNFE —T-=F 28
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 %
Mo FHET FHIT
Continuing operations HEREER
Revenue from environmental TEREEERMNIRIREREIE
treatment and disposal services FEERGZ
for industrial and medical wastes & 1) 224,254 272,671 -17.8
Revenue from environmental TESKEREE BE
industrial sewage treatment, EIE R A
utilities, management services, N
and leasing out factory facilities ZWEs 1(ii) 125,162 132,941 -5.9
Total Revenue Wk 42 EE 1 349,416 405,612 -13.9
Average gross profit margin SEHER X
(in percentage) (Aot 2 15.7 16.1 2.5
Other revenue H it Wz 3 3,745 3,945 5.1
Other income E A 4 5,705 6,781 -15.9
Distribution costs DA 5 (17,585)  (19,263) -8.7
Administrative expenses THHEX 6 (43,699) (49,771) -12.2
Research and development EEMA X
expenses 7 (5,716) (6,055) -5.6
Other operating expenses Hih &S 8 (7,031) (15,451) -54.5
Reversal of impairment loss JFE U BR 3 2 R (B B 1B
on trade receivables, net [o] 8 - JF % 9 5,009 15,672 -68.0
Finance income BhE WA 10 4,550 5,469 -16.8
Finance costs & A 11 (1,811) (3,780) -52.1
Share of results of associates SIHERE R A2 A 12 (9,445) (9,416) +0.3
Share of results of a joint venture DIE—RKELBNEZES 13 (10,660) (11,726) -9.1
Income tax FrisHi 14 (9,498)  (13,053) 272
Discontinued operation ORISR
Loss from discontinued operation WE DR R EFRR R 15 _ (4,536) -
Net loss for the year rEERFE 16 (31,605)  (35,767) -11.6
Loss attributable to owners of the KRB AE(EEE
Company 16 (26,335) (33,118) -20.5
Basic LPS (in HK cents) FRRE AR ER L) 16 (0.87) (1.09) -20.2
Diluted LPS (in HK cents) RS ER B 16 (0.87) (1.09) -20.2
Adjusted EBITDA 4 FEEBITDA 17 72,783 82,450 -11.7
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B & D

Summary of annual results by semi-annual cycle

TR E

REFERPI >N FREME

1H 2024 2H 2024 Total 2024
“ECNFE ZE-@FE ZE-WEF
F¥F T¥F et
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M sE FET F#E T FHET
Continuing operations EERKREER
Revenue from environmental TENBERYNORFRERE
treatment and disposal services MEERS 2
for industrial and medical wastes g 1(3i) 105,297 118,957 224,254
Revenue from environmental TESKRREE BEE-
industrial sewage treatment, EERSERLA
utilities, management services, TS HE
and leasing out factory facilities & 1(ii) 60,773 64,389 125,162
Total Revenue W ok 458 1 166,070 183,346 349,416
Average gross profit margin T EF E
(in percentage) (Ao ) 2 12.0 19.0 15.7
Other revenue H sk 3 3,745 - 3,745
Other income H Al A 4 3,564 2,141 5,705
Distribution costs 73 8 AR 5 (10,083) (7,502)  (17,585)
Administrative expenses THAEX 6 (22,071) (21,628) (43,699)
Research and development 25 5 2
expenses 7 (2,707) (3,009) (5,716)
Other operating expenses HEhEeEms 8 (3,031) (4,000) (7,031)
Reversal of impairment loss FEYBR SR 2 BB
on trade receivables, net EEE & - JFRR 9 1,927 3,082 5,009
Finance income RPN 10 1,827 2,723 4,550
Finance costs A& KA 11 (914) (897) (1,811)
Share of results of associates DG E R R 2 EE 12 (5.145) (4,300) (9,445)
Share of results of a joint venture DIE—REELEZEE 13 (5,890) (4,770)  (10,660)
Income tax P15t 14 (4,859) (4,639) (9,498)
Net loss for the period BHAEBEFE 16 (23,706) (7,899)  (31,605)
Loss attributable to KRGS AEGEEBE
owners of the Company 16 (20,248) (6,087) (26,335)
Basic LPS (in HK cents) FREAREE (B) 16 (0.67) (0.20) (0.87)
Diluted LPS (in HK cents) EEsEERE BI) 16 (0.67) (0.20) (0.87)
Adjusted EBITDA & A FEEBITDA 17 29,221 43,562 72,783

—E_MEER HFRAREBEBR AT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TR E

B R D

1H 2023 2H 2023 Total 2023
T ZTE=F ZE-_=%F
E¥F THF S
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
P 5 FAT FAET FAT
(Restated)
(&&&EY)
Continuing operations BERSEEK
Revenue from environmental TEMBEREYHIRRE
treatment and disposal services BENMEERE Z
for industrial and medical wastes W &5 1(3i) 138,808 133,863 272,671
Revenue from environmental TEGSKRREE BEE-
industrial sewage treatment, EERSEREA
utilities, management services, T RS e
and leasing out factory facilities Z Wz 1(ii) 61,830 71,111 132,941
Total Revenue W o 4B 58 1 200,638 204,974 405,612
Average gross profit margin T EF E
(in percentage) (Bo) 2 12.6 19.6 16.1
Other revenue H Yz 3 3,945 = 3,945
Other income Hpth g A 4 2,518 4,263 6,781
Distribution costs 2 EHR A 5 (10,121) (9,142)  (19,263)
Administrative expenses THAX 6 (22,833) (26,938) (49,771)
Research and development e
expenses 7 (3,377) (2,678) (6,055)
Other operating expenses B E 8 (9,927) (5,524) (15,451)
Reversal of impairment loss FEYBR SR 2 BB
on trade receivables, net EEE & - JFRE 9 L 15,672 15,672
Finance income & WA 10 3,537 1,932 5,469
Finance costs =GN 11 (2,051) (1,729) (3,780)
Share of results of associates DAGEEE R R 2 EE 12 (4,424) (4,992) (9,416)
Share of results of a joint venture DPEH—REEDLEZEE 13 (6,110) (5,616) (11,726)
Income tax Fr i3 5% 14 (6,400) (6,653) (13,053)
Discontinued operation BRI 5
(Loss)/profit from discontinued KEDRIFE L EEL
operation (E18) /5% F 15 (7,270) 2,734 (4,536)
Net loss for the period HABEFEAE 16 (29,977) (5,790) (35,767)
(Loss)/profit attributable to KARBEA AEN (B1E)
owners of the Company Y-l 16 (33,165) 47 (33,118)
Basic LPS (in HK cents) BlREAREE GBI 16 (1.09) (0.00) (1.09)
Diluted LPS (in HK cents) GREEEE (B 16 (1.09) (0.00) (1.09)
Adjusted EBITDA 4 A FEEBITDA 17 34,064 48,386 82,450
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Notes:

Revenue from continuing operations

Net decrease in total revenue from continuing operations for the year
ended 31 December 2024, amounting to HK$56,196,000 was mainly
attributable to:

(i) a drop in the revenue from the environmental treatment and
disposal services for industrial and medical wastes experienced a
continuous decline in the average unit handling price that resulted
in a decrease of HK$48,417,000; and

(i) a decrease in revenue from environmental industrial sewage
treatment, utilities, management services, and leasing out factory
facilities owing to decline in manufacturing activities of certain
clients in the Eco-plating Specialised Zone that resulted in a
decrease of HK$7,779,000.

Gross profit margin

The decrease in the Group's gross profit margin for the year ended 31
December 2024 was mainly attributable to:

(i) the decrease in the unit handling price for hazardous waste
treatment services directly reduced the revenue per unit of service
provided that resulted in putting downward pressure on the gross
profit margin; and

(i) the increase in outsourcing landfill costs for the disposal of
secondary wastes generated during the Group’s incineration
process also ate into the gross profit that resulted in reduction in
the overall gross profit margin.

Other revenue

Net decrease in other revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024,
amounting to HK$200,000, was mainly attributable to the decrease
in RMB foreign exchange rates relative to HK$ upon receipt of cash
dividends from the equity investments in the current year.

Other income

Net decrease in other income for the year ended 31 December 2024,
amounting to HK$1,076,000, was mainly attributable to the lapse of
certain Chinese governmental preferential tax refund policies since last
year.

Distribution costs

Net decrease in distribution costs for the year ended 31 December 2024,
amounting to HK$1,678,000, was mainly due to a decrease in marketing
agency fees in the current year.

Administrative expenses

Net decrease in administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December

2024, with a reduction of HK$6,072,000, was mainly caused by a
reduction in staff headcount in the current year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEES B R DN

7. Research and development expenses

Net decrease in research and development expenses for the year ended
31 December 2024, amounting to HK$339,000, was mainly attributable
to staffing adjustment to the R&D departments of the major PRC

subsidiaries in the current year.

8. Other operating expenses

Net decrease in other operating expenses for the year ended 31
December 2024, amounting to HK$8,420,000, was mainly attributable

to decrease in litigation costs.

9, Reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables

The reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables for the year ended
31 December 2024, with a total of HK$5,009,000 (HK$1,927,000 in the
first half of 2024 and HK$3,082,000 in the second half of 2024), was

mainly attributable to improvement in debt recovery.

10.  Finance income

Net decrease in finance income for the year ended 31 December 2024,
amounting to HK$919,000, was mainly attributable to a decrease in

interest income from free-cash deposits in the current year.

11.  Finance costs

Net decrease in finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2024,
with a reduction of HK$1,969,000, was mainly due to a decrease in the

Group's borrowings at higher interest rates in the current year.

12.  Loss shared from associates

Net increase in loss shared from associates for the year ended 31
December 2024, amounting to HK$29,000, was mainly attributable to
the continued losses in the business performance of NCIP during the

current year.

13.  Loss shared from the joint venture, Xinyu Rongkai

Net decrease in loss shared from the joint venture, Xinyu Rongkai, for
the year ended 31 December 2024, amounting to HK$1,066,000, was
mainly attributable to its decrease in operating costs under temporary

operation halt in the current year.

14. Income tax

Net decrease in income tax for the year ended 31 December 2024,
amounting to HK$3,555,000, was mainly attributable to a decline in
taxable profits from continuing operations in the PRC in the current year.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Discontinued operation

No loss from discontinued operation was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2024 that was mainly because in 2023, the Group
completed a one-off transaction to dispose of its entire equity interest
in wholly owned subsidiary that resulted in the de-consolidation of
the environmental equipment construction and installation services
operating segment in 2023. The net effect of this disposal was reflected
in the 2023 financial statements and no such loss was incurred in 2024.

Group losses and LPS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's losses, the net loss
attributable to owners of the Company, and the respective loss per share
("LPS") were mainly attributable to:

(i) the decrease in revenue and profit from environmental treatment
and disposal services for industrial and medical wastes in the
PRC owing to a decrease in the average unit handling price,
significantly impacted the Group’s financial performance; and

(i) the decline in revenue from environmental industrial sewage
treatment services in the Eco-plating Specialised Zone also
contributed to the losses.

Adjusted EBITDA

The Company uses adjusted (loss)/earnings for the reporting period,
excluding discontinued operation and the impact of interest, taxation,
depreciation, amortisation, share of results of equity-accounted
investees, and non-recurring one-time items (“Adjusted EBITDA"), to
measure the Group's operating results. The decrease in Adjusted EBITDA
for the year ended 31 December 2024, amounting to HK$9,667,000 was
mainly attributable to the combined effects of the decrease in revenue
from core business segments in the current year.

Seasonality of operations

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the operation of providing

environmental treatment and disposal services for industrial and

medical wastes was the key driver of revenue of the Group which

encountered a relatively higher demand in the second half of the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the environmental treatment

and disposal services for industrial and medical wastes recorded a

revenue of HK$224,254,000 (2023: HK$272,671,000) and pre-tax
loss of HK$36,280,000 (2023: loss of HK$20,324,000) with revenue

of approximately 47.0% (2023: 50.9%) being accumulated in the
first half of the year and approximately 53.0% (2023: 49.1%) being

accumulated in the second half of the year.
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HEFRN EEEFE 53.0% (T - =4
49.1%) RETA T HF o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Capital expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group incurred capital
expenditure to increase property, plant and equipment and to
acquire land use rights for the operating segment of (i) environmental
treatment and disposal services for industrial and medical wastes
amounting to approximately HK$2,986,000 (2023: HK$14,152,000),
(ii) industrial sewage and sludge treatment and facility provision
services in the Eco-plating Specialised Zone amounting to
approximately HK$23,149,000 (2023: HK$5,974,000), and (iii) head
office for corporate use in Hong Kong being HK$1,066,000 (2023:
HK$6,000).

Commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments for capital assets:

BARFEZ
BHE_Z-_WNFE+_-_A=+—HItFE &K
SEELEERAAZIAEMDE - BEREE
MW T EARARTIEE ST
FEEEYREREENMNEERBSHENA
2,986,000 7T (== — =4 : 14,152,000/
L) (NRREEZREANREHITES KRS
e B KR MR TS & B840 /223,149,000% 7T
Z T - =4 :5,974,0008 7T) R(iVBARE
BRIIELERR - ©% 51,066,000 7T
TE =4 :6,00087T) °

A HE
RIEER NEBREREEEL AT &
¥’

2024 2023
“EZNF —E_=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHExT
Contracted but not provided for: DET41B R B

— Capital expenditure in respect of —BAME BELEREZ

property, plant and equipment BARRE 19,198 44,084
— Capital contribution to an equity —m—ERARELE

investment 15,915 15,976

On 28 July 2022, Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal
Company Limited (“Zhenjiang New Universe”) (an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into an investment
agreement (the “Investment Agreement”) with the Zhenjiang
Economic and Technological Development Zone Management
Committee, pursuant to which Zhenjiang New Universe would further
invest USD15,000,000 into the local expansion plan of Zhenjiang
New Universe which comprises, among others, the building of a new
incinerator with a daily capacity of 100 metric tonnes (33,000 metric
tonnes per annum) of hazardous waste, the technical transformation
of the existing incinerator with a daily capacity of 50 metric tonnes
(16,500 metric tonnes per annum) of hazardous waste, and the
optimisation of other facilities. Pursuant to the Investment Agreement,
New Universe Environmental Technologies (Jiang Su) Limited
("NUET(JS)") (the immediate holding company interested in 100%
paid-up registered capital of Zhenjiang New Universe) should inject
additional capital in the amount of USD5,000,000 into Zhenjiang New
Universe. Up to the date of this report, the additional capital to be
registered for and injected into Zhenjiang New Universe is still pending
the approval of the relevant departments of the PRC government.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity, financial resources and gearing

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group financed its
operations and made payment of debts and liabilities due timely
with internally generated cash flows and banking facilities.

The Group remained moderately stable in its financial position
with equity attributable to owners of the Company amounting
to approximately HK$869,053,000 as at 31 December 2024
(2023: HK$908,251,000) and consolidated total assets
amounting to approximately HK$1,247,615,000 as at 31
December 2024 (2023: HK$1,301,424,000).

The Company did not have any equity fund raising activity within
the past twelve months immediately prior to the date of this
report (2023: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had:

TR E

RBES  HHERREERELE

L
(a)

B & D

HE-_ZT-_MF+_A=+—HLILHF
E AEEHHRERTEENE SR
ERBRITRE  UBNEZEY LE
SHEIHEEREGE -

AEERBFPEBEOPBEMRL R
—E-_ME+-A=+—HBZARF
A A FEIL I A4 5869,053,000/8 7T
— &~ =4 :908,251,0008 L) * A
R-ZZE-_WE+-_A=+—B2&4&
W88 E X H1,247,615,0008 T (=&
— =4 :1,301,424,000/87T) °

ARARREBEEAFEARBET—
MARNTETRBRAREE T (-
T=FEE)

RBEHR - AEHE :

2024 2023
—E_MEF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(i) Cash and bank balances: He RIRITHES
in HK$ BT 51,186 50,706
in RMB AR 145,264 113,563
in USD ET 24,373 22,096
220,823 186,365
2024 2023
—E-mE T =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAET
(i)  Available unused unsecured Al F AW oA B A 2 ST
banking facilities: RITHRMEEER
in HK$ BT 20,000 35,600
in RMB AR 31,920 117,700
51,920 153,300

—=
—_—=

—HEFE FFRAEEARAQA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(e)  The Group monitors adjusted EBITDA as performance measure at  (e)
a consolidated level and considers that this measure is relevant
to an understanding of the Group’s financial performance.
Adjusted EBITDA is calculated by adjusting profit/loss for the
year to exclude discontinued operations and the impact of
taxation, gross interest expense, depreciation, amortisation,
share of results of equity-accounted investees and non-recurring

one-time items.

Reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA to profit or loss for the year:

REB K FHELEBITDAE AFEAEE
MEREEZEETER  URAEZ
HEEEHE THRASENTKRES
8 o i HEBITDAR B BB EE
A/ EBEXFE TR RIELE
EBEEBE RFEH T E - &
BT EARENEERIEEER
ﬁé@ﬁ DIgE—AMEEBRENE

Fal
nE
OH]

ZEBITDABFEEmM T K ¢

2024 2023
—E-EF —ZF-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Loss for the year FEFRE (31,605) (35,767)
Adjustments for: HEE
— Income tax -FTiS 9,498 13,053
— Gross interest expense —HAF B 1,811 3,780
— Depreciation of property, plant  -¥% - BE K&
and equipment BRI E 69,743 72,428
— Depreciation of right-of-use FREEERE
assets 3,231 3,278
— Share of results of associated -DIEBE R RIEESTE
companies, net of tax (Bi1g¥58) 9,445 9,416
— Share of results of a joint venture, - EAE R AIEE D
net of tax (B1&%50) 10,660 11,726
— Loss from discontinued operation -KE B ILEEEE 2
&8 - 4,536
Adjusted EBITDA A EEBITDA 72,783 82,450
(f)  The Company monitors the financial performance of the (f) Z&2Q && iB&FHZEBITDAKL EKBIEE
equity-accounted investees through adjusted EBITDA by EAR BMERNARMBEERREBNY
excluding the impact of the capital investee, finance costs and . PESEREREZEANEEREER
tax entity structure. Set out below is the adjusted EBITDA of the BRBERIR - LA TNEHI AR E]IERE
equity-accounted investees of the Company for the two years HEBNEREERBRBE S
ended 31 December 2024: “HWHFE+ZA=T-HIEREFEH
45 5 EEEBITDA ¢
2024 2023
—ZE_ME =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Adjusted EBITDA of associates: Hig &8 2 B HY A8 58 EEEBITDA :
Zhenjiang Xin Qu LT[R 19,530 10,955
NCIP MR KT (12,665) (10,602)
Adjusted EBITDA of joint venture: B &N R B8 EEBITDA ¢
Xinyu Rongkai TR (2,276) (6,657)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

s

The Group monitors its liquidity through current ratio. The (g)
current ratio of the Group representing the ratio of the
consolidated current assets to the consolidated current liabilities

was 1.43 times as at 31 December 2024 (2023: 1.33 times).

B R R D

¢E.LA//\L§]§JZ|ZT§&T?E //ZIL_I:@J éfﬁ"
R_ZT_mWFE+=-_A=+
@Eﬁu.ébttf(%i?é,ﬁibéféﬁﬁé
MEBBEZEER) B1A3E (2=
1 1.331%)

|
m
4}
o

The Group monitors its capital by reference to the gearing ratio. (h) AEBEUEEBBH XETHEER o
This ratio is calculated as total interest-bearing borrowings b R T IRE B 1% B (BIEHESR
(including lease liabilities) divided by total equity. The gearing BE)BRIAR AR E‘: o NI EHI KR
ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows: EEAGBLERDT :
2024 2023
—E-NEF —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHT
Bank borrowings RITEHE 44,752 44,000
Lease liabilities HEBE - 332
Total interest-bearing borrowings ATEEERE 44,752 44,332
Total equity (inclusive of non-controlling A%< 48 %8 (B 4E FE4E AL #E 25)
interests) 964,450 1,013,359
Gearing ratio BEEAMBELEE 4.6% 4.4%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements.

—E_MEER HFRAREBEBR AT

YN RO Y= NCIE R ) S

EAIINERIE I 2 BEARRE ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(i) At the end of the reporting period, the interest-bearing bank

(i) MNBEHPR AEEZFBRITES

borrowings of the Group were as follows: mr
2024 2023
—E-MF —T-=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mo 3E FHET A&
Secured RMB bank borrowings BEMARBRITEE (i) 21,280 22,000
Unsecured RMB bank borrowings IR ARBIRITEE (ii) 23,472 22,000
Unsecured HK$ bank borrowings ERBEBLRITEE (ii) = -
44,752 44,000
Notes: W1 -
() Bearing interest at fixed rates that ranged from 3.50% to 4.00% () AFEEFMEABEFFENT3.50%
(2023: 3.90% to 4.25%) per annum in the current year. F2A400% (ZE-_=F :3.90%%
4.25%) °

(i) Bearing interest at fixed rates that ranged from 3.20% to 3.50%
(2023: 3.20% to 3.75%) per annum in the current year.

(iii) ~ There was no interest bearing bank borrowings denominated in
Hong Kong Dollar outstanding in the current year (2023: interest
at variable rates ranged from 4.88% to 7.99% per annum).

Capital structure
There was no significant change to the capital structure of the

Company as at 31 December 2024 comparing to that as at 31
December 2023.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and

affiliated companies
There were no significant investments nor material acquisition and

disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Significant investments held and their performance
According to the valuation report dated 21 March 2025 issued by

an independent professional valuer, Colliers International (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Colliers International”) (22 March 2024: Colliers
International), the total fair value attributable to the Group's
interests in the equity investments in Suzhou New Huamei, Danyang
New Huamei and Qingdao Huamei as at 31 December 2024 was
HK$98,400,000 (2023: HK$81,500,000).

Fair value attributable

EEET B R DA

FiisERIEERERIA

BEBYEXGHEMS IEEYERRM (F
BER2A(EABEKE) (ZE-mEFE=
AZ+=-H @ BB mMEEBHRA-Z
THEZA-_t+-—BENHEESRE R -
TIWE+-A=+—H8  KEEHEEMNH
EX BB EZLRTEEZTNREAERE
W3S H R F (B 4258 598,400,0008 T (=&
— =4 :81,500,0007T) °

Fair value relative to
the Group’s total assets

to the Group HEEREE
REEESLEQFE BEEZATHE
Group's interest 2024 2023 2024 2023
AEERED —T-MNE —T-=F ZE-_WE —T-_=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Suzhou New Huamei BRNFTER 18.62% 12,600 7,000 1.0% 0.5%
Danyang New Huamei  fH[5#TiESE 24.50% 10,300 7,600 0.8% 0.6%
Qingdao Huamei EBEX 28.67% 75,500 66,900 6.1% 5.1%
98,400 81,500 7.9% 6.2%

The unlisted equity investments acquired by the Group in October
2007 are held for long term strategic purposes. The change in fair
value of the equity investments for the year ended 31 December 2024
were recognised as other comprehensive income and accounted for in
the investment revaluation reserve of the Group.

AEER _ZEZLF+AMKBZLERLD
BEREDNEARURBBENMES - HE
TECNEFT A=+ -BUEFE REK
BZAVEEIEIASEMEE RS - RN
AEBNKREEGHEBAR -

—E_MEER HFRAREBEBR AT
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Impairment testing on goodwill

Goodwill was recognised upon the completion of a business
combination in 2007 that currently composed of Zhenjiang New
Universe and Yancheng New Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company
Limited that principally engaged in environmental waste treatment
and disposal services in Jiangsu Province, the PRC which since then
being identified as a cash-generating unit. As at 31 December 2024,
the assessment on the recoverable amount of this cash-generating
unit was conducted with reference to the valuation report dated 21
March 2025 issued by Colliers International (22 March 2024: Colliers
International), based on reasonable assumptions, including but not
limited to the cash flows projection with a growth rate at 1.7%
(2023: 2.1%) of that cash-generating unit operating with the licensed
incineration capacity of hazardous waste 26,400 metric tonnes per
annum and licensed disposal capacity of regulated medical waste
4,100 metric tonnes per annum, and at the pre-tax discount rate of
12.33% (2023: 16.12%) having accounted for the risks encountered
in the industries. No impairment loss to the goodwill was considered
necessary for the two years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Impairment testing on interest in an associate, NCIP

As at 31 December 2024, the assessment on the recoverable
amount of the Group's interest in NCIP, that principally engaged
in environmental waste treatment and disposal services in Nanjing,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC, was conducted with reference to the
valuation report dated 21 March 2025 issued by Colliers International
(22 March 2024: Colliers International), based on reasonable
assumptions, including but not limited to the cash flows projection
of NCIP with a growth rate at 1.7% (2023: 2.1%) of NCIP as
cash-generating unit with the licensed incineration capacity of
hazardous waste 38,000 metric tonnes per annum, and at the pre-tax
discount rate of 11.81% (2023: 15.57%) having accounted for the
risks encountered by NCIP in the industries. No impairment loss to the
Group’s interest in NCIP was considered necessary for the two years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Impairment testing on interests in joint venture, Xinyu

Rongkai
As at 31 December 2024, the assessment on the recoverable amount

of the Group’s interests in Xinyu Rongkai, that principally engaged
in environmental waste treatment and disposal services in Liuzhou,
Guangxi, the PRC, was conducted with reference to the valuation
report dated 21 March 2025 issued by Colliers International, based
on reasonable assumptions, including but not limited to the cash
flows projection of Xinyu Rongkai with a growth rate at 1.7% of
Xinyu Rongkai once resumed operations as cash-generating unit
with the licensed incineration capacity of hazardous waste 20,000
metric tonnes per annum, and at the pre-tax discount rate of 11.73%
having accounted for the risks encountered by Xinyu Rongkai in
the industries. No impairment loss to the Group’s interests in Xinyu
Rongkai was considered necessary for the year ended 31 December
2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Charges on assets BEEH
As at 31 December 2024, the following assets of the Group were RZ-ZZTZWMFE+_HA=+—H XEBBIUT
pledged as collaterals for banking facilities granted and other ordinary ZEFLUEH  EAEZBRITRHEURKE
business of the Group: EEMATEB s ERm
2024 2023
—2-@mE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Carrying amount of collaterals: BEHRmzREE :
Property, plant and equipment mE - BREREE 47,392 57,483
Land use rights + b {0 A 7,266 7,692
Pledged bank deposits 2R HI 8 RIT R 3,309 -
57,967 65,175
2024 2023
ZEZmEF —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Secured liabilities and guarantee issued: AP & & & B2 HER -
Secured bank borrowings EERRITEERE 21,280 22,000
Bills payables VAN 5,001 —
26,281 22,000

Contingent liabilities

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 20
May 2022, 30 May 2022 and 7 February 2023 in relation to the legal
proceedings in process against NUET(JS), an 82% indirectly owned
subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Hong Kong. Two writs of
summons issued by the Jiangsu Zhenjiang Intermediate People’s Court
(the “Court”) in the PRC were received by NUET(JS) in respect of the
proceedings filed by two existing shareholders (each a “Plaintiff”,
Mr. YIN Yong Xiang” and Mr. SUN Jia Qing"") each holding 8% of
the issued share capital of NUET(JS) on 20 May 2022 and 27 May
2022 respectively (the “Actions”). On 15 July 2022, NUET(JS) has
received two civil judgements of the Court dated 4 January 2023 and
5 January 2023 in respect of the two Actions respectively, in which,
amongst others, the claims of each of the Plaintiffs against NUET(JS)
under the Actions were dismissed. Both Plaintiffs did not admit to
the judgements of the Court and have each submitted a civil appeal
(with both civil appeals dated 29 January 2023) to the Court, and
the civil appeals have been transferred from the Court to and being
heard at the Jiangsu Province High People’s Court in the PRC pending
judgements.

Kok B fE

IRAMARNTAHE_STE_—_FRA=-F
B =R A=+TBAR=ZZ==%=
ﬂtE A - B R ETSEINUET(S) (B A
NAEEEES2%IWEER B MK B
DA ZERFR - NUETUS) DRI =2 ==
ERA-tTAR-ZE-_—FRA=-++tHK
B BTEREGBEIIm P RARER ([TEF])
WW%%(E BABHNUETUS)HI M &
7 Bl #F BNUET(S)8% I 2N # 2 W IR B AR &R
(FEaBAIREA] %mﬁ%i&%%ﬁ
EET)DRIRENERRER ([FFA) °
—E-—_F+A+EHH" Nwm9%U£h
BHSR AT -_=F—ANHEMN_Z_=
F-RAAAREMERMEEHNREEHA
EfaE(ETRR) B84 REHNUETUS)HR
ﬁmﬁ“$§%W§@°W%EiﬁT%£
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R o
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The Group has already recognised the amounts being claimed under the
Actions as dividends payable to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary
without payment terms that being classified under other payables in
the Group's financial statements but no provision has been recognised
for any interest on those non interest-bearing dividend rights. As the
Actions are pending judgement, the information usually required by
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets is not
disclosed on the grounds that it might prejudice the outcome of the
proceedings. The Directors are of the opinion that the Actions and the
asset preservations still held by the Plaintiffs not yet released thereunder
the Actions are not expected to have adverse impact to the normal
operations of NUET(JS), Zhenjiang New Universe and any members of
the Group. Details are set out in note 45 to the financial statements.

Notes:

* Mr. YIN Yong Xiang is an existing director of the Group’s subsidiary,
Zhenjiang New Universe, and he is also the existing chairman of the
boards of Danyang New Huamei and Qingdao Huamei.

**  Mr. SUN Jia Qing is an existing director of the Group’s subsidiary,
Zhenjiang New Universe.

Save as disclosed herein, there were no other significant contingent
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

Employee information

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 401 (2023: 482) full-time
employees, of which 16 (2023: 17) were based in Hong Kong,
and 385 (2023: 465) in the Mainland China. For the year ended
31 December 2024, staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration
and amount capitalised as inventories was HK$71,574,000 (2023:
HK$89,272,000). Employees and Directors were paid in commensurate
with the prevailing market standards, with other fringe benefits such as
bonus, medical insurance, mandatory provident fund, and continuous
development and training.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China and most of the
Group'’s transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk due to the exchange
rate fluctuation of RMB against HK$. Fluctuation of RMB against HK$
is expected to be moderate to the Group, and the Group considers the
foreign currency risk exposure is acceptable and the Mainland China’s
economy will regain its robustness. The Group will review and monitor
its currency exposure from time to time, and when appropriate hedge
its currency risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The results of the Company’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China are
translated from RMB into HK$ at the exchange rates approximating
the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items of the Company’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China
are translated from RMB into HK$ at the closing rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period. For the year ended 31 December 2024,
RMB depreciated on average relatively to the HK$ resulted in an
overall downside exchange difference on translation from RMB to
HK$ for the financial statements of the subsidiaries, associates and a
joint venture in the Mainland China in an aggregate of approximately
HK$27,704,000 (2023: downside difference HK$21,596,000) that
were recognised as other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation reserve of the Company in the
current year. There was a release of negative exchange difference of
HK$352,000 arisen on the disposal of interests in PRC subsidiaries
that was recognised to the profit or loss of the Company in the year
of 2023. The accumulated exchange differences in the translation
reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss as when the interests in the
relevant subsidiaries in the Mainland China being entirely or partially
disposed of by the Group.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The following are the principal risks and uncertainties related to the
Company’s business:

1. The Group is dependent of the continuous renewal of hazardous
waste operating permission licences to be granted by the PRC
Government. The environmental business of the Group involving
in collection, storage, incineration, landfill, treatment and final
disposal of hazardous waste in the Mainland China requires
operating permission licences for handling hazardous waste
and the operating permission licences for handling epidemic
medical waste issued by the Environmental Protection Bureau of
Jiangsu Province and local environmental authorities. There is a
risk that the hazardous waste operating permission licence(s) of
the Group may be suspended temporarily or withdrawn or the
renewal of which may be delayed and subject to the compliance
with the PRC Governmental directions for renovation and
reconstruction.

The Group commits to ensuring the continuous renewal of all
necessary licences for its operations and to ensure all subsidiary
entities engaging in environmental operations maintain and
continuously uphold their operating standards and waste
management standards and technically renovate the facilities in
order to comply with the environmental policies, standards, and
legislations as promulgated by the PRC Government from time to
time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEES B R DN

The Group faces competition in the market of hazardous
waste collection for treatment and disposal services from other
operators in the environmental hazardous waste treatment
industry.

The Group has to continuously upkeep its facilities and
provide continuous staff development, to reduce energy
consumption and emissions, and to strengthen hazardous waste
decomposition technology, its waste management standard
and financial stability in order to compete with the increasing
number of competitors in treatment of hazardous waste
sector with more financial resources to develop larger scaled
waste disposal and recycling facilities, better standards and
technology to the compliance with all national and international
environmental regulations, and better technical know-how than
we have.

Owing to the increasing number of hazardous waste disposal
companies being granted license to operate currently in the
market, and the quantity of hazardous waste produced from
upstream manufacturers has not increased relatively, it resulted
in keen competition of hazardous waste among disposal
companies. The competition has become fierce, and it has also
increased the bargaining power of the intermediary agency
in hazardous waste distribution market. Intermediary agency
fee will be determined on the quantity of hazardous waste
discharged by a cooperative hazardous waste disposal unit.
Intermediary agency fee would constitute one of the major costs
to an entity running hazardous waste disposal operations and
affect the Group’s profitability performance.

The Group will strengthen its own marketing function and
the contractual relationship with all existing clients as well as
the cooperative relationship with the intermediary agencies
emerging in the market in order to ensure the Group operate in
a stable manner under the transitional change.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group engages in hazardous waste incineration to reduce
quantity of hazardous waste and to decompose hazardous waste
through high temperature incineration process, to landfill the
hazardous waste and post incineration residue, and handling
industrial sewage discharging by clients in an industrial zone that
faces environmental and social responsibility risks, which might
be caused by incidental breach of environmental emission limits,
incidental safety issues, contamination to land, and incidental
adverse waste discharging conditions caused by clients, and
which could have negative impact to the environmental waste
treatment operations of the Group.

The Group has sought for high quality plant construction design,
and implemented stringent controls over the construction of
new projects. The Group has to continuously upgrade the
efficiency of the existing plant and equipment and to enhance
the project management standards from time to time. The
Group has its own project management team and will appoint
independent professionals to report on environmental emissions
periodically and to monitor all possible environmental impact to
the society.

The scale of the Group’s operations has changed moderately
which from time to time, increases the significance of internal
control risks arising from the uncertainties of effectiveness and
achievement of the objective of risk management and internal
control systems, or ineffectiveness of the internal control due
to any defective critical point subsisted in the risk management
and internal control systems or any improper internal control
measure.

The Group has continuously monitored the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group by appointing independent professional consultants to
carrying out internal control review on all key operations of
the Group periodically. The Group has assigned designated
staffs to monitor each key operation of the Group who would
strengthen the liaison between the Group’s headquarter in Hong
Kong, district head office in Jiangsu and all project companies,
and from time to time, keep informed of the status of the
projects and ensure the top management’s policies are being
implemented in a timely and effective manner.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEES B R DN

The impact of economic conditions on local industries in the
Mainland China would affect the quantities of hazardous
waste discharged and the treatment service pricing for the
specific market offered by specific client base of the Group for
environmental waste treatment and disposal services.

The Group has to continue its business strategy to strengthen
penetration of different geographical markets and thereby to
reduce its dependency and further investment on the specific
markets.

Loss of key personnel and lack of appropriately experienced
human resources would result in a delay in achieving the Group’s
strategic goals and development of new projects.

The Company has to review the organisational structure of the
Group and responsibilities and duties of all key staff members
regularly and to mitigate any possible loss on human capital
by regular reviews of recruitment and retention practices,
remuneration packages and succession planning within the
management team and to motivate the staff by implementation
of the share option scheme of the Company.

The Group has faced credit risk attributable to the
underperforming accounts receivable from distressed clients
during the period of increased economic uncertainties.
The Company faces the challenge of inputting subjective
forward-looking information into the assessment of whether
credit risk on the accounts receivable has changed from time to
time. The Company would perform both individual and collective
assessments on the recoverability of underperforming accounts
due from clients grouped by locations in different industrial
parks in Jiangsu Province, the PRC. As all clients of the Group
have to comply with strict environmental regulations to timely
handle the hazardous waste produced in their manufacturing
process, they have to engage with qualified service provider(s) to
collect, manage, decompose and finally landfill their hazardous
waste produced in order to avoid non-compliance penalties
or even being ordered to shut down. Those clients facing
risks of financial stress from increased economic uncertainties
would request for concessions against the current terms of
their contracts with the Group, delayed settlement of invoiced
amounts, and even involve the local authority in charge of the
industrial parks where they located to intervene in mediation
and debts recovery.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group would incorporate impacts of economic uncertainty
and economic revival on the risk of default into the probability
of default for individual exposures on a timely basis, incorporate
qualitative factors as there were changes in client’s payment
behaviour, engage with independent professional valuer to
assess if there were significant changes in credit risks on a
collective basis, and review allowance on lifetime expected
credit loss upon the deviation of contractual payment terms
by client(s). The Group would limit its exposure to credit risk
by rigorously selecting the counterparties (i.e. the clients, the
customers, lessees in the Eco-plating Specialised Zone, the
hazardous waste producers, and the market intermediaries) and
explore prudently for opportunities of business optimisation and
market diversification.

The Group faces various financial risks that have been disclosed
in note 43 to the financial statements on pages 265 to 272 of
this report.
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
I F B H

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

REXELE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=t-ALEE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-_ME T=F =T —E-—F Z—ET_ETF
HK$'000 HK$\0070 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FAT T FAT FAT
(Restated)
(eE5)
Continuing operations @& ¥
Revenue U 5 \ 349,416 405,612 516,141 727,167 789,341
Cost of sales $HE R A (294,585) (340,195) (397,313) (535,502) (569,558)
Gross profit E5 54,831 65,417 118,828 191,665 219,783
Other revenue H U 3,745 3,945 4,249 4,637 4,107
Gain on disposal of HE—KWEB QA
interest in a subsidiary o W ER - - 27,303 - -
Other income LY IITON 5,705 6,781 11,203 7,407 13,443
Distribution costs 53 88 B AN (17,585) (19,263) (22,090) (23,916) (6,971)
Administrative expenses 1T X (43,699) (49,771) (58,572) (59,718) (56,433)
Research and e
development expenses \ (5,716) (6,055) (7,351) (7,775) (7,389)
Impairment loss on assets DERFELEEE
classified as held for sale 7 il {8 /& 18 = - - - (12,636)
Reversal of impairment  f& Y2 BR RURL(E
loss/(impairment loss) BiEO%
on trade receivables, net (REFIE) « FH 5,009 15,672 (2,185) (28,685) (9,526)
Other operating expenses H fth 48 & f 32 (7,031) (15,451) (13,558) (10,051) (17,136)
Operating (loss)/profit (BB SRF (4,741) 1,275 57,827 73,564 127,242
Finance income A WA 4,550 5,469 5,420 4,140 402
Finance costs A& B AR (1,811) (3,780) (5,683) (6,521) (9,564)
Finance income/(costs),  BRE WA (B A) -
net R 2,739 1,689 (263) (2,381) (9,162)
Share of results of DG E AT
associates ZEE (9,445) (9,416) (7,250) (6,389) 10,302
Share of results of a joint 215 —RKA& &
venture Epd ¥ (10,660) (11,726) (13,044) (4,440) (1,835)
(Loss)/profit before B AT (BE)
taxation /mﬂ (22,107) (18,178) 37,270 60,354 126,547
Income tax FRiS L (9,498) (13,053) (20,033) (7,436) (24,501)
(Loss)/profit from REFELEER
continuing operations (B18) =7 (31,605) (31,231) 17,237 52,918 102,046
Discontinued operation B #& IF 48 % ¥7&
Loss from discontinued R B B & A& & ¥ 7
operation &8 - (4,536) (12,673) = =
(Loss)/profit for FE(BE) &mA
the year (31,605) (35,767) 4,564 52,918 102,046
(Loss)/profit for the DUDTATEEEE
year attributable to: (E#8) aF
Owners of the Company A2 A#EA A (26,335) (33,118) 7,273 40,419 74,576
Non-controlling interests  FE4% % 7 &= (5,270) (2,649) (2,709) 12,499 27,470
(31,605) (35,767) 4,564 52,918 102,046
Dividend declared for the BEFEXEMT IR
results of the year % & 4,857 4,857 11,536 11,839 21,857
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
IFHBHE

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES #HZ&EEREAE
As at 31 December
R+t=-—A=+—H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—EoNE —E-=F —ZE-— —E-—F ZE-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET FET FHT FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and WME - BE K
equipment B 516,681 578,436 651,164 755,547 789,633
Right-of-use assets TRAREEE 93,767 98,547 103,159 111,053 129,640
Goodwill EES 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,000
Interests in associates NI 125,065 138,899 153,450 175,835 180,175
Interest in a joint venture RM—REEEZ
e 22,098 33,683 35,213 51,990 47,400
Equity investments at fair i 1@ H fh 2 E W5 1%
value through other RNEEARZ
comprehensive income X AIZE
(non-recycling) (A E1E) 98,400 81,500 70,300 80,800 118,100
Deferred tax assets RIEFIIEE E 4,415 5,846 10,229 10,154 -
893,426 969,911 1,056,515 1,218,379 1,297,948
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 3,876 4,936 7,037 6,718 6,062
Trade and bills EUWER R &
receivables =g 67,973 92,617 106,499 150,022 129,438
Prepayments, deposits FERNRIE  HeRkHE
and other receivables b & Y 5K T8 43,317 32,497 21,081 36,456 25,176
Contract assets BRHEE - = 32,652 22,591 1,534
Pledged bank deposits PR 62 |RITFEK 4,304 731 5,225 8,191 12,511
Cash and cash HekZERRE
equivalents 1E B 220,823 186,365 270,279 302,074 257,523
340,293 317,146 442,773 526,052 432,244
Assets classified as held D EARBIEHE®
for sale BE 13,896 14,367 14,758 39,580 15,411
354,189 331,513 457,531 565,632 447,655
Total assets BMEE 1,247,615 1,301,424 1,514,046 1,784,011 1,745,603
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
h & 8B 2

o AL S = (4
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES #EEEREGE (&
(continued)
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—A”
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—EoNE —TE-=F —ZE-— —EB-—F ZE-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAET FET FET
Current liabilities RBEE
Bank borrowings RITIEE 44,752 44,000 97,959 198,970 178,905
Other borrowing HiEE - - - - 25,000
Trade and bills payables B ERF M E & 38,613 59,392 69,739 78,607 66,315
Accrued liabilities and EitaEREMEN

other payables IR 155,167 137,374 218,612 228,986 226,539
Lease liabilities HEaRE - 332 326 750 117
Contract liabilities AHEE 4,603 4,272 3,190 38,507 25,011
Deferred government ST AT

grants # AL 1,595 1,881 1,935 2,057 1,106
Income tax payable FEFR1S B 2,132 2,729 5,575 6,094 6,251

246,862 249,980 397,336 553,971 529,244
Non—current liabilities I REBERE
Bank borrowings RITIEE - - - - 10,130
Lease liabilities HEBE - = 341 720 30
Deferred government iR SE B

grants 7 Ah 6,715 8,360 10,462 13,431 5,327

Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE 29,588 29,725 30,400 33,079 37,535

36,303 38,085 41,203 47,230 53,022
Total liabilities wmes 283,165 288,065 438,539 601,201 582,266
Net current assets/ RBEE(AR)

(liabilities) FE 107,327 81,533 60,195 11,661 (81,589)
Net assets EEFE 964,450 1,013,359 1,075,507 1,182,810 1,163,337
Share capital A& A 30,357 30,357 30,357 30,357 30,357
Reserves w1 838,696 877,894 931,320 1,022,422 1,004,070
Equity attributable b NN

to owners of the BEEAEMN

Company &N 869,053 908,251 961,677 1,052,779 1,034,427
Non-controlling interests  FE4% A% £ 25 95,397 105,108 113,830 130,031 128,910
Total equity RA4A%E 964,450 1,013,359 1,075,507 1,182,810 1,163,337
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SEMOR MANAGEMENT
EE ke EEERBRN

DIRECTORS
XI'Yu (“Mr. XI", aged 67)

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mr. XI was appointed as executive Director and nominated as the
Chairman of the Board on 11 April 2016. He was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 16 October 2018. He is the chairman
of the executive committee of the Board. Mr. Xl is the director and legal
representative of various major subsidiaries of the Group in the Mainland
China. He is also an officio member of the environmental, social and
governance committee of the Board.

Mr. XI was an executive Director from 7 June 2002 to 18 August 2014,
and was the Chairman of the Board, compliance officer and authorised
representative of the Company from 9 December 2004 to 18 August
2014. He has been a consultant to the Group from 22 August 2014 to 31
March 2016.

Mr. XI graduated from the Chemistry Department of the Peking University
in July 1980. Mr. Xl is the father of Ms. Erica XI. Mr. Xl is a director and
shareholder personally holding 83.66% equity interests in New Universe
Enterprises Limited (“NUEL") which in turn currently owns beneficial
interests in 36.54% of the issued shares of the Company. Mr. Xl is also the
director of New Universe Holdings Limited (“NUHL") and the director of its
subsidiaries, inclusive of Sun Ngai International Investment Limited (“Sun
Ngai”, which is principally engaged in property investment).

CHEUNG Siu Ling (“Ms. CHEUNG", aged 63)

Executive Director and Authorised Representative

Ms. CHEUNG was appointed as executive Director on 1 April 2005.
On 18 August 2014, Ms. CHEUNG was appointed as the authorised
representative and the process agent of the Company. She is a member
of the executive committee of the Board. Ms. CHEUNG is the director of
various major subsidiaries of the Group.

Ms. CHEUNG obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from
the University of South Australia in September 2005. Ms. CHEUNG is
a director of NUEL and shareholder personally holding 6.07% equity
interests in NUEL. She is also the director of NUHL and the director of its
subsidiaries, inclusive of Sun Ngai.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFhaREEEBMN

LIU Yu Jie (“Ms. LIU", aged 60)

Executive Director
Ms. LIU was appointed as executive Director on 9 June 2015. She is a
member of the executive committee of the Board.

Ms. LIU obtained a Bachelor of Economics degree in Foreign Trade from
the Dongbei University of Finance and Economics, China in July 1987
and a Postgraduate Diploma in International Trade from the University
of International Business and Economics, China in June 1990. Ms. LIU
was the former executive director of SIIC Environment Holdings Limited
(stock code: BHK, a company whose shares are listed on the Singapore
Exchange) from November 2009 to August 2014. Ms. LIU is currently a
non-executive director of China Water Affairs Group Limited (stock code:
855, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange) since
April 2023 and has been an executive director of that company from
September 2014 to April 2023. She is also an executive director of Kangda
International Environmental Company Limited (stock code: 6136, a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange) since April 2019,
and an independent non-executive director of Zhongyu Gas Holdings
Limited (stock code: 3633, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange) since June 2017.

JIANG Qian (“Ms. JIANG”, aged 36)

Executive Director
Ms. JIANG was appointed as an executive Director and a member of the
executive committee of the Board with effect from 30 June 2022.

Ms. JIANG obtained a Bachelor’'s degree in Economics from Xi‘an
University of Finance and Economics, China in June 2009, and a
Master’s degree in Finance from Fudan University, China in June
2012. Ms. JIANG obtained a Chartered Financial Analyst qualification
from the CFA Institute in May 2017, a fund practitioner qualification
from the Asset Management Association of China in June 2017, and
a Chinese legal professional qualification in April 2022. From July
2012 to September 2015, Ms. JIANG served as the senior investment
manager of the investment banking department Il of Hwabao Trust Co.,
Ltd. From September 2015 to January 2020, Ms. JIANG acted as the
investment director of the special investment department of CMIG Capital
Management Co., Ltd.*. Ms. JIANG is an executive director and a general
manager of Zhongmin Chuangfu Investment Management Co., Ltd.* since
January 2020, and is an executive director of the investments and mergers
and acquisitions department of CMIG Asia Asset Management Co., Ltd.*
since January 2021.
China Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 3639), since February

Ms. JIANG is also a non-executive director of Yida

2022, and a supervisor of Shanghai DoBe Cultural & Creative Industry
Development Group Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 300947), since March 2021.
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HON Wa Fai (“Mr. HON", aged 64)

Executive Director, Company Secretary, Financial Controller and
Authorised Representative

Mr. HON was appointed to the Group as financial controller on 6
September 2004. He was appointed as the qualified accountant, company
secretary and authorised representative of the Company on 6 October
2004, and appointed as executive Director on 28 September 2006. He is
a member of the executive committee of the Board. He joins as an officio
member of the environmental, social and governance committee of the
Board.

Mr. HON obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of Strathclyde, United Kingdom in November 2002, a Master
of Professional Accounting degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2001, and a Master of Applied Finance degree
from the University of Western Sydney, Australia in August 1999. He was
admitted as an Associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (formerly named as Hong Kong Society of Accountants)
in April 1994 and admitted as a Fellow in December 2002, and he is a
registered practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong since
November 1996. He was admitted as an Associate of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in May 1994 and admitted as a Fellow
in May 1999. He was admitted as a Senior Associate of the Financial
Services Institute of Australasia in June 1999, and an Associate with
the designations of Chartered Secretary and Chartered Governance
Professional of the Chartered Governance Institute (formerly named as the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators), United Kingdom
and the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly named
as the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries), Hong Kong, in
September 2000.

XI ' Man Shan Erica (“Ms. Erica XI”, aged 29)

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Erica XI was appointed as executive Director and a member of the
executive committee of the Board on 1 October 2020. She has been
re-designated from an executive Director to a non-executive Director and
resigned as a member of the executive committee of the Borad with effect
from 30 June 2022.

Ms. Erica Xl is the daughter of Mr. XI. She is a director of NUEL and
became a shareholder personally holding 2.10% equity interests in NUEL
with effect from 9 July 2024. Ms. Erica X| obtained a Bachelor of Laws
degree from the University of Bristol, United Kingdom in June 2017, a
Graduate Diploma in Law from University of Law, United Kingdom in July
2020, and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from Hong Kong University
in 2021. Ms. Erica Xl is a Counsel called to the Bar in Hong Kong in 2022.
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YANG Harry (“Mr. YANG”, aged 62)

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. YANG was appointed as an independent non-executive Director and
a member of each of the audit committee of the Board, the nomination
committee of the Board and the remuneration committee of the Board
with effect from 1 January 2023. He was also appointed as the chairman
of the audit committee and the environmental, social and governance
committee of the Board with effect from 18 May 2023.

Mr. YANG obtained a Bachelor’'s degree majoring in English from the
Shandong Normal University, China in July 1983 and obtained a Master's
degree majoring in English for Foreign Trading from the University of
International Business and Economics, China in July 1989. Mr. YANG
joined the Sinochem Group as a section officer from August 1989 to
July 1991. Mr. YANG then served as a general manager and a director
of Sinochem (USA) Inc. from July 1991 to August 1998 and as a general
manager and managing director of Sinochem International Oil London
Co., Ltd. from August 1998 to August 2001. From August 2001 to
February 2006, Mr. YANG served as a general manager and the vice
chairman of the board of US Agri-Chemicals Corporation. Mr. YANG was
the former executive director of Sinofert Holdings Limited (stock code:
297, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange) from 6
March 2006 to 20 March 2023. Mr. YANG has accumulated extensive
experience in international trade and international petroleum and fertiliser
business.

HO Yau Hong, Alfred (“Mr. HO", aged 67)

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. HO was appointed as independent non-executive Director on 30
September 2004 and was appointed as the chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Board on 19 March 2012. He is a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of the Board and is an officio
member of the environmental, social and governance committee of the
Board.

Mr. HO obtained a Bachelor of Commerce (Honours) degree from
University of Windsor, Windsor, Canada in September 1984. Mr. HO
was admitted as a Canadian Chartered Accountant in December 1988, a
Fellow Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in September 1997, and a Fellow of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong in April 2001. Mr. HO was the former part-time
professor in accounting and auditing at Algonquin College, Ottawa,
Canada from September 1990 to April 1995. He was the former facilitator
for the Qualification Program of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in taxation from 2001 to 2015. He was the former
part-time tutor in taxation at the Open University of Hong Kong from
March 2006 to September 2007, and was the former part-time lecturer/
senior lecturer in taxation and accounting at the Hong Kong Shue Yan
University from September 2014 to May 2018. Mr. HO was the former
finance director of Sinosoft Technology PLC (a company whose shares
had previously been listed on the London Stock Exchange) from October
2007 to April 2009. Mr. HO is currently practising in Hong Kong with his
own accounting firm and as a director in corporate practice with Christian
Alliance CPA Limited.
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XIANG Ling (“Ms. XIANG, aged 53)

Independent Non-Executive Director

Ms. XIANG was appointed as an independent non-executive Director and a
member each of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the
remuneration committee of the Board with effect from 1 October 2024.
She is also an officio member of the environmental, social and governance
committee of the Board.

Ms. XIANG graduated from Dalian University of Science and Technology,
Dalian, the PRC with a Bachelor of Arts degree with major in English
of Science and Technology in July 1994. She also obtained from
Nanjing University, Nanjing, the PRC with a Master’s degree of Business
Administration and Nazareth University, Rochester, USA with a Master’s
degree of Science in Education in May 2001 and December 2018
respectively. Ms. XIANG has accumulated experience in international trade
and business administration.

Notes:

(@)  Ms. XIANG shall retire and, being eligible, offer herself for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with article
83(3) of the Company'’s articles of association. Mr. HO, Ms. JIANG and
Ms. Erica Xl shall retire from the office as Directors by rotation and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting in accordance with article 84 of the Company’s
articles of association.

(b)  Details of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements on pages 206 to 207 of this annual report.

(c)  Save as disclosed therein, there are no other information relating to the
Directors is to be disclosed pursuant to the Rules 13.51(2) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WONG Lai Wa (“"Ms. WONG"”, aged 54)

Deputy General Manager of the Company

Supervisor of Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco-electroplating Development Limited

Supervisor of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company
Limited

Supervisor of Jiangsu Xinyu Environmental Company Limited*

Supervisor of Zhenjiang Xinrong Environmental Technologies Limited*

Ms. WONG was appointed as deputy general manager of the Company in

June 2007. She is currently the supervisor of 4 major subsidiaries of the

Group in the Mainland China. Ms. WONG obtained a Diploma in Business

Management from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in October 2005.

She was formerly an accountant of NUHL from April 2003 to September

2008.
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LIU Yuan (“Ms. LIU Yuan”, aged 54)

Vice President of the Company
Director & General Manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste
Disposal Company Limited
Director of Yancheng NUHF Environmental Technology Limited*
Director of Xiangshui New Universe Environmental Technology Limited
Director of Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste Disposal Limited*
Director of Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Tianyu Solid Waste Disposal
Company Limited
Director of Liuzhou Xinyu Rongkai Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited*
Ms. LIU Yuan was appointed as vice president of the Company in August
2018. She is currently the director and/or the general manager of various
major subsidiaries of the Group in the Mainland China. Ms. LIU Yuan was
appointed as a finance manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste
Disposal Company Limited in April 2003 and then promoted to deputy
general manager in September 2005. She was appointed as director
and general manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal
Company Limited in January 2009. Ms. LIU Yuan graduated from Nanjing
College of Economics (now renamed as Nanjing University of Finance and
Economics) with a Professional Certificate in Accounting and Statistics in
June 1998, and she was conferred the title of intermediate accountant in
China in May 2001.

GU Lin ("Mr. GU", aged 55)

Chief Engineer of the Company

Deputy General Manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal
Company Limited

Deputy General Manager of Jiangsu Xinyu Environmental Company
Limited*

Mr. GU was appointed as chief engineer of the Company in December

2018. He is currently the deputy general manager of Jiangsu Xinyu

Environmental Company Limited*. Mr. GU is the deputy general manager

of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited since

October 2007. Mr. GU obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from

the Jilin University, China, in chemical engineering in 1991. He was

conferred the professional qualification of senior engineer (specialised in

petrochemical engineering) in China in October 2012.
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YANG Jun Rong (“Mr. YANG Junrong”, aged 57)

Deputy General Manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal
Company Limited
Deputy General Manager of Jiangsu Xinyu Environmental Company
Limited*
Director of Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste Disposal Limited*
Mr. YANG Junrong is currently the deputy general manager of Jiangsu
Xinyu Environmental Company Limited taking charge of the marketing
function of the Group. Mr. YANG Junrong is also the deputy general
manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company
Limited since January 2009. Mr. YANG Junrong obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree from the Nanjing Institute of Aeronautics (now renamed as
Nanjing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics) in materials science of
corrosion and protection. He was conferred the professional qualification
of senior environment engineering project manager (specialised in waste
treatment) in China in March 2015.

CHEN Hong Ye (“Mr. CHEN Hongye”, aged 46)

General Manager of Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco-electroplating Development
Limited

Mr. CHEN Hongye was appointed as the general manager of the Group’s
subsidiary, Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco-electroplating Development Limited
in September 2023. Mr. CHEN Hongye has worked as a manager in
the sewage treatment plant of Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco-electroplating
Development Limited from November 2008 to December 2009. He has
worked as R&D project manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste
Disposal Company Limited from January 2010 to May 2011. Mr. CHEN
Hongye was appointed as the general manager of Zhenjiang Xin Qu
Solid Waste Disposal Limited* from May 2011 to March 2014. Mr. CHEN
Hongye obtained a Master’'s postgraduate certificate specialised in
business administration from the Guizhou University, China, in July 2016.
He was conferred the intermediate engineering technology professional
qualification of engineer in Zhenjiang, China in June 2010.

* For identification purpose only

Eid o i)

B ([5E&EEEE] - 578%)

fE/Ifﬁ%E EEY G B H IR 2 7] 5| A8 AE 2
FFTTIRIR B IR 2\ 7] BIABASTE

TR B ER G BR N A EF
BEETERRETDIGHTFRERRAAE
BEBAGASEMSEEH BT NEF—
AR BEREEENEFEINFTEEEYRER
EEFE AR BT - 15 RETERSE M

Bt (RERBAERMEMAKNE) M EE
EWEQEEBE EEXTERESEBL  BFRIFT
—hAFZAEFRTRSHARRFIEEE EERM
(BFIRIEREEY) BEAR -

B%//\%E((B%//\%’é?ﬁij) ’ 46}47_;2)
FTER TR E R G IR A B TE

RAELCER T -_ZFNAREZETEAEEH
MEBARBITEREERBERFERER AR
BB - RRAELERE ST NF+—AE
_%gﬂiJr;ﬁTJ%E%E/IiﬂiﬁE@?fFﬂ
RERABRAGSKEERRLE RZT—
i—ﬂﬁig——ﬁﬁﬂ?ﬁgﬁﬁiﬁéﬁ?—‘%f%i
BEMEEERATIMNIEE MEILE KT
——FRRAE-ZE-NF=ZAREREIARHET
FREBEEERMNARAFBLIE - FEEL
ERZZFE—AFLtARNBHFHEREMNAEZIEE
BEXEIHREEEZFE RZT—ZFA
RENSHREIMIEENPREERNT
FRRDEHE o

“ECMEFER HFRAEEERAF 45



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

&

Notes:

management, other than Directors, fell within the following bands: THIAR :
2024 2023
—EmE —E=F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AEL

Emolument bands (in HK dollar) B8R (LASITE)
Nil to HK$500,000 T T E500,0008 7T - -
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7L 1,000,000/ 7T 4 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 21,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 1
5 5
(b)  The equity-settled share-based compensations of the above-mentioned  (b) MSAI SR EIREKE (EEHRIN) URRA

5 members of senior management, other than Directors, were set out as % ST E IR EER A 2SS mT -

Sk REEEGDN

EE

The emoluments of the above-mentioned members of senior  (a)

tsREEERE (EERIN 2B

follows:

Granted on
18 January 2022
and vested on

Granted on
15 January 2021
and vested on

Granted on
15 January 2020
and vested on

18 May 2023 26 August 2022 7 May 2021
S RZT=Z—%F RIT_TF
—A+N\BET —AT+HREET —AT+HREET
ER-—ZT_= i ER-ZBE-—F RR-T-—%F
AA+N\BHEBE NAZ+ BEEB hAA+EHEBB
The total share options (the Faisfrh Z3Mm AR
"Options”) granted and vested BEIEEKE Unexercised and  Unexercised and
to 3 of the above-mentioned DEREEREBRE lapsed lapsed
5 members of senior management 42k ([ B A |) 7,814,000 REFTHEREERM REITERE XK
(i) The Options granted represent the number of shares to be issued (i) EETHEREEREE TEIREE

upon exercise in full of the Options granted which is subject to
adjustment according to the vesting conditions specified in each
particular offer letter.

2ETERBERTORGBE - TR
55 2 B 40 B0 2 88 B A A
AL -
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(iii)

(iv)

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SEMOR MANAGEMENT
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The Options granted on 15 January 2020 are exercisable at an
exercise price of HK$0.25 per share from the date of vesting to
the earlier of (i) the date on which the Options lapse in accordance
with the terms of the share option scheme; or (ii) the 30th
business day after the date of publication of the annual results
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022, of which
the vested options were unexercised and have lapsed on 11 May
2023.

The Options granted on 15 January 2021 are exercisable at an
exercise price of HK$0.272 per share. From the date of publication
of the annual results of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023 (the “2023 Results Date”) to the earlier of (i) the
date on which such Options lapses in accordance with the terms
of the share option scheme; or (ii) the 90th business day after the
2023 Results Date. The vested options were unexercised and have
lapsed on 6 August 2024.

The Options granted on 18 January 2022 are exercisable at an
exercise price of HK$0.308 per share. Subject to the Options
having been vested, the Options vested are exercisable from the
date of publication of the annual results of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (the “2024 Results Date”) to the
earlier of (i) the date on which such Options lapses in accordance
with the terms of the share option scheme; or (ii) the 90th
business day after the 2024 Results Date.

(if)

(iii)

(iv)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
tTXERRSE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of New Universe
Environmental Group Limited (the “Company” together with its
subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”) are pleased to present
the corporate governance report for the year ended 31 December 2024.

A. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(@) The Board and the management are committed to upholding
good corporate governance practices and business ethics.
The Company believes that maintenance of high standard of
business ethics and good corporate governance is essential for
effective management, healthy business growth and fostering
a contemporary corporate culture, which drives the Group
to growing sustainably and safeguarding the interests of the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”).

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company
has applied the principles of and complied with the code
provisions set out in Part 2 of Appendix C1 Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”),
but save for the code provision C.2.1, the Directors confirmed
that they were not aware of any other deviation from the CG
Code for the year then ended.

(c)  Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. With
effect from 16 October 2018, Mr. XI Yu, the chairman of the
Board (“Chairman”), has assumed the role of both Chairman
and chief executive officer (“CEQ") of the Company. As such,
starting from 16 October 2018, the assumption of the dual
role of both Chairman and CEO by Mr. XI Yu constitutes a
deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.
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B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(a)

Composition of the Board

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine
members, consisting of five executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xl Yu (Chairman and CEO)

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling

Ms. LIU Yu Jie

Ms. JIANG Qian

Mr. HON Wa Fai (Financial Controller and Company Secretary)

Non-executive Director
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. YANG Harry

Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred

Ms. XIANG Ling et

Note:

Ms. XIANG Ling was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 1 October 2024.

Operation of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors
business and performance. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management
and operations of the Group to the senior management of
the Company. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs, the Board has established five Board committees
including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”),
the environmental, social and governance (“ESG"”) committee
(the "ESG Committee”) and the executive committee (the
"Executive Committee”) (collectively referred to as the
“Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board
Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective terms
of reference.
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(c) Composition of the Board Committees () =

The Company established five Board Committees. The table
below provides membership information of these committees

i Bt

EELZ B 2MAK
NARERABESEZEET - TK

S E - -_mE+-_A=+—

on which each Board member served for the year ended 31 HIEFEREESKREMMBEALT
December 2024 as follows: EXEGZEEERDTT
Audit Nomination  Remuneration ESG Executive
Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
ERZEE REZEE yMzEg ESGEEE BiTZEE
Mr. XI Yu EX%H C M C
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling RPRLT M
Ms. LIU Yu Jie HEARL M
Ms. JJANG Qian BfEat M
Mr. HON Wa Fai BERLA M M
Mr. YANG Harry BRERE C M M C
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred MhELE M M C M
Ms. XIANG Ling mE Rt M* M* M* M*
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael B &I4T 2 & M** (G M** M¥*
Notes: Wi
(@ Chairman of the Nomination Committee with effect ct: BE-Z_UFE+ANBEE
from 9 October 2024 FREZB®XRE
€ Chairman of the relevant Board committee C: EHESZEG X
M: Member of the relevant Board committee M : EE@%%%,\ @ 7B
M*: Member of the relevant Board committee with effect M* BE-T-mMFE+A—BEE
from 1 October 2024 FEHEEEZLZESLKE
C**/M**: Chairman and member of the Nomination Committee CoM ETIRFREESERNEKE

and member of the relevant Board committee up to the
effective date of resignation on 9 October 2024
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(d)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Directors’ attendance to board meetings and
shareholders’ meeting(s)

The following table shows the attendance record of each
Board member for the board meetings and Shareholders’
meetings of the Company held during the year ended 31
December 2024:

fa

XE AR S

d EFEREFEERIMER

PN

FHHFEIBENR

TEREATSESTENERNARRAE
EZT-_NFEF+ZA=+—HLEHF
EARTZEEFEERELRREARY
2 8

Number of meetings attended/held

HEBIT2EBRE
Directors’
meeting
Regular Non-regular pursuant to Annual
Board Board CG Code general
meeting meeting Cc.2.7 meeting
BREBLE
ERTA
EC2.7%
EHESS EEH B2 REBF
Board member EEERE B EZS2g8E EZ883 g
Executive Director BITES
Mr. XI Yu EERAEE 4/4 2/2 171 11
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling RN R L 4/4 2/2 - 1/1
Ms. LIU Yu Jie E RO 4/4 2/2 - 0/1
Ms. JIANG Qian BEZT 4/4 2/2 - 0/1
Mr. HON Wa Fai BEBEL 4/4 2/2 - 171
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica Zi4+ 3/4 2/2 - 0/1
Independent non-executive  BIFEHITES
Director
Mr. YANG Harry BRERE 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred ¥ EE S A 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1
Ms. XIANG Ling ®ete 1) m¥ L i 1/1 11 = =
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael o &l 4T o A4 ()
=22 3/3 1/1 1/1 1/1
Notes: K1z -

1. Ms. XIANG Ling was appointed as independent
non-executive Director with effect from 1 October 2024.

2. Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael resigned as independent
non-executive Director with effect from 9 October 2024.
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% EARS
(e) Directors’ attendance to the meetings of Board e) EFENEELE EolE)
Committees EEIER
(i) Meetings of Audit Committee () HBEZEeoH
The following was an attendance record for the Audit UWTABZ-Z-_mMF+=
Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 A=+—HILFERITHNE
December 2024: REEEEEMNLFLE:
Number of meetings
Committee member attended/held
ZEERE HE " BIT2EBRH
Mr. YANG Harry BRERE
(chairman of committee) (ZEEE/E) 4/4
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred A% B 5 & 4/4
Ms. XIANG Ling ¥+ 1/1
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael BT 14T 45 A4 3/3
(i) Meetings of Nomination Committee (i) 1BEZE=eD%
The following was an attendance record for the LWTA#BzZ2-Z-_MF+=
Nomination Committee meetings held during the year A=+ HIEFEZ21780IE
ended 31 December 2024: HEEEERNEFRLE:
Number of meetings
Committee member attended/held
ZEERE HE " BI2EBRE
Mr. XI Yu (chairman of committee) EXhAE(ZEESLE) -
Mr. YANG Harry BB EE 2/2
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred fAIsh R L& 2/2
Ms. XIANG Ling m¥e R+ -
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael breldl sk (BIFZE S F /)
(ex-chairman of committee) 2/2
(i) Meetings of Remuneration Committee (i) FHWES oo
The following was an attendance record for the LWTABZ2-_Z_-_MF+=

Remuneration Committee meetings held during the year
ended 31 December 2024:

Committee member

A=+ —HLEFERTONH

A

= = A A2
ZEEEE

B RO 8%

Number of meetings
attended/held

ZEE8/HE HEBITZEERE
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred AR RS 4

(chairman of committee) (ZEZF)FE) 2/2
Mr. YANG Harry BRREEE 2/2
Ms. XIANG Ling Mg+ -
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael Bl 4T S5 £ 2/2
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(v)
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T XERA®RS

Meetings of ESG Committee (iv) ESGEE© D

= 8 7%
The following was an attendance record for the ESG
Committee meetings held during the year ended 31

December 2024: ZESEHNLERLE

]

UWTAEZ2-_Z-_WF+=
A=+—BIFERITHESG

Number of meetings

Committee member attended/held
ZEERE HE " BIzE8B2H™
Mr. YANG Harry (chairman of the committee) BRESE(ZEEETE) 1/1
Mr. XI Yu (CEO) EERSE(ITHER) 0/1
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred 36 R 7 & 11
Ms. XIANG Ling ¥+ 1/1
Mr. HON Wa Fai (company secretary) BEESLEE (NAIWE) 11
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael e & 4T 5% A= -
Meetings of Executive Committee v) HBITEESLHE
There was no meeting of the Executive Committee held Hz_—_Z_MWF+ = A
during the year ended 31 December 2024. =T+ —HBIEFETERTH
TERREH -
Number of meetings
Committee member attended/held
ZE8E8/HE HEBIT2EERE
Mr. XI Yu (chairman of committee) ZXGuE (ZEEEE) S
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling RN E L -
Ms. LIU Yu Jie BIERLZL =
Ms. JIANG Qian BBzt -
Mr. HON Wa Fai BRI A =

—E_NEFR FFERREEERAQ

=
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Responsibilities, accountabilities and
contributions of Board and management

Every Director on Board knows his/her responsibilities as a
Director and its conduct, business activities and development.
Independent non-executive Directors have the same duties of
care and skill and fiduciary duties as executive Directors.

The Directors, collectively and individually, are aware of their
responsibilities to shareholders of the Company, for the
manner in which the affairs of the Company and the Group
are managed and operated. In the appropriate circumstances
and as and when necessary, Directors will seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense, ensuring the
board procedures, all applicable rules and regulations, are
followed.

The Board has overall responsibility for the stewardship of the
Group and gives clear directions as to the power delegated
to the management of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the management and administration functions of the
Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management of the Company and its subsidiaries should
report back in a timely manner to the Board and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering
into any commitments on behalf of the Group or in the name
of any member of the Group. The Board will review those
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.

Matters requiring the Board’s approval include, among others,
(i) review of overall policies and objectives for corporate
capital contributions, (ii) corporate budgets, (iii) corporate
plans of the Company and its subsidiaries, and any significant
changes thereto, (iv) investment plans involving significant
commitments of financial, technological and human
resources, or involving significant risks for the Company, (v)
major sales, transfers, or other dispositions of properties or
assets of the Group, (vi) significant changes in the Board'’s
policies, (vii) major organisational changes, (viii) financial
statements of the Group, including annual report, semi-annual
and quarterly financial reports and monthly operating
results, (ix) borrowing and financial arrangement, and (x)
other matters relating to the Group’s business which in the
judgement of the Chairman and/or the CEO of the Company
are of such significance to merit the Board’s consideration,
and adoption of such policies or such actions taken as the
Board considers to be in the best interests of the Company.
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In order to ensure that the Board can obtain effective,
diversified and independent views and opinions, the Company
has established an evaluation and review mechanism to
enhance the accountability of Directors and provide valuable
feedback information that can help improve the effectiveness
of the Board, give full play to its advantages, and point out
areas for further development.

The operation of such mechanism is summarised as follows:

(@) the Board may conduct internal evaluations (led by
independent non-executive directors) and solicit
opinions from Directors on the performance of the
Board in the form of questionnaires and/or interviews;

(b) the Board may also invite senior executives and key
stakeholders to provide useful opinions. Appropriate
improvements can be made in each assessment,
focusing on the progress in solving the main issues
raised in the previous assessment. The evaluation report
will be submitted to the Board to discuss the results and
action plans for improvement;

(c)  after the Board'’s evaluation, the Company will disclose
the results of the Board’s evaluation in the corporate
governance report to achieve accountability and
transparency. In addition to disclosing the results of
the Board’ evaluation, the Company will also set out
(i) the purpose and scope of the Board’s evaluation; (ii)
the method of evaluation; (iii) the criteria used for the
evaluation; and (iv) the action plan to be taken (such as
Directors’ training); and

(d) the Board may also hire independent professional
companies or persons to evaluate the Board, as an
auxiliary method in addition to the evaluation of the
Board by internal leaders.
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All executive Directors and non-executive Directors bring in a
variety of experience and expertise to the Company with their
respective responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions

set out as follows:

ORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TR WS

(i) Function of Executive Directors

Name

e

Position
A

FIBRTESERINTESTRAR
AFREZERLRER HEXA
ZBE HMERAER#EIET

() BTTEFA)BEE

Current Function

RRHE

Mr. XI'Yu

EERE

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling

FPRRL

Ms. LIU Yu Jie

HEARL

Ms. JIANG Qian

BEat

Mr. HON Wa Fai

BEERE

Chairman, CEO and
executive Director

IR THERR
ynEs

Executive Director

Executive Director

YiTES

Executive Director

8%

Executive Director, financial
controller and company
secretary

YITES MHEER

REWE

Leading the Board

Developing vision and strategies of the Group

Developing long term mission of the Group

Ensuring good corporate governance functions and practices
Formulating strategic planning and direction

Developing corporate goals, targets, objectives and ESG commitment of the
Group

Investors relations

BEERE

HAARENES RER

HEAEENRBRS

BRAFCEERERERER

BRRERERA R
HEASEAZER BN RERURE  HeRERMER
RE®BHE

Implementing corporate governance practices

Implementing procedures to ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations

Administration of head office

Human resources management of the Group

Overseeing daily operations of the Group through delegations
YOLEERER
HTRFURRA S EREE - AR RAM
ERERNTHER

FEENANERER

FRZRERARERREE

Advising on PRC compliance and corporate finance of the Company

Advising on merger and acquisition and investment opportunities for the Group
RAARETREER RO ERERMER
RARENGRRREAHSREER

Advising on PRC compliance and corporate finance of the Company

Advising on merger and acquisition and investment opportunities for the Group
AARFETPEERRCXRARMER
RASENERRARERHER

Overseeing financial reporting, accounting, treasury, financial control, compliance
functions and ESG commitment of the Company

Formulating merger and acquisition exercises

Investors relations

EERRANMBRE gt B BBEE  SRVEREERE HeRE
A

REGREED

REERE
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Function of non-executive Directors

Independence

Bt
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(i)  FEBTTEFELIBEE

Current Function

B B BBL e

Ms. XI Man Shan Erica

ES'¢ e

Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael

Brald 4

Mr. YANG Harry

Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred

fhEEE

Ms. XIANG Ling

RRZL

- Advising on corporate governance practices

- Advising on procedures to ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations

- REXERRRRHER

- HARREFGSEREE RTRANREE

- Advising on auditing, taxation, compliance and financial matters

- Monitoring risk management and internal control functions of the Group

- Bringing in independent judgement on issues of policy, performances, accountancy,
taxation, key appointments and standards of conduct

- Serving on audit, remuneration and nomination committees

- Scrutinising the Company's performance in achieving corporate goals and objectives

- Possessing with professional accounting qualification and financial experience

- HER BE ARRMBEERKE

- ERARENERE E&W%WT%

- HBE - RR g BB FERERTARISEIELELAN

- ERREN ﬁ%&k%ééﬁ

- BEARAERAFEESRFENRR

- RREXE +ﬁ%&%ﬁ#%

- Monitoring corporate government practices, risk management and internal control
functions of the Group

- Bringing in independent judgement on issues of corporate strategies, policy,
performances, key appointments, standards of conduct, and ESG commitment

- Serving on audit, remuneration, nomination and ESG committees

- Scrutinising the Company's performance in achieving corporate goals and objectives

- ERASENMREREREE ERERRADEEN

- ﬁg%%%~& VKB FERE AR RER HeRERNEEELEY
\/‘ £

- EBRER ‘M h%&BGéé@

- BEARAERLAERRRENRA

- Advising on auditing, taxation, compliance and financial matters

- Monitoring risk management and internal control functions of the Group

- Bringing in independent judgement on issues of policy, performances, accountancy,
taxation, key appointments, standards of conduct and ESG commitment

- Serving on audit, remuneration, nomination and ESG committees

- Scrutinising the Company's performance in achieving corporate goals and objectives

- Possessing with professional accounting qualification and financial experience

- BER HE SRRMBEEREE

- ERARENERE E&W%W¥ﬂ

- BEERB 8 HE FERT GARUNBERESR  HERERNEEED
BU AR

- EBRERFM- ﬁ%&ESG? &

- BEARAERAGAR mam%ﬁ

- hREXE Jﬁﬁ&%%#ﬁ

- Monitoring corporate government practices, risk management and internal control
functions of the Group

- Bringing in independent judgement on issues of corporate strategies, policy,
performances, key appointments, standards of conduct, and ESG commitment

- Serving on audit, remuneration, nomination and ESG committees

- Scrutinising the Company's performance in achieving corporate goals and objectives

- ERASENAREATRER BREERAPEAD

= ﬁg%ﬁ%‘ﬂ%\%ﬁ‘Egéﬁ\ﬁ%ﬁw‘&%ﬁ‘ﬁ@&%ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
Y

- GERNER M RARIGEER

- BEARAERAABRRRENRR
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(9)

Board meetings and procedures

The Board conducts regular board meetings at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Regular board
meetings of the Company shall involve active participation
and presence of a majority of Directors entitled to be present,
in person or through interactive electronic meeting or hybrid
meeting. Ad-hoc Board meetings are convened when a
board-level decision on a particular matter is required which
include obtaining Board consent through circulating written
resolutions or through interactive electronic meeting or
hybrid meeting. Board meetings are structured to allow open
discussion. All Directors have participated in discussing the
strategy, operational and financial performance, and risk
management and internal control of the Group.

The Chairman of the Board is primarily responsible for drawing
up and approving the agenda for each Board meeting. He
takes into account, where appropriate to ensure, any matter
proposed by the other Directors for inclusion in the agenda
for regular Board meetings. The Chairman delegates this
responsibility to the company secretary of the Company
appointed under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules (the “Company
Secretary”).

Notice of at least 14 days has been given for all regular Board
meetings of the Company. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notices have been given.

The Company Secretary shall be the secretary to the Board and
the officio secretary to all committees who is responsible for
keeping minutes of all Board meetings and meetings of Board
Committees. Minutes of all meetings are open for inspection
at reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Minutes of all Board meetings and meetings of Board
Committees have recorded in sufficient details the matters
considered and decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and
final versions of the Board minutes have been sent to all
Directors for their comments and records respectively, within a
reasonable time after the board meeting is held.

Any Director may request the Board in writing to seek for
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the expense of the Company. The Board shall resolve to
provide separate independent professional advice to the
Directors to assist them to discharge their duties to the
Company.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2024

**% =% éij&%

= Ak
EFgAMEBEEELEFRTOER
THEEFEER ARANTEHE

ERRRERREOBRLERENE
EEHR2HELFALFEIERTE
EFEHNBEEEE EZENRN
HREHRAESSHELATRKRT
BrlEseex HEEER8EM
ERRERIEREHETSHR
BRECHENESESERAE -ES
AT ARNR - FMEESZHES
BEmAERZRE  LERYE
RECURBRBERERANPEESE -

EEgIRIERERERIES
EFEegRNARE -REE (HHE
ENRBATHRR EMEEMER
MERERASATHEZTSER
M#EE  TEBUEERRTRIE
ETRRFEI28GKEZ IR AR A
ZRmME ([rEwE]D -

EANNE] Eﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬂ§$A’§E§
HEDI4RBHM -RAAEEMES
@@E%ﬁﬁm ABEHAEBRS

TWEM%§$AWME&X£
SrERANE BEEREFHMA
CERNEEZESEENE

umaﬁ EREEANAEERRE K
BHABERNGEMMESENE
LR ©

FMEESCeSZRESTLZECSH
VE R E RAFMALEATE B
MEEEFEKNAE  BREES
REMTEABEIIMRENRYE
R EEe2RCHNERRER
EREREZSSTRRITENEE
REARXTABES USRI
EHEGE R DR

FREEAUNERFANEE SR
HER  AREEBRTERER
RHUBYZEXER MERALRQ
BAE EFEREAFIRIZIMES
RUBUYEZEXER UBBHRER
THARRRMAZENRE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interests in a matter to be considered by the Board which
the Board has determined to be material, the matter shall be
dealt with by a Board meeting with all Directors be present
in person rather than a written resolution. The independent
non-executive Directors, who and whose associates have
no material interest in the transaction shall be present at
the Board meeting to deal with the matter. Other than the
exceptional situation under the Listing Rules, any Director who
or whose associates have any material interest in any proposed
Board resolutions shall not be counted as a quorum in the
relevant Board meeting or shall be abstained from voting for
the Board resolutions. All Board Committees adopted the
same principles and procedures used in the Board meetings.

Supply of and access to information
For regular board meetings, and as far as practicable in all

other cases, an agenda and accompanying board papers will
be sent, in full, to all Directors in a timely manner and at
least 3 days before the intended date of a Board or Board
committee meeting, and for other ad hoc or urgency meetings
at other agreed period.

The senior management of the Group is obliged to supply the
Board and its committees of the Company with appropriate
and adequate information through financial reports, business
and operational reports and budget statements in a timely
manner to keep the Board members informed of the latest
development of the Group. The Board members have the
right to access to the Group's information, board papers and
related materials from either the Chairman or the Company
Secretary. Where any Director requires more information
than is volunteered by the senior management, he/she
makes further enquiries where necessary and shall separate
and independent access to the senior management of the
Company.

Independence of independent non-executive

Directors
The Listing Rules stipulates that every listed issuer to have at

least three independent non-executive Directors representing
at least one-third of the Board, and at least one of whom
must have the appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. As at
31 December 2024, one independent non-executive Director
has the appropriate professional qualifications of accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors have been expressly
identified as such in all corporate communications that
disclose the names of the Directors.
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Each of the existing three independent non-executive
Directors has given an annual confirmation of his
independence to the Company, and the Company considers
them to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Based on the annual written confirmation given by each of
Mr. YANG Harry, Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred and Ms. XIANG
Ling to meet the criteria set out in the independence guideline
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
undertaking in writing given by each of them as to their
continuing independence, the Board believes that each of
Mr. YANG Harry, Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred and Ms. XIANG
Ling is independent.

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives among members
of the Board, it is the policy of the Company to consider a
wide range of criteria when deciding on appointments to the
Board and the continuation of those appointments. The Board
considers gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service to be relevant to the Company’s business.
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred is a practising certified public
accountants in Hong Kong. Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred is also
a fellow of the Taxation Institution of Hong Kong. Mr. YANG
Harry is experienced in the petroleum and agricultural
chemical industry. Ms. XIANG Ling is experienced in
international trade and business management. Each of Mr. HO
Yau Hong, Alfred, Mr. YANG Harry and Ms. XIANG Ling brings
to the Board via their professional qualifications, experience
and expertise in financial matters, management vision and
other technical skill set. The professional qualification, skills,
knowledge and experience of each of Mr. HO Yau Hong,
Alfred, Mr. YANG Harry and Ms. XIANG Ling provides the
Board with a range of perspectives, insights and challenge that
enable the Board to discharge its duties and responsibilities
effectively, support good decision making in view of the core
businesses and strategy of the Group, and support succession
planning and development of the Board.

Relationship between Board members
Each of Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling, being executive

Directors, and Ms. XI Man Shan Erica, being a non-executive
Director, each of them is also a director and shareholder of the
Company's controlling shareholder, New Universe Enterprises
Limited (“NUEL"), which holds approximately 36.54% (2023:
36.54%) of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31
December 2024.
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Both Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling are directors, and
Mr. XI Yu is one of the shareholders, of Sun Ngai International
Investment Limited (“Sun Ngai”), which is the landlord of the
office premises leased by the Group as head office in Hong
Kong for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Both Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling are directors of
China (HK) Chemical and Plastics Company Limited (“China
(HK) Chemical”) which is principally engaged in trading of
plastic resins in Hong Kong and China.

Both Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling are directors of New
Universe Holdings Limited (“NUHL"). NUHL is an investment
holding company that interested in 97% of the issued share
capital of China (HK) Chemical and 95% of the issued share
capital of Sun Ngai. Mr. XI Yu is beneficially interested in 5%
of the issued share capital of Sun Ngai and 0.4% of the issued
share capital of NUHL.

Ms. XI Man Shan Erica is the daughter of Mr. XI Yu.

To the best knowledge of the Company, save as disclosed
herein, there is no other financial, business and family
relationship among members of the Board and/or between
the Chairman and the CEO of the Company. All of the Board
members are free to exercise their independent judgement.

Newly appointed director during the current
year

During the year ended 31 December 2024, Ms. XIANG Ling
was newly appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 1 October 2024. Before her
appointment became effective, Ms. XIANG Ling has obtained
legal advice referred to in rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on
16 September 2024 from a lawyer of Loeb & Loeb LLP, a
firm of solicitors qualified to advise on Hong Kong law, and
Ms. XIANG Ling has confirmed she understood her obligations
as an independent non-executive director of a listed company.
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Continuous professional development of

Directors
Code provision C.1.4 stipulates that all Directors should

participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company should be responsible for arranging and funding
suitable training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director.

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
Shareholders and have exercised their duties with care, skill
and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group.

The Company implements an orientation programme
specifically designed for new directors to ensure they
become well-versed in the Group’s business activities,
understand its strategic direction, and are familiar with the
Company's corporate governance practices. In addition,
the Company takes measures to ensure that any director
without prior experience as a director of a listed company
undergoes comprehensive training focused on the roles
and responsibilities associated with being a director of a
listed entity. The orientation programme and training for
new directors are delivered through a combination of video
conferences and physical sessions, providing a balanced
and effective learning experience. This approach allows new
directors to engage with the relevant materials and interact
with key personnel in a manner that suits their schedules and
learning preferences.
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The Company Secretary regularly identifies and recommends
suitable training opportunities to the Chairman (who
is also the chairman of Nomination Committee). These
recommendations are based on an assessment of the evolving
regulatory landscape and the specific needs of the Board.
The Directors are kept informed of relevant developments on
a regular basis and are actively encouraged to stay updated
with changes in the regulatory and business environment. This
proactive approach helps Directors to make informed decisions
and fulfill their duties effectively. Moreover, Directors are
expected to take the initiative to seek out additional learning
opportunities on their own to maintain and enhance their
professional expertise in their respective areas. This self-driven
approach to professional development is essential for the
continued effectiveness of the Board and the overall success of
the Company.

The Chairman encourages all Directors and senior executives
to enroll professional development courses and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance/Companies
Law and Act, corporate governance practices and other
laws and regulations organised by professional bodies and
in-house trainings provided by the Company so that they
can continuously update and further improve their relevant
knowledge and skills.
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Corporate governance/
updates on laws,
rules and regulations

Accounting/finance/
management or other
professional knowledge
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Attend Attend
Reading seminar or Reading seminar or
materials briefing materials briefing
2mmsE Z2mMEE
Board member EE8HE BB R EACE: REM B EAE:
Executive Director HITES
Mr. XI Yu ;%E?EEE v v v v
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling R/NR 2+ v v v v/
Ms. LIU Yu Jie %IJfE?Mzt v v v v
Ms. JIANG Qian BBt v v v v
Mr. HON Wa Fai BREENE LA v v v v
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica EZi4+ v v v/ 4
Independent non-executive BIYFHITESE
Director
Mr. YANG Harry BRERE v v v v
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred fAIsh RS v v v v
Ms. XIANG Ling ML+ v v v v/
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael* [ &I|#T 55 4 * v v v v

resigned on 9 October 2024
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C. CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(a)

The identity of the Chairman and chief executive

Mr. XI Yu was appointed as the Chairman of the Board since
11 April 2016 and he was also appointed as the CEO of the
Company since 16 October 2018.

Deviation from the code provision C.2.1

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the CEO of the
Company should be carried out by different individuals which
have been clearly defined.

Since 16 October 2018, Mr. XI Yu has performed both of
the roles as the Chairman and the CEO of the Company.
This deviates from code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Part 2 of Appendix C1 of the
Listing Rules, which requires that the roles of Chairman and
the CEO of the Company should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual.

After evaluation of the current situation of the Group and
taking into account of the experience and past performance
of Mr. Xl Yu, the Board is of the opinion that it is appropriate
and in the best interest of the Company at the present stage
to vest the roles of the Chairman and the CEO of the Company
on the same person as it helps to facilitate the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and maximises the effectiveness of
its operation.

In addition, the Board also considers that: (i) the Company has
sufficient internal controls to provide checks and balances on
the functions of the Chairman and the CEO of the Company;
(ii) Mr. XI Yu as the Chairman and CEO is fully accountable
to the shareholders of the Company and contributes to the
Board and the Group on all top level and strategic decisions
and is responsible for ensuring that all Directors act in the best
interests of the Shareholders; and (iii) this structure will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company. The Board believes
that vesting of the roles of the Chairman and the CEO of the
Company on the same person has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and will enable the
Company to make and implement decisions in a timely and
efficient manner. However, the Board will continue to review
and consider splitting the role of chairman of the Board and
the chief executive officer of the Company at a time when it is
appropriate.
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Mr. Xl Yu, as the Chairman of the Company, provides
leadership and strategic direction for the Board. The Chairman
ensures that the Board works effectively and performs its
responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

The Chairman takes primary responsibility for ensuring that
good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established. He encourages all Directors to make a full and
active contribution to the Board’s affairs and take the lead
to ensure that it acts in the best interests of the Company.
The Chairman encourages any Director with different views
to voice their concerns, allow sufficient time for discussion
of issues and ensure that Board decisions fairly reflect Board
consensus.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Chairman has held
a meeting once with the independent non-executive Directors
without presence of all executive Directors to discuss on risk
management and sustainable growth of the Company.

The Chairman ensures appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communication with the shareholders of the
Company that their views are communicated to the Board
as a whole. The Chairman promotes a culture of openness
and debate by facilitating the effective contribution of
non-executive Directors in particular and ensuring constructive
relations between executive and non-executive Directors.

Mr. XI Yu, as the CEO of the Company, is responsible for
strategic planning and implementation, sourcing, meeting
with potential business partners, exploring for business
opportunities for the Group, client development, recruiting
senior management, staff development, collaboration across
the affiliated company network, enhancing best practices, and
timely reporting to the Board regarding the Group’s overall
progress.
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D. NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(a)

The terms of appointment of non-executive

Directors

Mr. YANG Harry has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company as an independent non-executive Director for a
tenure of two years commenced on 1 January 2023.

Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred has signed a renewed letter
of appointment with the Company as an independent
non-executive Director for a tenure of two years commenced
on 1 February 2023.

Ms. XI Man Shan Erica has signed a renewed letter of
appointment with the Company as a non-executive Director
for a tenure of two years commenced on 1 July 2024.

Ms. XIANG Ling has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company as an independent non-executive Director for a
tenure of two years commenced on 1 October 2024.

The letter of appointment signed by each of the non-executive
Directors with the Company is subject to the termination by
either party giving not less than three months prior written
notice and subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Company’s constitutional documents.

Further appointment of independent
non-executive Director

Code provision B.2.3 requires that serving more than 9 years
could be relevant to the determination of a non-executive
director’s independence. Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred has been
an independent non-executive Director since 30 September
2004 serving as the Company’s independent non-executive
Director for more than 9 years. Further appointment of him
shall be subject to a separate resolution to be approved
by the shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting of the Company. The documents to shareholders
accompanying that resolution would include the reasons
why the Board believes each of them is still independent and
should be re-elected.
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E. BOARD COMMITTEES

(a) The Executive Committee

(i)

(if)

(i)

The role and function

The Company has established Executive Committee
with written terms of reference, pursuant to which the
Board delegates its powers and authorities to the Board
Committee(s) and management to manage the business
of the Group, and to make investment and business
decisions for the Group within its authority and to take all
actions to give effect to such decisions.

The composition
The Executive Committee comprises of all executive
Directors:

Mr. XI Yu (chairman of the committee)
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling

Ms. LIU Yu Jie

Ms. JIANG Qian

Mr. HON Wa Fai

Summary of works during the year

(1) Provided with regular updates on the Company’s
performance and financial position to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties.

(2)  Reported to the Board at the next scheduled regular
meeting of the Board in which discussion would
be carried out for any decision or commitment
(made within its authority for ordinary course of
business of the Group) approved by the Executive
Committee and entered into on behalf of the
Group.

(3)  Ensured all the relevant management personnel of
the Group and the Company Secretary would be
provided with all deeds, documents or contracts
entered into on behalf of the Group pursuant to
the approval of the Executive Committee (within its
authority) for record keeping.
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(b) The Nomination Committee

(i)

The role and function

The Company has established Nomination Committee
with written terms of reference adopted in compliance
with paragraph B.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee assists the Board in making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors under
the Nomination Policy adopted which provides the
key selection criteria and principles of the Nomination
Committee in making any such recommendations.

(1) Selection criteria:

When making recommendations regarding the
appointment of any proposed candidate to
the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination
Committee shall consider a variety of factors
including without limitation to the following
in assessing the suitability of the proposed
candidate:

o Reputation for integrity;
o Relevant skills and experience in the

environmental protection industry and other
relevant sectors;

o Commitment in respect of sufficient time,
interest and attention to the Company’s
business;

o Diversity in all aspects, including but

not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge;

o Compliance with the criteria of
independence as prescribed under Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules for the appointment of
an independent non-executive Director; and

o Any other relevant factors as may be
determined by the Nomination Committee
or the Board from time to time.

(2) The appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board shall be made in
accordance with the Company’s articles of
association and other applicable rules and
regulations.
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Nomination procedures:

o The Secretary of the Nomination Committee
shall convene a meeting, and invite
nominations of candidates from Board
members (if any), for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee may also nominate candidates
for its consideration.

o In the context of appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board, the
Nomination Committee shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of such
individual and make recommendations for
the Board’s consideration and approval.

o In the context of re-appointment of
any existing member(s) of the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation, for the
proposed candidates to stand for re-election
at a general meeting.

The Nomination Committee shall refer to
the “Procedures for shareholders to propose
candidates for election as Directors” of the
Company in relation to the nomination of any
shareholder of any proposed candidate for
election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee shall review and
monitor the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives) of the Board on an
annual basis and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy.

The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to recommendation of candidates
to stand for election at a general meeting.

Review of the nomination policy

The Nomination Committee will review the
Nomination Policy periodically in line with the
Company’s strategy and recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for approval.
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(8) Review of the board diversity policy

The Nomination Committee will review the
implementation and effectiveness of the board
diversity policy on an annual basis.

(i) The composition (ir)
The Nomination Committee comprises of three (1
October 2024 to 9 October 2024: four) independent
non-executive Directors and the chairman of the Board
as the committee chairperson:

Mr. XI Yu (chairman of the committee)

Mr. YANG Harry

Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred

Ms. XIANG Ling (with effect from 1 October 2024)

Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael (ex-chairman of
the committee resigned on 9 October 2024)

(i) ~ Summary of works during the year (iii)
(1) Reviewed the composition of the Board;

(2) Reviewed and advised on the re-election of the
existing Directors and the appointment of a new
executive Director to the Board in accordance with
the Nomination Policy of the Company;

(3) Noted the resignation of an independent
non-executive Director and reviewed the selection
of new candidate(s) to fill up the vacancy;

(4) Discussed, reviewed and made recommendations
pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy of the
Company; and

(5) Assessed the independence of independent

non-executive Directors proposed for re-election
at the annual general meeting.
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The Remuneration Committee

(i)

The role and function
The Company has established the Remuneration
Committee with written terms of reference in

compliance with paragraph E.1 of the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee assists the Board
in making recommendations to the Board on the

determination of policy for the remuneration of the

Directors and senior management of the Company as

follows:

M

(2)

approval of the remuneration and compensation
of the Directors and key senior management of the
Group and assessment of their performance;

making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management
and on the implementation of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration;

ensuring no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration;

advising Shareholders on how to vote with respect
to any service contracts of directors that requires
shareholders’ approval;

making such alterations, additions or vesting
determination in relation to option scheme rules,
as do not require Shareholders’ consent, as the
remuneration committee considers necessary or
desirable subject to the limits set out in such rules;
and

consideration and resolving upon all grants
of options under the Company’s share option
schemes.
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A &

Directors’ remuneration policy

The Remuneration Committee has made
recommendations to the Board on the Company’'s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all directors
and senior management, such that the remuneration
packages offered by the Company can be competitive,
adequate (but not excessive) and in line with current
market practice to attract, retain, motivate and reward
the Directors and senior management, thereby having
sufficient, experienced and competent manpower
to achieve the Company’s corporate goals and
objectives. With the policy, the Company endeavours
to attain internal and external equity and long-term
value creation for the Shareholders. The Directors’
remuneration policy has been developed and adopted
by the Board based on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee which is set out as follows:

(1) Applicability
The Directors’ remuneration policy is applicable to
all executive directors and non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) of
the Company.

(2) Remuneration structure
The remuneration package comprises mainly
fixed component and variable component will
be considered to ensuring an appropriate and
balanced package that links shareholders’ interests
with those of the directors.

0] Fixed component

Basic salary and/or director’s fee (as the
case may be) is determined on the basis
of factors, including the expectation of
the respective director, job nature of the
position, (including responsibilities and time
commitment), the remuneration package
offered by comparable companies and
employment conditions under the existing
group structure.
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(iv)
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Variable components, if applicable

o Performance-based remuneration
includes a performance bonus which
is awarded on a discretionary basis to
motivate and reward high performers
decided by reference to both the
Group’s and individual performance;
and

. Incentive scheme that includes share
options as an incentive to motivate,
recognise, reward and retain key and
high performers.

Other benefits for Executive Directors, if

applicable

o The contributions made under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme;
and

o Fringe benefits include medical
insurance, business travel insurance.

Non-Executive Directors (Including

Independent Non-Executive Directors)

o Non-executive directors receive a fixed
director’s fee. Their remuneration is
reviewed annually, with reference to
companies of comparable business
and scale, by the Remuneration
Committee and approved by the
Board; and

° Any non-executive directors are
eligible to be granted the share
options determined by the Company
to reward for their contributions and
continuing efforts.
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(3)

(4)

(5)

e s

Benchmarking

The Company endeavours to obtain up-to-date
information of the prevailing market remuneration
environment. The remuneration packages
of comparable companies will be used as a
benchmark to ensure that the remuneration
packages offered to the Directors remain
appropriate and competitive.

Annual remuneration review

(i) The Company will conduct a review of its
remuneration structure annually. Using
benchmark information prepared by senior
management, the Remuneration Committee
will consider and make informed decisions
or make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual
directors.

(i) In all cases, no director or any of his/her
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
should be involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

Review of the Directors’ remuneration policy
The Company, through the Remuneration
Committee, will review the Directors’
remuneration policy at least annually and, if
necessary, from time to time, as appropriate, to
ensure that it is in line with the current market
practices and requirements of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules. Any amendment to the policy should
be submitted to the Board for approval.

Options granted during the year
During the year ended 31 December 2024, there was no
Options granted.

For further details of the Options granted and
outstanding as at 31 December 2024, please refer to
pages 111 to 117 of this annual report.
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The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the terms
of the grant of such Options (including (i) the vesting
period for such Options, which is not less than 12
months from the date of grant of the Options; (ii) the
vesting conditions specified in the offer letter of each
respective grantee of the Options, which comprises
certain performance targets; and (iii) the cancellation of
unvested Options as specified in the offer letter of each
respective grantee of the Options if certain performance
targets are not achieved).

Taking into account that the grant of such Options
was to encourage the grantees of the Options to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and
the Shares for the benefit of the Company and the
Shareholders and to allow such grantees to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company, the Remuneration
Committee was of the view that the grant of the Options
aligns with the purpose of the Share Option Scheme,
allowing such grantees to benefit while aligning their
interests with those of the Company. In view of the
above, the Remuneration Committee considered
that the grant of such Options was appropriate and
accordingly gave its approval to such grant.

The composition

The Remuneration Committee comprises of three (from
1 October 2024 to 9 October 2024: four) independent
non-executive Directors:

Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred (chairman of the committee)
Mr. YANG Harry
Ms. XIANG Ling
(with effect from 1 October 2024)
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael
(resigned on 9 October 2024)
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(v)  Summary of works during the year

(1) Approved and made recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration of the newly

appointed executive Directors;

(2) Reviewed and approved the remunerations of
the Directors and key senior management for the
year ended 31 December 2023, the 6 months
ended 30 June 2024, and for the year ended 31

December 2024;

(3) Approved and assessed on the compensation to
all Board members in commensurate with their

responsibility and performance; and

(4)  Consideration and determination of vesting rights
to be conferred to the grantees in relation to
the options granted under the Company’s share

option scheme.

The Audit Committee

(i) The role and function

(1) The Company has established the Audit
Committee with written terms of reference
adopted in alignment with the Rule 3.21 of Listing
Rules and the code provision D.3 of CG Code.

(2)  The Audit Committee is to serve as a focal point
for communication among other Directors, the
external auditor, and the management in relation
to functions of financial and other reporting,
statutory audits, risk management and internal
control systems; and to assist the Board in fulfilling
its responsibilities by providing an independent
review of financial reporting, by satisfying
themselves as to the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and
as to the efficiency of independent audits of the

Company.

) FALEHZ

(M

(2)

3)

2)

HERBZEZATE
EZFBH YMEES

RUCES

SRkt EHE-Z
—=f+=-RA=+—H
FEE -BE-_ZFT /N
FRNA=Z+THIEAREA
FHEZZ-_NF+=
A=+—HLFEZE
EREREEEEHH

HERFERAABEES
ERBFHERERE
RERBBBWOEE - R

EELEERBEARRA
1B AR ST 81 P I H B AX
R R T AR AN 5B

RABEARE ETRA
FI2QNERTCEEAT
Bz sF BIE XL E#D .3
RIYBZREEE  WH
MEmMBESHE -

ERZEENRTBER
HMER EEEZ
[2 B & IR K )RR ER
R EEHMLE
F B HERERE
EREBCEERE X
BEBREEMERRN
B =B RIEMA R A
[\ Fx 38 % P B B 4R A
BB B A R IB '
ZHREBPNEESE
THEEME-



3

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Audit Committee has a monitoring function
to work with the executive Board members and
to ensure the whole Board is able to determine
the appropriate corporate governance practices
applicable to the Company’s operations and to
ensure processes and procedures are in place to
achieve the Company’s corporate governance
objectives and to discharge the duties of the Board
in performing its corporate governance functions
under the CG Code include:

o to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations;

o to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management of the
Company;

o to review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

. to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance policies applicable
to employees and Directors of the Company;

o to monitor and mitigate any adverse impact
arisen from any deviation from the CG Code
to the Company s policies and practices on
corporate governance; and

o to review the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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(4) The Audit Committee takes the advisory role to
ensure the Board to continuously review and
enhance its corporate governance practices to

ensure compliance with the CG Code.

(5) The Audit Committee takes the monitoring role to
ensure the Company complies with the Disclosure

Policy:

The Company adopted a written Disclosure
Policy with aims to provide a general guide to
the Directors, officers*, senior management
and relevant employees* of the Company in
the handling of confidential information and/or
monitoring of information disclosure pursuant to
the applicable laws and regulations whereas:

2 “Officer” as defined in the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") includes
a director, manager or secretary of, any
person involved in the management of the

Company.

* “Relevant employees” includes employees
of the Company and directors/employees
of the Company’s subsidiary or holding
company who, because of their office or
employment, are likely to possess Inside
Information (as referred to in Part XIVA of

the SFO).

(6) The Audit Committee takes the monitoring role
to ensure the Company to purchase adequate
insurance cover in respect of legal action against
the Directors pursuant to code provision C.1.8 of

the CG Code.
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The composition

The Audit Committee comprises of three (from 1
October 2024 to 9 October 2024: four) independent
non-executive Directors:

Mr. YANG Harry (chairman of the committee)
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred
Ms. XIANG Ling
(with effect from 1 October 2024)
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael
(resigned on 9 October 2024)

Summary of works during the year

(M

3)

)

Reviewed the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2023;

Reviewed the Dividend Policy adopted by the
Company pursuant to code provision F.1.1
before the Board recommending the payment of
dividends;

Discussed and reviewed with the independent
auditor, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited on the interim
results of the Company for the 6 months ended 30
June 2024, of which Crowe (HK) CPA Limited has
carried out independent review;

Discussed and reviewed with the Board on the
quarterly unaudited results for 3 months ended 31
March 2024 and 9 months ended 30 September
2024 respectively;

Reviewed semi-annually on the independent
valuation reports prepared by the independent
professional valuer engaged by the Company in
relation to the fair value of the equity investments,
impairment testing on the goodwill arisen on the
business combination of environmental waste
treatment operation acquired in 2007, and the
fair value of the 30% equity investment in of an
associate acquired through a business combination
in 2017;
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Discussed and reviewed with the independent
professional advisers, SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited, engaged by the Company on the
continuous effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group;

Reviewed the renewal of the directors and
officers liability insurance cover with appropriate
indemnity limits in respect of legal action against
the Directors; and

Discussed with the independent auditor the nature
and scope of the audit, reporting obligations, and
the potential impact to audit works in relation to
the annual audit for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023.

(e) The ESG Committee

0] The role and function

(1

Established the ESG Committee on 18 May 2023
with terms of reference of the committee adopted
pursuant to Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules which
empowered the committee to organise necessary
personnel within the Group to work on the ESG
Report.

The main duties of the ESG Committee include:

o developing ESG-related strategies, including
identifying, evaluating and monitoring ESG
issues that could affect the Group’s business
activities, performance, sustainable growth
and reputation;

o identifying ESG-related opportunities and risks
that are important for the Group and makes
recommendations to the Board;

o improving the Group's awareness and
knowledge of ESG issues;
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monitoring training and continuous
professional development of the directors and
executives of the Company in relation to the
ESG issues;

overseeing the integration of strategically
significant ESG policies into the business
operations and strategy;

facilitating communications with employees,
investors, and other stakeholders with respect
to ESG issues;

assessing ESG risks, and advising on those of
strategic significance to the Company and
providing anticipatory and mitigation plans;

reviewing material interests of the Group'’s key
stakeholders and reporting their point of views
on material issues to the Company in order to
secure correct long term strategic direction;

reviewing and reporting the Group’s
sustainability performance, including but
not limited to key performance indexes
(“KPIs”) and achievement to target, relative to
comparable peers/historical records or other
benchmarked to the Board;

reviewing and monitoring policies and
practices of the Group in respect of
compliance with the law and regulatory
requirements,
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o formulating, reviewing and monitoring the
relevant code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) of employees of the Group and
the directors of the Company in relation to
ESG issues; and

o reviewing and advising the Board on the
preparation of the ESG Report of the
Company annually with regard to the Group's
performance on sustainability and compliance
to the requirements and KPIs set out in
the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (Appendix C2 of the Listing
Rules), and confirm and approve the ESG
Report of the Company before submitting it to
the Board for final endorsement.

(i) The composition
The ESG Committee comprises of three (from 1
October 2024 to 9 October 2024: four) independent
non-executive Directors and two executive Directors:

Mr. YANG Harry (chairman of the committee)

Mr. Xl Yu (CEQ)

Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred

Ms. XIANG Ling (with effect from 1 October 2024)

Mr. HON Wa Fai (company secretory)
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael
(resigned on 9 October 2024)

(iif)  Summary of works during the year
(1) Reviewed the ESG Report for the year ended 31
December 2023;
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(2) Invited ESG expert as speaker of in-house
continuous professional development seminar
on the latest development of the benchmark and
development on ESG practices and discussion of
the Company’s ESG Report 2023;

(3)  Visited all sites of key operations of the Group
within the reporting boundary of the ESG Report
for the year ended 31 December 2024, and

(4) Discussed with the independent ESG consultants
and senior management of all key operations
on the ESG issues during site visiting of key
operations of the Group.

F. COMPANY SECRETARY

(a)

(b)

The current Company Secretary, Mr. HON Wa Fai has been
selected and appointed by the Board since 6 October 2004.
Mr. HON Wa Fai is the financial controller of the Company
since 6 September 2004, and is an executive Director since
28 September 2006. Mr. HON Wa Fai is is a member of The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and a certified
public accountant in Hong Kong (as defined in the Professional
Accountants Ordinance, Cap. 50, Laws of Hong Kong)
who has experience of working as company secretary and
independent non-executive director of other listed entities
before he joined the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. HON Wa Fai has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
for the year ended 31 December 2024.

G. DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

(a)

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in The Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer (the
“Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules.

With specific enquiries having been made of all the Directors,
all Directors have confirmed that they have fully complied with
the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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H. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

(a)

(©)

For the year ended 31 December 2024, based on the review
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems being conducted, the Board considered the
risk management and internal control systems of the Company
were effective and adequate. No significant areas of concern
that might affect the financial, operational, compliance
controls, and risk management functions of the Group were
identified. The scope of review covered the adequacy of
resources, qualification/experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
and budget.

It is the responsibility of the Board for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
The Board undertakes for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems. Since January
2019, the Company has established a project management
team in the Mainland China headed by experienced staff of
the Group to closely monitoring the environmental compliance
and daily operations of the key operations of the Group in
the Mainland China, and report periodically to the Board. The
Board oversees management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems, and the management would provide confirmation to
the Board on the effectiveness of these systems.

The senior management of the Group, including but not
limited to, the Directors and executive officers of the
Company, the directors of the subsidiaries, and the general
managers and deputy general managers of the Company and
of the Group, maintains, monitors and implements the risk
management and internal control systems on an ongoing
basis.

The risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are designed to meet the Group's particular needs and
risks to be exposed, and only to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and
to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve the
Group's business objectives.
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The Group adopts a risk management system to identify,
evaluate and manage significant risks associated with its
business and operations comprised of the following phases:

o Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

o Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks

and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks.

The Company adopts an internal control system with a
framework enabling the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of
financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations comprised of the following components:

o Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed.

o Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives
to mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are
carried out.

° Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the
information needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each components of internal control
is present and functioning.
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The Company adopts and implements an inside information
policy and procedures in order to enhance the Group’s system
of handling inside information, and to ensure the truthfulness,
accuracy, completeness and timeliness of its public disclosure.
Certain reasonable measures have been taken from time
to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a
breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group,
which include:

o The access of information is restricted to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis.
Employees who are in possession of inside information
are fully conversant with their obligations to preserve
confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations.

o The executive Directors are designated persons who
speak on behalf of the Company when communicating
with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors.

The Company has not established its own internal audit
function pursuant to the code provision D.2.5 of the CG
Code, though the Board has reviewed the need for one on
an annual basis. The Directors consider that it would be more
appropriate to set up a multifunctional project management
team delegated with responsibilities of internal audit on
environmental governance, cash management and financial
reporting functions for the existing operations of the Group.

In order to ensure the existing risk management and
internal control systems work effectively, the Company has
engaged with independent professional party to review on
the Group’s compliance with the CG Code, and review on
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group on an ongoing basis. For the two years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023, the Company has continued to
engage with SHINEWING Risk Services Limited, adopting
the internal control model set down by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organisations of the U.S. Treadway Commission
for internal controls, to carry out independent review on
the risk management and internal control systems of the
key operations of the Group and the corporate governance
functions of the Company on revolving basis. Based on the
independent review reports, the Board has impartial reference
on the assessment, the implementation and the continuous
improvement toward more effective risk management
function and internal control system for the key operations of
the Company, and resolving material internal control defects,
if any.
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The Company has established a project controlling team
nominated by the Board comprising the deputy general
manager and vice-presidents of the Company, the project
assistants, and the supervisors nominated by the Company
to take up the responsibilities of monitoring the day-to-day
operational management, risk management function, and
internal control systems of all operating units of Group,
especially for the subsidiaries in the Mainland China,
integrating with the systems of monthly and annual planning
and budgeting process, counter-approval and implementation
and control process, identifying any risk or possible failure of
the operating units, and reporting and making suggestions on
how each operating unit to achieve the objectives and goals
set. The project controlling team meets regularly with the
executive Directors and report on matters to be updated to the
Board timely.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Group complies with requirements of and the Listing
Rules and discloses inside information to the public as soon
as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within
any of the Safe Harbours as provided in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong). Before the
information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group ensures
the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Group
believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be
maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached,
the Group would immediately disclose the information to the
public. The Group is committed to ensuring that information
contained in announcements is not false or misleading as to a
material fact, nor false or misleading through the omission of
a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and
balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive
and negative facts.
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I. AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION AND
AUDITOR RELATED MATTER

. BB ZME R EZH
B +H B & 18

(a) Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and (a) ZEBNFTIREEZRLIESE
non-audit services provided by the auditor Z R TE 2 & o AT
For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the HE_Z-NER-ZFT-_=F+=
remuneration paid/payable to the independent auditor of the A=+—RLFEE B EHB
Company in respect of their audit and non-audit services was VZEMAERSE 2 ERRIIEER
as follows: Rz M&mT
2024 2023
—E-mNE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FER
Audit services EZ RS 1,350 1,350
Independent review on BB SES
financial results 210 210
(b) Accountability and audit (b)y MENEZ

(1

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited acknowledge their reporting
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report to
the consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2024.

It is the responsibility of the external auditor to form
an independent opinion, based on their audit, on those
financial statements of the Company and to report
their opinion solely to the Company, as a body, and
for no other purpose. The independent auditor does
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of the independent
auditor’s report to the shareholders of the Company.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility of
preparing the accounts and presenting a balanced,
clear and comprehensive assessment for the Company’s
performance, position and prospects. The Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with the Board on
the Company’s financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2024.

Management of the Company has provided all members
of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the performance,
position and prospects of the Company and the Group
in sufficient detail to enable the board as a whole and
each director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08
and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company deviates from the Recommended Best
Practices under code provision D.1.6 of the CG Code
not to announce and publish quarterly financial results
within 45 days after the end of the relevant quarter,
because the Board considers the current half-yearly
financial reporting mode would be more appropriate
and relevant to reflect the results performance of the
business model and existing operations of the Group.
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DIVERSITY

(a)

Board diversity

The Company adopted a written board diversity policy and has
made necessary revision according to the CG Code with aims
to endorse the principle that the Board should have a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the Company’s business.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Pursuant to the policy, the Board will consider gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of
service and the legitimate interests of the Company’s
principal Shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to
the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
has kept reviewing and assessing the composition of
the Board and made recommendations to the Board
on appointment of new Director and change of board
member, and re-election of Directors having regard to
the merit of candidates in accordance with the board
diversity policy.

In reviewing Board composition, the Nomination
Committee considered that the diversity of the existing
Board members is able to maintain an appropriate
balance of age and professional experience and diversity
of cultural and educational background on the Board.

The composition of the Board as at 31 December 2024
has been reviewed by the Nomination Committee. As
at 31 December 2024, the Board was composed of 5
females and 4 males (2023: 4 females and 5 males)
having an average age of 55.7 (2023: 55.8), 6 out of 9
members possess post-graduate academic background,
5 out of 9 members possess professional qualification(s)
recognised in Hong Kong and different countries. The
composition is considered able to meet the objective
of the Board Diversity Policy to enable the effective
management of the Board on the key operations of
Group currently mainly located in the Mainland China.
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The Board considers that it has achieved gender diversity with
the composition of the Board currently composed of 5 females
and 4 males as at 31 December 2024. In order to maintain
the gender diversity of the Board and in order to ensure
compliance with the gender diversity requirements under
the Listing Rules, the Board will maintain its gender diversity
and ensure that the composition of the Board will not be
entirely composed of a single gender. The Board will monitor
its gender composition and diversity on an ongoing basis and
identify potential successors of the appropriate gender should
the need arise.

Workforce diversity

The gender ratio of the Group's workforce (including senior
management) for the two years ended 31 December 2024 is
as follows:
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The Company considers that it has achieved gender diversity
in the Group’s workforce (including senior management of
the Group) and aims to continue to maintain a consistent
gender ratio in its workforce roughly in-line with the ratios
recorded in its previous financial years. Owing to the nature of
the handling of hazardous waste and in view of the services
provided by the Group, the Company considers that it is not
unusual for the gender ratio of its workforce to be composed
of more males than females. Save as disclosed, the Company
is not aware of any mitigating factors or circumstances
which make achieving gender diversity across the workforce
(including senior management of the Group) more challenging
or less relevant and the Company will monitor its workforce’s
gender composition on an ongoing basis in order to maintain
a consistent gender ratio.
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K. SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(a)

Communication with Shareholders

The Company has adopted its Shareholders Communication
Policy to promote and facilitate effective communication with
Shareholders of the Company. The Board encourages the
participation of the Shareholders to the general meetings of
the Company, and the Chairman of the Board shall attend the
annual general meeting of the Company.

The Chairman invites the chairmen of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees (as appropriate) to
attend, or failing their presence, their duly appointed delegate
to attend and be available to answer questions at annual
general meeting. The chairman of the independent board
committee (if any) is available to answer questions at the
general meeting to approve a connected transaction or any
other transaction that requires independent shareholders’
approval.

The Board ensures the external auditor attend the annual
general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.

For each substantially separate issue at the general meetings,
a separate resolution is to be proposed by the chairman of
that meeting. The Company shall avoid “bundling” resolutions
unless they are interdependent and linked forming one
significant proposal. Where the resolutions are “bundled”, the
Company shall explain the reasons and material implications
in the notice of the general meetings. The chairman of the
general meetings shall ensure that an explanation is provided
of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and answer
any questions from Shareholders on voting by poll.

The Company shall arrange for the notice to the Shareholders
to be sent in the case of for annual general meeting not less
than 21 clear days before the meeting and to be sent not less
than 14 clear days in the case for all other general meetings.
Any notice to be given by the Company shall be in writing. The
Company shall send notices to all Shareholders whether or not
their registered address is in Hong Kong. The Company shall
ensure that notice of the general meetings is published on the
websites of the Company at www.nuigl.com and the Stock
Exchange.
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Shareholders who are unable to attend a general meeting
may complete and return to the branch share registrar and
transfer office of the Company (the “Share Registrar”) in Hong
Kong the proxy form enclosed with the notice of meeting to
give proxy to their representatives, another shareholder or
chairman of the meetings.

The poll voting procedures are included in the Company’s
circular convening a general meeting. The results of the voting
by poll are declared at the meeting and published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively
thereafter the meeting.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company
considers that it has effectively implemented its Shareholders
Communication Policy by, among others, (i) the attendance
by the Chairman and the chairmen of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees at the annual general meeting of
the Company in order to answer questions at such meeting;
and (ii) the timely notices to the Shareholders clearly outlining
the relevant issues and resolutions to be proposed at each
general meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to rule 2.07A of the Listing Rules and the
articles of association of the Company, the Company will
disseminate the corporate communications of the Company
to the Shareholders of the Company by making corporate
communications available on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website and only send corporate
communications in printed form to the Shareholders upon
request. The arrangements has come into effect since 31
December 2023.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a
general meeting

According to the memorandum and articles of association
of the Company, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call
extraordinary general meetings. Any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition.
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Upon receipt of the requisition, the Company shall request
the Share Registrar to verify and confirm on the particular
of the requisitionist(s), and arrange the Board to consider
the proposal and convene a general meeting by serving
sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders. If any
particular of the requisitionist(s) is verified as not in order,
the requisitionist(s) will be advised accordingly, and a general
meeting may not be convened as requested.

If within 21 days of such deposit of the requisition the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

An annual general meeting must be called by notice of not less
than 21 clear days and all other general meetings (including
an extraordinary general meeting) must be called by notice of
not less than 14 clear days but if permitted by the rules of the
Stock Exchange, a general meeting may be called by shorter
notice, subject to the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, if
it is so agreed by members entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting.

Procedures for nominating a person for election
as a director in general meeting

The Company has adopted the Procedures for Shareholders
to Propose a Person for Election as a Director. Save for the
procedures adopted, no person, other than a retiring Director
shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting according to the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company, and relevant laws and regulations
applicable to the Company. Pursuant to the procedure
adopted, only Shareholder(s) duly qualified to attend and vote
at the general meeting shall propose a person for election as a
director in general meeting.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2024

R EIFE R - AR A ESK A
BPERBZENERBKANF
B ULHEESEERE LB
B 1R P RE AT AR 3 R SRS R A
EEBESARRRRE - MFERKA
MEFBRZELIFATHRE  AIZ
BRAGHEESH  MRERAE
AT S EELMARM -

WREXEEBRN21IBRN EF
SREARABRAR  BIBERAR
F(REARS) AJUERGTAERRK
RRE MARAREEG KA
FERAEMELENMEAEER
BHRARBENTHERA -

BRBRRBEAGULEHL IR
1R AMEBE - ARMAE HEMAR
RRg (BEBRRFHIRE) KA
FEHALM4AERBHRSE - B
B X AR B 2 FF 0 IR K& AT 7 B
SHEREDENMRR T EBE N
MR AENRMBEMAR (MG
BEFRERNE LRENBRRA
BMITE) -

RBERAERAALTER
EENREF
ARFARMBRIZAALERES
MIEF - BRERMWRFI B E
BEFGHRBER BREBREE
FH - RIBAD T MARERAM
R B R A 23 B 40 7 B8 A A B
RO - 3 AT B BB RME TR
AR LEREERNY - RECKM
MR EEASEREEBRRA
BYRE LREOREARE LR
BALTHEES -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

If a Shareholder who is duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting wishes to propose a person other than
a Director for election as a director, the following documents
shall be lodged at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Rooms 2110-2112, Telford House,
16 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong for
the Board to recommend that person for election to the office
of Director at any general meeting:

(1) a notice signed by the Shareholder of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and the
notice shall set out the contact details of the proposing
shareholder, including correspondence address, contact
phone number; and

(2) a notice signed by that person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected as a Director; and the duly
completed checklist attach to these procedures.

The minimum length of the period during which the
above-mentioned notices are given shall be at least 10
business days and that the period for lodgment of such notices
shall commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end not later than 14 business days prior to the date of
such general meeting.

If the Company receives the notice as required after
publication of the notice of meeting, the Company shall
publish an announcement or issue a supplementary circular
upon receipt of such a notice. Full particulars of the proposed
director as required under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
must be included in the announcement or supplementary
circular. However, if the Company receives insufficient
information for the purposes of publishing an announcement
or issuing a supplementary circular, the Company shall contact
the proposing shareholder and/or the proposed director for
further information.

In the event that the Company is not able to publish an
announcement or issue a supplementary circular on a day,
which is at least 10 business days prior to the general meeting
of the Company, the said nomination of shareholder will be
presented at the next following general meeting.
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Dividend policy

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board
recommended the payment of final dividend on 21 March
2025 out of the retained earnings, and the recommendation
of dividend is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to the code provision F.1.1 of the CG Code,
the Company adopted a policy on payment of dividends
(the "Dividend Policy”) which is to allow Shareholders to
participate in the Company’s profits and performance results
whilst retaining adequate reserves for the Company’s future
growth. The Board shall consider the following factors before
declaring or recommending dividends:

o the Company’s actual and expected financial
performance;

o the Group's working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

o the Group’s liquidity and debt gearing position, and the
relevant financial covenants;

o the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the member companies of the
Group;

o general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group's operation and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business, financial
performance and position of the Company; and

. other factors that the Board deems relevant and
appropriate.

Any distribution of dividends shall be in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company and the distribution
shall achieve continuity, stability and sustainability. The
recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration
of final dividend will be subject to the approval of the
Shareholders. The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time
to time and there is no assurance that a dividend will be
proposed or declared in any specific periods.
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Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board

Shareholders shall direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Share Registrar. Shareholders and the
investment community may at any time make a request for
the Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available.

Shareholders or investors could enquire by putting their
proposals with the Company through the following means:

(852) 2435 6811
(852) 2435 3220

Telephone number
Facsimile number

E-mail comsec@nuegl.com
Correspondence Rooms 2110-2112, 21/F,,
address Telford House,

16 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

For the attention of The Chairman

L. INVESTOR RELATIONS

(a)

(@]

There is no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2024.

One 22 March 2024, the board of Directors of the Company
announced the proposal to amend the Company’s articles of
association for the purpose of (i) updating and bringing the
then articles of association in line with the amendments to
the Listing Rules in relation to the dissemination of corporate
communication to shareholders by way of electronic means;
and (ii) incorporating certain housekeeping amendments.
Save for these proposed amendments, the contents of the
other provisions of the articles of association shall remain
unchanged. The Board further proposed to effect these
proposed amendments by way of adoption of an amended
and restated articles of association in substitution for and
to the exclusion of the then old articles of association. The
proposed amendments of the then old articles of association
and adoption of the amended and restated articles of
association of the Company was duly passed as special
resolution by the Shareholders on 24 May 2024.

The Company is committed to maintaining high degree of
transparency to ensure the investors and the Shareholders
are receiving accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely
information of the Group via the publication of annual reports,
interim reports, public announcements and releases, and
update on key information of the Group are available on the
Company's website at www.nuigl.com.
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(d) The Company has engaged with PRChina Limited as its public d) AARCEZEEFABRABEREAERAD
relation consultant to enhance media and investor relations AEAEAEEBR  UReEAEE
of the Group. The Board continues to maintain regular CIEERREERER EFGHE
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them HEEBBREE N DITAIE Y
informed the Group's strategy, operations, management and FEABBEEMERNER 2K
plans. Media or potential investors could make necessary 2B EERRE  -HEIBEER
enquiry with the public relation consultant through the A EAF BT SIS M 7 B RE 1
following means: HVEEH
Telephone number @ (852) 2522 1838 FEEYEHS ¢ (852) 2522 1838
Facsimile number : (852) 2521 9955 EEA : (852) 2521 9955
E-mail © newuniverse@prchina.com.hk B © newuniverse@prchina.com.hk
Public relation NEER  PEAEEBERAR

consultant : PRChina Limited

On behalf of the Board
REREZE

0L/

N

XI Yu
X
Chairman
e

Hong Kong, 21 March 2025
&8 —T-HAF=A=-+—H
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors (the “Directors”) of New Universe Environmental Group
Limited (the “Company”) are pleased to present their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated in Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability and has its principal place of business at Rooms
2110-2112, Telford House, 16 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management to the group members.

The activities of the principal subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

(@) provision of environmental treatment and disposal services for
industrial and medical wastes;

(b)  provision of environmental plating sewage treatment and provision
of related facilities, utilities and management services in an
eco-plating specialised zone; and

(c) investments in plastic materials dyeing business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business and financial review of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2024, including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group's business, as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 9 to 35 of this annual report, which forms part of this
directors’ report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The "Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2024" of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 would be available on the
Company’s website at www.nuigl.com.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's key business
operations has made continuous effort and investment in managing
and monitoring environmental parameters, upgraded existing facilities
to meet regulatory environmental requirements and national standards,
and provided training relevant to the industry that is necessary for the
sustained development of the Group. Save for the disclosure made
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2024 and in this
annual report, there was no other significant environmental exceedances
recorded nor any material non-compliance in relation to environmental,
social or governance aspects. For the current year, engagement with
stakeholders has resulted in raised concerns on most material issues,
which include: occupational health and safety, environmental protection
measures, waste and effluent, air emission, and employment. The Group
will continue to identify areas of improvement for the concerned aspects
and keep close communication with its stakeholders for advancing
management on environmental, social and governance.

The Company has engaged with an independent consultant firm, Ascent
Partners Advisory Service Limited, to review the Company’s overall
environmental, social and governance performance of the key business
operations of the Group for the preparation of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2024 with reference to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules.

(@) Environmental (including climate-related) policies
and performance

Policies

o The Group has established comprehensive environmental
policies, aiming to minimise the impact of its operations on
the environment. The Group strictly complies with national
and local environmental laws and regulations, including those
related to air emissions, waste management, water pollution,
and greenhouse gas emissions.

° For climate-related issues, the Group has identified and
assessed the potential risks, such as extreme weather events
and climate change impacts on its business. The Group
has formulated strategies to adapt to these risks, such as
strengthening infrastructure protection, improving energy
efficiency, and promoting the use of renewable energy.
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Performance

Emissions

The Group has strived for reductions in air pollutants, such
as nitrogen oxides and sulfur oxides. In 2024, the emissions
of nitrogen oxides were 5,734 kg, compared to 1,231 kg in
2023, and the emissions of sulfur oxides were 6 kg, compared
to 7 kg in 2023.

The Group has strived for reductions in greenhouse gas
emissions. In 2024, the total greenhouse gas emissions were
24,978 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent, with an intensity
of 0.09 tCO,e/m? or 65 tCO,e/employee.

Waste Management

The Group has effectively managed hazardous waste,
reducing the generation of hazardous waste by 29% in 2024
compared to the previous year. The Group also ensures the
proper treatment and disposal of hazardous waste to prevent
environmental pollution. In terms of non-hazardous waste, the
Group has reduced the generation by 88% in 2024, mainly
due to the decrease in disinfected medical waste.

Energy Consumption

The Group has been actively promoting energy-saving
measures, such as the use of solar energy, natural gas, and
energy recovery systems. In 2024, the subsidiary, Zhenjiang
Sinotech Eco-electroplating Development Limited purchased
608,913 kWh of solar energy, which accounted for 21% of
its total electricity consumption of the Eco-plating specialised
Zone.

The Group has also improved the energy efficiency of its
facilities, achieving energy consumption reductions in some
processes, such as steam recovery and transportation.
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(b)

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group strictly adheres to relevant environmental laws and
regulations, including the Environmental Protection Law of the
PRC, the Air Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC,
the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC,
and other relevant regulations.

The Group regularly conducts environmental assessments
and monitoring to ensure compliance with environmental
standards. The Group has also implemented measures to
address any environmental issues promptly and effectively to
avoid potential legal risks.

In addition, the Group complies with labour laws and
regulations, including the Labour Law of the PRC, Labour
Contract Law of the PRC, and other relevant regulations,
thus ensuring the rights and interests of its employees, such
as providing reasonable working hours, ensuring workplace
safety, and offering appropriate compensation and benefits.

(c) Key relationships

Employees

The Group has a total of 385 employees working for the key
operations in the PRC as of 31 December 2024, with a focus
on attracting and retaining talented individuals. The Group
provides a range of benefits and training opportunities to
enhance employee satisfaction and productivity.

The Group encourages employee development and promotes
a positive work environment through measures such as
internal promotions, training programs, and team-building
activities.

The employee turnover rate has decreased compared to the
previous year, indicating improved employee stability and
commitment.

Customers

The Group values its customers and maintains good
relationships with them. The Group provides high-quality
hazardous waste treatment services to meet the needs of its
customers and ensure their compliance with environmental
regulations.

The Group continuously improves its service quality and
response times to enhance customer satisfaction and
loyalty. The Group also actively seeks customer feedback to
continuously improve its services.
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Suppliers

. The Group has a strict supplier selection process to ensure
the quality and reliability of the supplies. The Group conducts
regular audits and evaluations of its suppliers to monitor their
environmental and social performance.

o The Group encourages suppliers to adopt environmentally
friendly practices and promotes the use of sustainable
materials and technologies. The Group also works closely with
suppliers to ensure the smooth supply of goods and services.

Others

° The Group also maintains good relationships with local
communities, government agencies, and other stakeholders.
The Group actively participates in community activities and
contributes to the local economic and social development.

o The Group values the opinions and suggestions of
stakeholders and incorporates them into its decision-making
processes to ensure the sustainable development of the
business.

The Group is committed to environmental protection, compliance with
laws and regulations, and the development of good relationships with its
employees, customers, suppliers, and other stakeholders. The Group will
continue to strive for sustainable development and create value for all
stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the principal corporate practices of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2024 and significant subsequent events, if any,
up to the date of this report is set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 48 to 98 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 and the
state of the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 135 to 276 of this annual report.
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DIVIDENDS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The dividend of HK$0.0016 per share totally amounting to approximately
HK$4,857,000 paid on 31 July 2024 was made for the year ended
31 December 2023.

On 21 March 2025, the Directors recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.0016 per share out of the retained profits of the
Company as at 31 December 2024 for the year then ended amounting
to approximately HK$4,857,000 which is subject to approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting:

Annual general meeting date Friday, 23 May 2025

Tuesday, 3 June 2025 to
Friday, 6 June 2025

Book close date for final
dividend

Record date for final dividend Friday, 6 June 2025

Final dividend payment date Thursday, 31 July 2025

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December
2024, as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated/
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on pages 36 to 38 of this annual
report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the group’s performance for the year by operating segments
of the Group is set out in note 4 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold, or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2024.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the securities
of the Company.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 139 of this
annual report.

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Company during the year
are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$637,295,000 (2023: HK$637,629,000) which was
calculated according to article 134 of the articles of association of the
Company that dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits of
the Company, realised or unrealised, or from any reserve set aside from
profits which the Directors determine is no longer needed. With the
sanction of an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared and
paid out of share premium account or any other fund or account which
can be authorised for this purpose in accordance with the Companies Act,
Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group and the Company as at 31
December 2024 are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.
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INTEREST CAPITALISED

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group did not capitalise any
interest during the year (2023: Nil).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS TERXEPRHEES

Information on the Group's sales and purchases (exclusive of the
discontinued operation) attributable to the major customers and suppliers
respectively during the year is set out as follows:

AEBRAFEADEETREP MRS
ZHEBEEMRE (TRECRIELEER) F
BEIINT -

Percentage of the Group’s total

HEEEAEzBED L
Sales Purchases
HEH R
2024 2023 2024 2023
a1 3 —E=F —EDmE —ZE-=
The largest customer SN 5.1% 7.0%
Five largest customers in aggregate AR F 4458 16.2% 25.0%
The largest supplier = AR 13.7% 6.0%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate R A ER BT 28.8% 26.9%
At no time during the two years ended 31 December 2024 did a Director, &% EZ 7 ERBE AN AR FIRE (iE

a close associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) have an interest in any of the Group's five largest
customers or suppliers.

At no time during the two years ended 31 December 2024 have the
Directors, their respective close associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major customers
and suppliers of the Group.

The percentage of revenue from the five largest customers in aggregate
was less than 30% of the Group's total revenue respectively for the two
years ended 31 December 2024. The percentage of purchases from the
five largest suppliers in aggregate was less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were as
follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. XI'Yu

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling
Ms. LIU Yu lJie

Ms. JJANG Qian

Mr. HON Wa Fai

Non-Executive Director:
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. YANG Harry

Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred

Ms. XIANG Ling (appointment with effect from 1 October 2024)

Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael (resignation with effect from 9 October
2024)

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Company’s articles of association,
Ms. XIANG Ling shall retire and, being eligible, offer herself for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred, Ms. JIANG Qian, and Ms. XI Man Shan Erica
will retire from the board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

E
FARES

REARBEABEARZEEZNT ¢

L=

HMITES
EEAEAE
RN R
BERL+
BExt
BEEL L

FRITES
ES §iih -

—

BYIFRITES

BEME

faY 36 B 4 A

AREL (ZER-F-ME+A—BRER)
AL (BER-T-METANARE
%)

RERAFABEIRZMAEIERTE - MK
LERREERRBEANG LRI EEHFA
BRIUFAREREL -

RIBFALRAZERMANESME - AIHESL
£oBfErt REXMAtEREERRR
FRELHERTEES UNEGERKEERE
BB -

—E_MEER HFFRAREBEBR AT

107



108

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ES=TgHE

DIRECTORS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

The directors of the Company’s subsidiary undertakings during the year

and up to the date of this report were as follows: RIZESMT

Director(s) of the subsidiary

MEBRRAZES

RAFEARBEARAREBHLEARANBER

Name of subsidiary MEARERE MEBARZES
Ever Champ (China) Limited B8 (P E) BRAR A B
Fair International Investment Enterprise EREBIEECERR AT A B
Limited
Fair Industry Waste Recyclables Limited ERTXBEYBLENBERAR A B
Fair Time International Limited ERBEREERATE A B
Jiangsu Xinyu Environmental Company IHNTFRRARLAA A
Limited*
New Sinotech Investments Limited MEMKEBRAR B
New Universe (China) Investment Limited FFE(PE)KREBERAA B
New Universe (China) Limited FF(PE)BRAR A B
New Universe Environmental Protection FTFREREER AR B
Investment Limited
New Universe Environmental Technologies #FHERE CI#) AR A A A B
(Jiang Su) Limited
New Universe International Ecology Limited % BB 4 BE AR A Al B
New Universe International Group Limited ¥ FEEEX (£E)ER A A A B
New Universe International Holdings Limited 35 BIFS % iR A R A 7 B
New Universe Recyclable Investments HFERBEREBERAA B
Limited
New Universe Recyclables Limited HFERBENAAERRAA] A B
Smartech International Group Limited EMBEREEBR AR B
Smartech Manufacturing Limited ERMEmARLQA A B
Smartech Plastic Moulding Limited ERZBRIBERAT A B
Smartech Services Limited EREBERAERAA A B
Sugian New Universe Solid Waste Disposal BEBFHEEENEREAR AT A
Company Limited*
Xiangshui New Universe Environmental BKHFERERBEAER AT A B C
Technology Limited
Yancheng New Universe Solid Waste HRFHESEEEBRAR A
Disposal Company Limited
Yancheng NUHF Environmental Technology B3 $T 18 LB R B ER A 7 A B C
Limited*
Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste BINTEEEYREE SR AT A C D

Disposal Company Limited

Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco-Electroplating
Development Limited

Zhenjiang Xinrong Environmental
Technologies Limited (formerly name
as Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental
Technologies Limited)*

*  For identification purpose only

BTEMLRERMRERERAA A

BIERRAMBRBRAA A
(AR TE&F TRARRERLAA)

* ERBEZ
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Name of the directors of the Company’s subsidiary undertakings:

Mr. XI Yu

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling
Ms. LIU Yuan

. YIN Yong Xiang
Mr. SUN Jia Qing

Mr. LIU Lai Gen

Mr. JI Zi Hua

Mr. SUN Yong Liang

IoTMmoON®y
<

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting have an unexpired service contract with
the Company that is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in writing his annual confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 39 to 47 of this annual report.
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CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this report,
there were changes in Directors’ information as follows:

(@ Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael resigned as independent
non-executive Director and as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and member of all committees with effect from 9
October 2024.

(b)  Mr. XI Yu was appointed the chairman of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 9 October 2024.

() Ms. XIANG Ling was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director and member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and ESG Committee with
effect from 1 October 2024.

Save as disclosed therein, there is no other significant change in details of
the Directors’ information since the date of the last annual report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed therein, there is no other information to be disclosed
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 13.51(2) of Listing Rules.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
report, there was no significant change in the information of the key
management team members of the Company.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the chief executives and
of the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out respectively in
notes 10 and 11 to the financial statements.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Board has adopted an emolument policy for the employees of the
Company which is governed by the remuneration committee of the Board
on the basis of the relevant skills, experience, merit, qualifications and
competence of the employees.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee of the Company, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for all employees
in Hong Kong. Particulars of the employee retirement benefits of the
Group are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the share option scheme on 5 May 2015 (the
“Share Option Scheme”). The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in
accordance with the provisions set out in Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
then effective. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years ending on 4 May 2025, after which no further options
may be granted.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide participants
(“Participant”, and each a “Participant”) with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage Participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares (the
“Shares”) for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders (the
“Shareholders”) as a whole.

A Participant is any person belonging to any of the following classes:

(@) any eligible employee of or any person who has accepted an offer
of employment from (whether full time or part time employee,
including any executive Directors but not any non-executive
Director) the Company, its subsidiaries and any entity in which the
Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”);

(b) any non-executive Director (including independent non-executive
Directors), any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;
(c)  any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;
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(e) any person or entity acting in their capacities as advisers or
consultants to the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(f)  any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity from time to time determined by the Directors
having contributed or may contribute to the development and
growth of the Group or any Invested Entity.

The total number of Shares which might be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of the Company’s Shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme by the Shareholders at the
annual general meeting on 5 May 2015 (the “Scheme Mandate Limit")
unless the Company obtains an approval by its Shareholders at its general
meeting to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit. Further, the maximum
number of Shares which might be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and options which may be granted and yet to be exercised under any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of
the total number of the Company’s Shares in issue from time to time.
Based on the issued share capital of 2,955,697,018 Shares as at 5 May
2015, the Scheme Mandate Limit was 295,569,701 Shares, representing
approximately 9.74% of the total issued Shares as at the date of this
report.

The maximum number of Shares issuable under the share options to each
Participant in the Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant is limited to 1% of the Shares in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their respective associates under
the Share Option Scheme are subject to prior approval of the independent
non-executive Directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive Director, or to
any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the Shares in issue
at any time and having an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from
the date of offer, upon payment of a remittance of HK$10 in favour of
the Company by the grantee. The exercise period of share options granted
is determinable by the Board, save that such exercise period shall not be
more than 10 years from the date of grant of such share options.
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The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board, but may
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant which must be a day
(“Trading Day”) on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of
dealing in securities; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
Trading Days immediately preceding the date of the grant; or (iii) the
nominal value of a Share.

As at 1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024, the number of share
options (“Options”) available for grant under the Scheme Mandate Limit
was both 260,109,701 (31 December 2023: 260,109,701).

The total number of Shares of the Company available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme is 275,765,701 Shares as at 31 December 2024
(2023: 275,765,701 Shares), representing approximately 9.08% (2023:
9.08%) of the 3,035,697,018 ordinary Shares of the Company in issue as
of the dates of this report and the annual report 2023.

There was no Options granted under the Share Option Scheme of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2024. As such, the total
number of shares of the Company that may be issued in respect of the
Options granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended
31 December 2024 divided by the weighted average number of ordinary
Shares of the Company in issue for the year ended 31 December 2024 is 0.

Details of Options granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme are set out as follows:

Date of grant:
RIEBEH:

18 January 2022
—E-F-At+tNH

15 January 2021
—F-_—%—-A+HH

ES=gWE

BREZTEENHAESESRE  BFFER
UTEBEZERE  REXTEHR (BARK
RIRRAETESRRGZAF(RBADER
BMEXZAARRAR (B HEHZARE
PRz By Wi 8 ¢ (NEER TR AT AER
2 BB T3 2 B P2 B dn g e
(& sk(ii)ifn 2 E{E

R-ZE-_WNF—A—BER-_ZE-_NF+=A
=+ —H  REFIFRERBE NIHELH
B ([BRE]) HERA260,109,70117 (=
T-=F+=-A=+—H:260,109,70113) °

RZEZWFE+ZA=+—8 KARIERRE
STEI A 21T 2 IR D 42 & A275,765,701 8% (7
—ZT - =4 :275,765,7010%)  (RE EAHKE
FCECZFFEREBHIEARRBEETTZ
3,035,697,018 L A% 4)9.08% (—Z T - =4 :
9.08%)

HE-_Z-_NF+_-_A=+—HILFER &K
NAIABR TFTHERETS BT 2 EAMERE - &
I BE—_E_NE+-_A=1+—HILEER
AN R AR R R AR AT B0 9% L RS AR T AT AE B AT
ZROBHERQNTNEE-_ZT _NF+ = A
=+ HALFERBEITZ BB A MNE
FHHEZEAT -

AR RREBRE SR N BB IENT

15 January 2020
—Z-_T¥-A+AR

Date of acceptance:
EHAE:

16 February 2022
T FZA+XA

7 employees of the Group,

and none of the grantees is

a Director, chief executive

or substantial shareholder of
the Company or any of their
respective associate(s) (as
defined in the Listing Rules).
REETEREE  BEARAR
ARAER  TREHKEER
REFESBZEMHEACE
EREWRA) -

Valid grantees:

BRARA

12 February 2021
—E-—%-A+CH

6 employees of the Group,

and none of the grantees is

a Director, chief executive

or substantial shareholder of
the Company or any of their
respective associate(s) (as
defined in the Listing Rules).
REBEeEES  BEAKAR
RAREER  THEHKEER
RYABEREB2EMBEACE
£REMRA) -

12 February 2020
“E-FF_At-H

4 employees of the Group,

and none of the grantees is

a Director, chief executive

or substantial shareholder of
the Company or any of their
respective associate(s) (as
defined in the Listing Rules).
REBAIERERE  BEARAR
RRAREE  THEHIEEZER
RABEEELEMHEACE
EREMARA) -

—E_NEFH HFEREEBR LA
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Date of grant:
BB

18 January 2022
e R A=

15 January 2021
—E_—%—-AtHhH

15 January 2020
—ZE-F%—-A+HH

Closing price of the Shares
immediately before the date
of grant

ZERE Bz RO RTE

Exercise price of the Options
granted:
PTIX  BE P 2 1T (B

Total number of Shares to be
issued upon exercise in full of
the Options granted:
RABEITER AT L B R
1T EITIRG 2 8

Options granted to the five
highest paid individuals of the
Group during the financial
year

i)
fi &%

BREEARFAKER
BERMA L B

Options cancelled up to
31 December 2024:

BHE-—Z-_WF+-A=1—
BIEEHEZ BRHE

Options lapsed up to

31 December 2024:
BE_Z-_ME+_A=1—
BIEE Rz BRE

Options vested up to 31
December 2024:
BE_Z-_MFE+_A=+—
BIEERE 2 BRE

HK$0.305 per Share

F/%0.305%5 7T
HK$0.308 per Share
FA%0.308% 7T

13,080,000 Shares

13,080,0004%

Out of the Options granted on
18 January 2022, Options for
7,900,000 Shares in aggregate
were granted to 2 employees
who were among the 5 highest
paid individuals of the Group
during the financial year ended
31 December 2022.
RZZEZZF—-A+N\BELZ
FERR R - 2£757,900,00017 8
BREDET2EEE  RETHE
GREEHE_T-__F+_A
=t+—BLFBRFEENM TR
A5l e

3,763,000 Shares (due to
unfulfilled vesting conditions)

3,763,0008% (A 5 B &1 K
)

Nil

/A

9,317,000 Shares

9,317,0000%

HK$0.270 per Share

FH0.2705 T
HK$0.272 per Share
Fh0.27278 T

11,380,000 Shares

11,380,000/%

Out of the Options granted on
15 January 2021, Options for
9,290,000 Shares in aggregate
were granted to 4 employees

who were among the 5 highest

paid individuals of the Group

during the financial year ended

31 December 2021.

RIZB-_——-A+HEKRLEZ

BERE R - $£59,290,00017 f&
RETDRTAZEER » HEE

FARGEEE_T_—F+_A
=t HLEMBFESRSH

ANEZF e

5,041,000 Shares (due to
unfulfilled vesting conditions)

5,041,0000% (FA A 53 B 161 K
=309

6,339,000 Shares (unexercised
and lapsed on expiry)

6,339,000/% (RIEFTHE A 55

KH%)
Nil

A
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HK$0.250 per Share

Fh%0.250 7T
HK$0.250 per Share
F0%0.2507 T

11,000,000 Shares

11,000,0008%

Out of the Options granted on
15 January 2020, Options for
9,650,000 Shares in aggregate
were granted to 4 employees
who were among the 5 highest
paid individuals of the Group
during the financial year ended
31 December 2020.
R-ZZE_ZTE-A+HBEREZ

BRI - £59,650,00017 B
WEDETIAZEE  BENE

SAREEHE_T-_TF+_A
T BHUEVBFEESNESH
AL 25

1,360,000 Shares (due to
termination of the employment
of a grantee)

1,360,000 (FRM# 1 —
#1E M)

EEA

9,640,000 Shares (unexercised
and lapsed on expiry)
9,640,000/% (R ETTHE I 1 2 H
KH)

Nil

A



Date of grant:
BB

18 January 2022
—E-__F-AtNH
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15 January 2021
—E_—%—-AthHA

ES=gWE

15 January 2020
—E-F%—-A+HA

Vesting period of the
Options:

BREzEBH

Validity period of the
Options:

BN A -

The Options granted shall be
vested upon achievement of
certain vesting conditions as
specified in the offer letter of
each respective grantee. If the
vesting conditions applicable

to the relevant grantee are not
achieved, the unvested Options
granted to such grantee shall

be cancelled as specified in the
offer letter. The Options shall
vest in the proportions to be
determined according to each
particular offer letter on the date
the vesting conditions applicable
to the relevant grantee are
achieved.

FT % o B A 1 1 5 AR B AR A
R Z A K1 ARTBROE T 57 8 15
AR BR 8 o 38 P A AE K
RANBBIGHEREEN BT
BRARANKEBERERER
BN RRTE TIAZH o Bk
BERRAEARNER BB R
ERARRERERNNEERN
HOISE -

The Options vested are
exercisable from the date of
publication of the annual results
of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2024

(the “2024 Results Date”) to
the earlier of (i) the date on
which such Options lapses in
accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme; or (i) the
90th business day after the 2024
Results Date.
EREBRENENERAT
HE-_Z-_N&F+-A=+—H
FEENEFXERR (=%
“HEREABDRITE  BEE
ATRBUAREERE): ()V#
IR IR IR FE AR 5 &I 0 IR Rk
MHBH: () =T _MWFEE
HEfEF90E%H o

The Options granted shall be
vested upon achievement of
certain vesting conditions as
specified in the offer letter of
each respective grantee. If the
vesting conditions applicable

to the relevant grantee are not
achieved, the unvested Options
granted to such grantee shall

be cancelled as specified in the
offer letter. The Options shall
vest in the proportions to be
determined according to each
particular offer letter on the date
the vesting conditions applicable
to the relevant grantee are
achieved.

P o B A A 5 10 5 AR B AR A
) Z A K 1 ARTBIRO S T 57 88 15
HEKEFE - 8 AR AR A
RANBBIGHEREEN BT
AREABRANKERBERIERE
BRINA R RTE TIAZH - B
BERRAEAR NER BB G
ENERREREEORETEN
LPIRE -

Lapsed on 6 August 2024

RZE-_WMFENANBELRN

The Options granted shall be
vested upon achievement of
certain performance targets as
specified in the offer letter of
each respective grantee. If the
vesting conditions applicable

to the relevant grantee are not
achieved, the unvested Options
granted to such grantee shall

be cancelled as specified in

the offer letter. Subject to the
vesting conditions applicable

to the relevant grantee having
been achieved, the Options shall
vest in the proportions to be
determined according to each
particular offer letter on the
30th business day after the date
of publication of the annual
results of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020.
P BB RE IS NS AR A
B EL R EANETANETRRE
TEKEERE o 8RR BEA
RANGBGEREER KT
B RER AR ARG B B IR iR
ZRHARRTE TIATH - 7@
R A AR AR BB G 1 EX
% BRESHTERLAIRE
“ECREF_A=+T—HILE
ENFEXERBRE=TEE
EHRZETEBHRET LA

RIE -

Lapsed on 11 May 2023

RZZE-_=FRA+—HEBKRX

—E_NEFH HFEREEBR LA
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(a)

N e

% = ¥ 5

The Options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme during the (3) RWEE > BIEZFE M RITFE 2B

reporting period are as follows: BT

2024 2023
—E-ME “T =

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price Options price Options

mEEH nHEFG
TEE BREZE 118 EiREHE
HK$ '000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 BT T
Outstanding at 1 January R—A—BHRETE 0.293 15,656 0.281 29,059
Granted during the year FREH - - - -
Exercised during the year FRITRE - - - -
Lapsed during the year FREM 0.272 6,339? 0.250 9,640
Cancelled during the year FNWEE - - 0.308 3,763

Outstanding at 31 December R+=ZR=+—8H

W R 0.308 9,317® 0.293 15,656
Vested during the year ENGE - - 0.308 9,317
Exercisable at 31 December TRt+-—A=+—H177f 0.308 9,317 0.293 15,656

Notes: it -

(1) Of the 15,656,000 Options outstanding as at 1 January 2024, () RZTE_NF—A—H #HKRET
4,660,000 Options in aggregate were those granted to 1 215,656,000 lE ik - HF
employee who were among the 5 highest paid individuals of the 4,660,000 B R #E H IR T1R1EE
Group during the financial year ended 31 December 2024. BTMESAERHEEZ ST _NFE+ =

R=+—HB LB ERFE &S HA
+25 -

(2) The exercise price of such 6,339,000 Options lapsed was (2) #%6,339,0000 B AWz BB E
HK$0.272 per Share. Of the 6,339,000 Options lapsed during the TEEAEBRI2I2ET -HE_-Z
year ended 31 December 2024, 2,704,000 Options in aggregate —ME+ZZA=+—HILEFEZE
were those granted to 1 employee who were among the 5 highest KM 26,339,00010 BEMHEF - H B
paid individuals of the Group during the financial year ended 31 2,704,000 R ETDE T1%EE -
December 2024. BB GAEEHE T _NFE+ =

A=+t—BIEMBRFEN&E=FTA
T 25
(3) The number of Shares of the Company that may be issued in (3) ®Z%9,317,0000p (ZTE =% :

respect of such 9,317,000 (2023: 15,656,000) outstanding
Options is 9,317,000 (2023: 15,656,000) Shares, representing
approximately 0.31% (2023: 0.52%) of the ordinary Shares of
the Company in issue as at 31 December 2024. Of the 9,317,000
Options outstanding as at 31 December 2024, 4,660,000 Options
in aggregate were those granted to 1 employee who were among
the 5 highest paid individuals of the Group during the financial
year ended 31 December 2024.
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15,656,00010) W R E1TFE 2 B K
BEE  ARAAEBRITZRG
2B 59,317,0000% (=T — =& :
15,656,000/%) + WMh AR AI#H =
—E-_NMFE+-_A=+—HLE#
TEBBRKRMDAN031% (ZZT ==
F:052%) HRZET-_WMF+=A
E+—El ki AR IESTHE 29,317,000
DB RESR - £H4,660,00017 B8 A #E
IETIZEE BENESZAEERE
EZ-_NF+-_A=+—HLEFK
FESfImEHFALTZ -
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The fair value of the Options granted on 18 January 2022, 15
January 2021 and 15 January 2020 at their respective date of grant
was approximately HK$1,092,000, HK$578,000 and HK$836,000
respectively, of which the Group has recognised total share option
expense of approximately HK$353,000 (2023: HK$489,000)
charged to profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2024.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company has released
approximately HK$578,000 from the Share Option reserve in the
equity directly back to the retained earnings, of which the amount
representing the fair value of services received and having charged
to profit and loss in previous years in return for the Options
granted on 15 January 2021 that remained unexercised and being
automatically lapsed upon expiry on 6 August 2024.

The fair value of services received in return for Options granted
and remained outstanding is measured with reference to the fair
value of Options granted. The estimate of the fair value of Options
has been measured based on binomial option pricing model by
the independent firm of professional valuer, Colliers International,
taking into account the terms and condition upon which the Options
were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

ES=gWE

RZEZZF—A+NB -ZZ2=—F
—A+HEBR-_ZE-_EF-—A+EHAE
CHEREASEREBBHOATES
A #7 A1,092,000/% Jt + 578,000/ T &
836,000 L AR AKEEERBE_-Z
—HE+ A=+ BLFEERBR
RIS A5H49353,0008 L (Z T - =4 :
489,000/87L) - WEEEBZFH MM -

BE_ZEZ-_M&E+-_A=+—RHIFE -
KRARERRAERTNBRERER
ZEEORE A 4578,0008 T - 2L 58
R T —A+HARTER
EAREREZ A FEEL RN EFEE T
ABHE ZEAETEZERER T
“MENANBRBHEEBAY -

h ER IR H R AT AR 77 5 2 B R AR 4
RBzAFEDZEEELBREZA
FEFE-BREZAFEZMGFIIA
BURXMHEMS HBEERE _BAH
REERAFE UEBEINRTHEZ
R AR - TR T AERMEN
& AR :

Date of grant

®E B8

18 January

2022

T —F

—A+N\R

Fair value at grant date B RHNATE HK$0.101 7T
Share price at grant date BB E S HK$0.305/8 7T
Exercise price TEE HK$0.308/8 7T
Expected volatility T8 HR O B = 51.845%
Expected life of Options T8 5t B 4F B 3.54 years®F
Expected dividend paid THER B X 2.36%
Risk-free interest rate % [ B ) = 1.18%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated
based on the weighted average remaining life of the share options),
adjusted by any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the Option granted.

T8 HA R 08 DA R S2 R R A L 2E (IRAR B A
ZIEFHRBERAE)  XREEA
NFAEFZERNESBRIKLE 2 EM
BT ARE - FHEREUELR
EREE -FIRAIBERRZEDHAUY
RFEZEFAEEERAZE -

RN B BRI ARG R X R - R
AAEERRZ RBENEHBHZAFE
B ZIGRMLESEER - SIEERY
BREABZMSEE -

=%

TMEFE MFRASEERAA
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY OR

ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which are required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which are required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix C3 (“Model
Code") of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

The Company

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

EERTETBHAERAL
] 8 A 2 8 4E {7 $5 BR 4 % 5
EBBREE % - tHE8
B REEREPZESER
B

R-ZE-_NMFE+-_A=+—H EE=KARQRH
CEZITBRABRARARREBELE (T X
REHFRBEKD ([EHRBEEG ) EXVEE)
5 RERDREEETFHEEREES X
HEEOEXVIBETRESH PAEMNESARA K
BRIz EmRAR (BEREREES XY
EOIBEE T A ES R IERE 2 msk
KB - HIREBES M E KA EIS2EEL A
ZiERM B Em kAR - HBE LT
ARG EMBITAESETELSRIHNIEZ
MESFRI([MZESFAD) MBS AR A LB RFT
CHEBRKRWMT

ZA/NG]
RAR ARG RIGHERE B

Number of Shares

BB EE

Approximate
percentage
of total Shares
in issue
Capacity in which Shares Number of HEe BT
Name of Director were held Shares held ROBEZ
BEENE BERONE S FERGEE BHABEDE
Mr. XI Yu (note) Interests of a controlled corporation 1,109,303,201 36.54

EEEAE (HF) 3z NGIE - £
Ms. LIU Yu Jie Beneficial owner 202,400,000 6.67

ERLZ L EmEAA
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Associated corporation ik 97
Long positions in ordinary shares of NUEL RNUELZ B IR.Z 4B

Number of ordinary shares of USD1.00 each of NUEL
BREE1.00% T ZNUELE BRE A

Approximate

percentage
of total shares
Capacity in Number of in issue
which ordinary ordinary He &7
Name of Director shares were held shares held R EE
BEEgR BEEERERNE G FEEBERHE BABDL
Mr. XI Yu (note) Beneficial owner 16,732 83.66
EEEHE (M) ExnBEAEA
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling (note) Beneficial owner and Interests of
spouse 2,428 12.14
KN+ (H7aT) Eana AR B#ER
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica (note) Beneficial owner 420 2.10
E X2+ (K7aE) ExnAA
Note: New Universe Enterprises Limited ("NUEL") is beneficially interested 47z - New Universe Enterprises Limited
in 1,109,303,201 Shares, representing approximately 36.54% of the (NUELJ)) % E1,109,303,201%
issued share capital of the Company. Mr. XI Yu, Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling B BHERAATZEETRAYLY
and Ms. XI Man Shan Erica are also directors of NUEL. 36.54% c XK E - RNPNERTREX

M+ I BNUELZ B % -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors B EX IR EEN RN T —MFE+ — A
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in =1+ —H ' HiBEEFHARFZ ET2THAE
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its AR A EAEMBEEE (F& KBS LY
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which ~ E & Bl EXVEL) 2 Ik tn - 1HRBE I fn sk B E
were entered in the register referred to therein as required pursuant to A R E 5 R B & 50 3521k 0 A #Z 1%
section 352 of the SFO or required, to be notified to the Company and the il 2 B &M 2w sX B - SR IEIREF A
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. MABMERNRR R ZERIKE -

—ECHEER HERREEARA2AF 119



120

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFETWME

INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

AND OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2024, the interests or short positions of those persons,
other than the Directors or the chief executives of the Company whose
interests has been disclosed therein above, in the Shares which has to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and or underlying shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO are as
follows:

TERRREMALTHRAER
A REARARMFZHESR
R/HRAE

R-ZE-NF+-F=+—H BAQRAES
REZBTRABE (BE2HZR EXHEE) N2
ZEATRBROFEEREES NBERIE
XVEBE2R3D FARM AR R E BN ERIAR
K,/ s AE BB 0 B B AR 8RR AN R R R IR 3%
HFREEKAEIBCKAEFE 2 LMz iER
FABWMT :

Long Positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

REATRGREBEROGNETR
Approximate
percentage
of total shares
in issue
Capacity in which ordinary Number of e &7
Name of shareholder shares were held shares held R EE
R & B FEZERNEH RO EE BRBEDL
Mr. XI Yu @ Interests of a controlled corporation 1,109,303,201 36.54
HEEHEO ZPEHIN AR
NUEL @ Beneficial owner 1,109,303,201 36.54
EmEAA
China Minsheng Investment Group Interests of a controlled corporation 800,000,000 26.35
Corporation Ltd
(FERARERMDBRAQA)
("R ®
FRERAKRERDEBERAF ek VNI
(ThR#KR])®
AREGDMNEEEEBRAT Interests of a controlled corporation 800,000,000 26.35
(“CMIG-Asia”™) @
PREDMNEEEERER QA ek VNI
(TR R&KZZM])®
CMI Financial Holding Corporation Interests of a controlled corporation 800,000,000 26.35
(“CMIF-BVI™) @
CMI Financial Holding Corporation SPEHIN Al
([EBERZEEBCMIF])®
CMIG International Capital Limited Interests of a controlled corporation 800,000,000 26.35
(“CMIG-Hong Kong™) @
FREEREREGRA A PEHIA A
([FEPREKR]®
CM International Capital Limited Beneficial owner 800,000,000 26.35
(“CMIC-Cayman™) @
CM International Capital Limited EmEAA
(TRZCMIC])®
Ms. LIU Yu Jie @ Beneficial owner 202,400,000 6.67
B F A A £ ExnEAA
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Notes:

(i) NUEL is directly owned as to 83.66% by Mr. XI Yu. The interest disclosed
by Mr. XI Yu as a Shareholder deemed interested in the 1,109,303,201
Shares is the same interest as disclosed by him being a Director.

(i) CMIC-Cayman is 100 % directly owned by CMIG-Hong Kong.
CMIG-Hong Kong is 31.5% directly owned by # & 3% and 68.5%
directly owned by CMIF-BVI. CMIF-BVI is 100% directly owned by
CMIG-Asia. CMIG-Asia is 100% directly owned by 1 R#%. CMIG-Hong
Kong, CMIF-BVI, CMIG-Asia and F R#% are all deemed interested in the
800,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by CMIC-Cayman.

(i) The interest disclosed by Ms. LIU Yu Jie as a Shareholder is the same
interest as disclosed by her being a Director.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, so far as is known to
the Directors, the Company has not been notified of any other interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares which had been
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning for the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed under “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/
or Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares, and Debenture of the
Company or Any Specified Undertaking of the Company or Any Other
Associated Corporation”, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares granted to any Director
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or the Company’s
subsidiary or holding company of a subsidiary of the Company’s holding
company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

ES=gWE

() NUELHE R L EZHHBS3.66%  ZE 5t
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Details of the Group’s related party transactions are set out in note 40
to the consolidated financial statements. Such related party transactions
do not fall under the definition of connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

There was no other connected transactions (defined under the Listing
Rules) which were discloseable in the reporting period or any time during
the year ended 31 December 2024.

PROVISION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND
GUARANTEES TO AN AFFILIATED COMPANY

On 25 September 2020, the Company and the joint venturer, as the
joint guarantors, entered into the guarantee agreement with a bank in
the PRC to jointly guarantee the repayment obligations of Liuzhou Xinyu
Rongkai Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited* (“Xinyu Rongkai” a
65% indirectly owned joint venture of the Company and being accounted
for using equity method) in relation to the bank loan facilities in a total
amount of RMB120,000,000 (approximately HK$127,680,000) and
the guarantee is effective until 31 December 2027, for the purpose of
financing the construction of the integrated hazardous waste treatment
project undertook by Xinyu Rongkai at Liuzhou, Guangxi Province, the
PRC.

On 7 December 2022, the Company as a guarantor, entered into a
guarantee agreement with another bank in the PRC to guarantee the
repayment obligations amounted to RMB5,850,000 (approximately
HK$6,224,000) based on 65% equity interest in Xinyu Rongkai for
a short-term banking facilities in a total amount of RMB9,000,000
(approximately HK$9,576,000) and the guarantee has been extended to
4 December 2027, for general working capital purpose of Xinyu Rongkai.
The related bank borrowings as guaranteed has been fully settled on 4
December 2024.

The banking facilities of Xinyu Rongkai guaranteed by the
Company amounting to 65% of RMB129,000,000, (approximately
HK$137,256,000) (2023: RMB129,000,000, approximately
HK$141,900,000) of which RMB125,100,000 (approximately
HK$133,106,000) (2023: RMB125,100,000, approximately
HK$137,610,000) was utilised, and loans of approximately
RMB47,048,000 (approximately HK$50,059,000) (2023: RMB63,148,000,
approximately HK$69,462,000) were outstanding as at 31 December
2024, which is repayable on 21 June 2025 and bearing interest at fixed
rate at 4.25% (2023: ranging from 4.35% to 6.00%) per annum.
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On 19 June 2023, New Universe International Group Limited (a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company which directly holds 65% equity
interest in Xinyu Rongkai) as Lender A, the joint venturer, (Guangxi
Rongkai Huayuan Electroplating Industrial Park Investment Company
Limited*, which directly holds 35% equity interest in Xinyu Rongkai) as
Lender B, and Xinyu Rongkai as the borrower have jointly entered into a
loan agreement (the “JV Loan Agreement”) for a loan of RMB15,500,000
(approximately HK$16,492,000) which is unsecured, bearing interest at
4.05% per annum and repayable on 20 June 2025. Pursuant to the JV
Loan Agreement, in proportion to the respective shareholdings, Lender
A agreed to lend RMB10,075,000 (approximately HK$10,720,000) and
Lender B agreed to lend RMB5,425,000 (approximately HK$5,772,000)
to Xinyu Rongkai respectively. The loan has been drawn down by Xinyu
Rongkai on 20 June 2023 and used for the repayment of bank loan
instalment and interest due on 21 June 2023. As at 31 December 2024,
the loan to Xinyu Rongkai pursuant to the JV Loan Agreement from
the Group was RMB10,075,000 (approximately HK$10,720,000) (2023:
RMB10,075,000 (approximately HK$11,083,000)).

During the year ended 31 December 2024, Zhenjiang Xinrong
Environmental Technologies Limited (formerly name as Jiangsu Xin Yu
Environmental Technologies Limited)* and Jiangsu Xinyu Environmental
Company Limited* (the wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company) has
made advances to Xinyu Rongkai, for its general operating purpose,
which are unsecured, bearing interest at fixed rates ranging from 3.20%
to 4.05% (2023: 3.55% to 4.05%) per annum and with no fixed terms
of repayment. As at 31 December 2024, such advances due from Xinyu
Rongkai to the Group was in aggregate approximately of HK$28,213,000
(2023: HK$13,435,000).
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The following table summarised the financial information relating to the
Group's joint venture at the end of the reporting period:

TERBINERAKESEEENMERARZE
BERME

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

2024 2023
—E-EF T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHEIT
Gross amounts of the joint venture’s EELECHSE
Non-current assets ERBEE 144,586 160,707
Current assets TENE B 554 778
Current liabilities mEEE (111,142) (87,316)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (16,492) (39,399)
Equity [N 17,506 34,770
The Group’s attributable interest in FEAEEREGELEY
the joint venture ERZHE
Gross amount of net assets of the joint venture A& MCEEEFEZBLHE 17,506 34,770
The Group's share of net assets of the joint AEBOIEEECECEEFE
venture 11,378 22,600
The Group's share of shareholders' loan AEBSEREER 10,720 11,083
Carrying amount of net assets of the joint SECEFEEREE
venture 22,098 33,683

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SIGNIFICANT
CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2024 and any time during the year, transactions,
arrangements, or contracts subsisted, of which certain Directors had
interests that were deemed significant to the business of the Group are set
out as follows:

(@  Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling, the executive Directors, are
also the directors of the landlord, Sun Ngai International Investment
Limited (“Sun Ngai”) to the tenancy agreement dated 21 July 2023
that was entered into by Smartech Services Limited (“Smartech
Services”), an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the Company)
as tenant to lease three office units at Rooms 2109 to 2111, Telford
House, 16 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong (the “Office
Premises”) for the period from 1 August 2023 to 31 July 2024 at a
monthly rental of HK$80,000.
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(b) A renewed tenancy agreement dated 26 July 2024 was entered into
between Sun Ngai as landlord and Smartech Services as tenant for
leasing the Office Premises for the period from 1 August 2024 to 31
July 2025 at a monthly rental of HK$80,000.

(c)  For the year ended 31 December 2024, total rentals paid
by Smartech Services to Sun Ngai were HK$960,000 (2023:
HK$960,000).

The above transactions were conducted on terms no less favourable
than terms available from independent third parties which were in the
ordinary course of business of the Group. The afore-mentioned tenancy
agreements entered into between the wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, Smartech Services and Sun Ngai were de minimis transactions
exempted under rule 14A.76(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed therein, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to which the Company, any of its holding company,
subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the reporting period or any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Ms. LIU Yu Jie was appointed executive Director with effect from 9 June
2015, who has investments in four companies engaging in the operation
of hazardous waste projects in four cities in the Mainland China, of which
she has a controlling stake in one of the four said companies. As the
permission licence to operate hazardous wastes in each of the four said
cities is exclusive, and the Group does not have any such operations in
those cities, the Board considers that the said investments of Ms. LIU Yu Jie
do not compete with the interests of the Group.

Save as disclosed therein, during the year and up to the date of this report,
the Directors were not aware of any business or interest of the Directors or
any substantial Shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) and their
respective associates that had competed or might compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interests which any such person had or might have with the Group.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) for the
benefit of the Directors of the Company is currently in force and has
been in force throughout this year in accordance with article 164 of the
Company'’s articles of association.

Directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, losses, damages and
expenses which any of them shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty
or supposed duty in their respective offices. The Company has taken out
insurance against the liability and costs associated with defending any
proceedings which may be brought against Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in this report, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or subsisted
during the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors during the year and up to the date of
this annual report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of
the Company's issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Significant subsequent events occurred after the reporting period are set
out in note 46 to the financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group pays high regards to legal and regulatory requirements in
formulating its policies and practices. The Company has engaged with
financial advisers to advice on the compliance with the Listing Rules.
Legal advisers have also been engaged to ensure the Group operates
in accordance with applicable laws and regulations for major corporate
events of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group was not aware of

material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.
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REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. YANG Harry (Chairman of Audit Committee), Mr. HO Yau
Hong, Alfred and Ms. XIANG Ling, has reviewed with the management the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2024.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company and the Group for the three
years ended 31 December 2024 were audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
("Crowe (HK)"). Crowe (HK) retires and, being eligible, offers itself for
re-appointment and a resolution for the re-appointment of Crowe (HK)
as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
RERESS

0L/

N

XI Yu
ZXx
Chairman

FE

Hong Kong, 21 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Bz BED &

A\ Crowe

To the shareholders of
New Universe Environmental Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New Universe
Environmental Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 135 to 276, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The Key Audit Matter
BRERER

(@) Impairment of trade and bills receivables
(including lease receivables)
(refer to notes 23 and 43(c) to the consolidated
financial statements)

As at 31 December 2024, trade and bills receivables
(including lease receivables) of the Group were
approximately HK$67,973,000 (net of provision for
lifetime expected credit losses). Lifetime expected
credit losses of trade and bills receivables (including
lease receivables) are based on management’s estimate
of the lifetime expected credit losses to be incurred,
which is estimated by taking into account the credit
loss experience, ageing of overdue trade receivables,
customers’ repayment history and customers’ financial
position and an assessment of both the current
and forecast of future economic conditions, all of
which involve a significant degree of management
judgement.

(a) EUERRRZEE(BEEREE) ZRE
(FBR2HREMEREMN 23 5%43()

RZZE-ZME+=ZA=+—B  E5EZREEERR
EB (BERKIEE) 8/567,973,0008 7T (2 k% 2 H
BEHEEBRRE)  RUEERRER (BREEWES)
ZEHEREEFREFANEREHBELAZ 2 HITE
HEEBERMEGAER (FHEAKEECEBEAL
B BHEWNERZER FEPERLCERETEFPUR
AR - 3 % B AT R SRR R EARAE R RS - AL
BREY R EEBEHERZREAH 6 -

B M % BUAD R S

HEEZER(E)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERREET A

Our audit procedures on this area included:

- Assessing and testing the Group’s processes and
key controls relating to the monitoring of trade and
bills receivables (including lease receivables) and the
granting of credit terms and contract terms relating to
billing milestones;

- Testing the accuracy of ageing analyses and obtaining
direct confirmations for samples of debtor balances;

- Evaluating the adequacy of the Group’s provision
for lifetime expected credit losses of trade and bills
receivables (including lease receivables) by reference
to the Group’s historical default data, the historical
bad debt loss rates as adjusted based on the current
economic condition during the year ended and as at 31
December 2024 and forward-looking information such
as the published forecast of GDP in the PRC; and

- Reviewing the settlements of the Group’s customers
during the year and up to the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements.

We also considered the adequacy of the disclosures, in
particular those included in notes 23 and 43(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

BPMEERENEREFEHE

- FHEMAE EREEEERBURFNRE (BREEK
THE) AR T E5H 5 B2 R 015 RN & [R5
A ERREA RS
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BHRHER

- 2%z ESETBNELEROBE BREEE—_T-K
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FBELFRBRE - URATRMENER (FINE &M
MR EERAEEAGETRR) - U BEREHRUE
FNEZ (EREEEE) W2HRNEEBERRES
BrRE K&
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BHIEEBMR -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The Key Audit Matter
BHRERER

(b)

(b)

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Impairment assessment of interest in an associate
(refer to notes 3(a)(vi) and 19(b) to the consolidated
financial statements)

At 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of the
Group's 30% equity interest in IR/LETEREXF
EfERE R B AR A A “Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park Tianyu Solid Waste Disposal Co., Ltd” (“"NCIP")
was approximately HK$98,039,000 and the Group's
share of loss of NCIP for the year was approximately
HK$10,724,000.

The recoverable amount of the Group’s 30% equity
interest in NCIP is the higher of value-in-use and fair
value less costs of disposal. At 31 December 2024,
impairment assessment on the carrying amount of the
Group’s 30% equity interest in NCIP was performed
by management by reference to the valuation of NCIP,
as an identified cash-generating unit, conducted by an
independent professional valuer with experience and
qualification in valuing similar assets.

The impairment assessment on the carrying value of
the Group's equity interest in NCIP at the reporting
period end involves significant judgements made by
management of the Group and estimation uncertainty.

—RBERQ ﬂ%?&ﬂ’mﬁfﬁ-ﬂﬁ
(F2H&E M B MR M E3@)(vi) & 19(b)

RZZE-_NF+=-A=+—H  BEERER{tBET
KEXFEE EEMEEAR AR ([AMRAF]) 30%K
AR BREE4) 598,039,000/ 7T © 1 HEBNA
FEEMBERAFEIELE10,724,00058 7T °

£ BA F AR T30 % A% AN 23 1) A U [0] 5 B8 2 {5 A

fﬂﬁiﬁi FEA LB AMEOREE < R —F
FH_A=+—RH ERE2ZEFRUBEMRER
BEERNBIGEMEEARART EREBMRSE
EEBA)ETHREYS BEEERERRTI0%MAE
a3 A BRI E A TT R E T -

RBERRY BEEERERATRAEZREEN
WMERGY R BEBEEERENEAHE &G HE

FHEEZER(E)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERREE T

Our audit procedures on this area included:

Performing a review on the financial statements of
NCIP for the two years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023;

Assessing the independent professional valuer’s
independence, competence, capabilities and
objectivity;

Evaluating the appropriateness for the valuation
methodologies used at reporting period end;

Checking the projection of cash flows of NCIP
in the valuation models to the detailed forecasts
prepared by management of NCIP and evaluating the
reasonableness of key assumptions underlying the cash
flow projection;

Assessing the reasonableness of the discount rate and
long-term growth rate in the valuation models, to
which the long-term growth rate not exceeding the
industry data at public domains; and

Challenging and evaluating the key assumptions in the
valuation model made by management of NCIP and the
independent valuer.

We also considered the adequacy of disclosures, in particular
those included in notes 3(a)(vi) and 19(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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BATRE R R ERESE

EHNERRATEE_T_NFR_T_=ZF+_A4
=T -BIEREFENTBERSK
AEBEEGEMNBELME A% N RFHIL:
FHERBERAREANGHETEZEEEE
HRERATEEERAENFABAREGERAD
ARAFHNHRERBANLFHEEBRSRANEE

REHE RN

AEEERATOTRAEIRERERINAEE &
TRERXTBBAFAINTERE X

W R I R R T R B R L (AR (B A
) EB RS -

B 75 2R 2= BT 51 3(a) (vi) B2 19(b) 1 £

EMBBEIERR -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

B M % BUAD R S
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Bz BED &

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
BIEXE (58 EtMSEMERATR
Certified Public Accountants

L E S

Liu, Mok Lan, Cliny
B
Practising Certificate Number: P07270

HME MBI - P07270

Hong Kong, 21 March 2025
BB —E-_RAF=A=-+—H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OER LOSS

AN
AN - |

@ K

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_-ZT —P4E+— )51 Jr EIJJ:@V

2024 2023
—E-_IME —E-=F
Note HKS'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 TER FHT
Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue \ 4(a) 349,416 405,612
Cost of sales R 9 (294,585) (340,195)
Gross profit EH 54,831 65,417
Other revenue ot Y 25 6 3,745 3,945
Other income H b A 7 5,705 6,781
Distribution costs DB AR (17,585) (19,263)
Administrative expenses THHX (43,699) (49,771)
Research and development expenses e & (5,716) (6,055)
Reversal of impairment loss on trade FEW AR 2 R E BB
receivables, net R 43(c) 5,009 15,672
Other operating expenses HipG&2HEY 9 (7,031) (15,451)
Operating (loss)/profit e (B8R (4,741) 1,275
Finance income BE KA 8 4,550 5,469
Finance costs REMK 8 (1,811) (3,780)
Finance income, net BMEWA - FHE 8 2,739 1,689
Share of results of associates DEEE R E 2 R E 19 (9,445) (9,416)
Share of results of a joint venture DE—REBLEZEE 20 (10,660) (11,726)
Loss before taxation PR AT & 18 9 (22,107) (18,178)
Income tax FrigHt 12 (9,498) (13,053)
Loss from continuing operations REFELEXBZESR (31,605) (31,231)
Discontinued operation CRIEEEER
Loss from discontinued operation RECARLBEEEZER 5 - (4,536)
Loss for the year FEFR (31,605) (35,767)
Attributable to: l«)\TAiE{E
Owners of the Company iN/N T%ﬁﬁ}\ (26,335) (33,118)
Non-controlling interests FEE R = (5,270) (2,649)
(31,605) (35,767)
Loss attributable to owners ANFEEAER.
of the Company: . BR:
- From continuing operations —RARBBELES (26,335) (28,582)
— From discontinued operation —RAEKRIEE=SER - (4,536)
(26,335) (33,118)
Loss per share BRER 14
From continuing and discontinued operations 3% B 148 2 B 4% |48 & ¥ 7% .
Basic and diluted HEAREE HK cents (0.87) 1l HK cents(1.09)7% Ll
From continuing operations REBELEER .
Basic and diluted HEAR#E HK cents (0.87) 1l  HK cents(0.94)7& L

F1REZF276 A ZHETIER AT B RER D
AR Z BB D o

The notes on pages 142 to 276 are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

= 2 2
m e B fit 2 @ W = *F
For the year ended 31 December 2024 EHZE—Z-NNF+-A=+—HIFE
2024 2023
—E-E o=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 TER FHET
Loss for the year FEFE (31,605) (35,767)
Other comprehensive income: Hith 2wk :
Items that may be reclassified HEAWEBEFT S EEEm.2
subsequently to profit or loss: HE -
Exchange differences N =
— on translation of financial statements —BREBINNERATZ
of overseas subsidiaries B E (22,390) (16,778)
— on translation of financial statements —BREBIINEE AT Z
of overseas associates BT 19 (4,389) (3,931)
- on translation of financial statements —BE-—RBIEEEY
of an overseas joint venture B Rk 20 (925) (887)
Release of translation reserve BRI E G
— upon disposal of discontinued —EHEDRIEREER
operation 18(c) - 352
Items that will not be reclassified HEHBTBET D HEZ B 2
subsequently to profit or loss: HE -
Fair value changes on equity investments #@E M2 EWRIZAFE
at fair value through other ABRZBRAEKE 2 2 FE
comprehensive g (T adE)
income (non-recycling) 21 16,900 11,200
Deferred tax effect relating to changes B AR E N :FE“EJ
in fair value of equity investments FAZERERGZE 33(b) (860) (2,170)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FE H 2wz
net of income tax MBRFA1SH (11,664) (12,214)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEXHEEEAE (43,269) (47,981)
Attributable to: THALHEA:
Owners of the Company KARHEEB A (34,694) (42,379)
Non-controlling interests PR R (8,575) (5,602)
(43,269) (47,981)
Total comprehensive loss for the ARREEAEBEFREZE
year attributable to owners of EBIEAERE
the Company arises from:
Continuing operations =¥ (34,694) (38,195)
Discontinued operation BRI E X - (4,184)
(34,694) (42,379)

FVREZF276 A ZHETIBR AT B RER D
AR Z BB n

The notes on pages 142 to 276 are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mAE BB R R

As at 31 December 2024 KR-Z-MH&+-F=+—H
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FAET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MEE 15 516,681 578,436
Right-of-use assets FTREEE 16 93,767 98,547
Goodwill [EES 17 33,000 33,000
Interests in associates REEE N T 2w 19 125,065 138,899
Interest in a joint venture R—REELEZESR 20 22,098 33,683
Equity investments at fair value through  3&3@ E b 2 E U 52 A FE AR
other comprehensive income ZRAEIEE 21 98,400 81,500
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEE = 33(b) 4,415 5,846
893,426 969,911
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 3,876 4,936
Trade and bills receivables FEURBR 7k S ZE IR 23 67,973 92,617
Prepayments, deposits and AR HRIE - RER
other receivables H th JE SRR 24 43,317 32,497
Pledged bank deposits Z R HIERITER 25 4,304 731
Cash and cash equivalents BeLERIBEEIER 25 220,823 186,365
340,293 317,146
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFEHEZEAE 26 13,896 14,367
354,189 331,513
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 27 44,752 44,000
Trade and bills payables ENREAEER 28 38,613 59,392
Accrued liabilities and other payables EiraEREMmENFKIE 29 155,167 137,374
Lease liabilities HESRE 30 = 332
Contract liabilities EHBaE 31 4,603 4,272
Deferred government grants i 3E R AT 48 B 32 1,595 1,881
Income tax payable FERTFR R 33(a) 2,132 2,729
246,862 249,980
Net current assets REBEEFSE 107,327 81,533
Total assets wEE 1,247,615 1,301,424
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 1,000,753 1,051,444

—E_MEER HFFRAREBEBR AT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
E BB R R

As at 31 December 2024 HR-_Z-NHF+_-HF=+—H

2024 2023
—E-mEF —E-=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=g THET FAET
Non-current liabilities FREBAE
Deferred government grants IR AT BUAT 485 Bb 32 6,715 8,360
Deferred tax liabilities REMIAEE 33(b) 29,588 29,725
36,303 38,085
Total liabilities HwaE 283,165 288,065
Net assets EEFE 964,450 1,013,359
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital R A 34 30,357 30,357
Reserves i 35 838,696 877,894
Equity attributable to owners of the ZIN/NETEZZ =N
Company JE {5 AR AR 869,053 908,251
Non-controlling interests e IR A 18(b) 95,397 105,108
Total equity R4 EE 964,450 1,013,359

The notes on pages 142 to 276 are an integral part of these financial 1428 22768 2 Wi 5T J# K A8 & & T
statements. Al SR 2 FR A o

o/ N

\
XI Yu CHEUNG Siu Ling
% RN
Chairman Executive Director
e HITEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQE%IT%

72¢fﬂi+fﬂ_+ BIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 %@

e |

N\

Attributable to owners of the Company

LT LN

a5 &

27

4=4

\ moin

Investment Share Non-
Share Share  Translation revaluation ~ Capitl ~ option  Statutory  Retained controlling
Gpital  premium  reserve }f&;g@ reseve  reseve  resene  profits Total  interests Total equity
Bt BBEE  EXRE BE BIRE BREBE %ERE  REW 8 FRREE  RAAE
HESO0D  HKS00D  HK000  HKSOO0  HKFOOD  HKFOOD  HKSO0D  HKSO0D  HKSO0  HKS00  HK§'0
thn  TEn TR A TR T T TR TEm Thr TR
(note (note (note (note (note [note
(note 34 35( )()) o s ) 38 35l
[lF [ ’/”E cf,fif A ’W iz Wﬂ
() 350 15/ ) el s e 3l
1 January 2023 AF2ZE-§-H 017 s (29508 4149 511 181 %% 6B %IeT 1380 1075507
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - S 1 A I R 9 7/
Other comprehensive income ﬁﬁtAE%
Bxchange differences EizE
- on ranslaton of financia statements of -BERMNBA A ZEEER
Overseas Subsidiaries - - (138) - - - - - (138 2953 (16779)
- on ranslaton of financia statements of -BERNBENTZERRR
OVersegs associates - - (3931) - - - - - (3931) - (3931)
- ontrandlaton of financial statements of an -~ - BE-FENAEAF2EHRR
Oversess Jointventure - - (887) - - - - - (887) - (887)
- telease of transltion reserve upon disposelof -
discontinued operation (note 16/c) i - - 3 - - - - - 3 - 3
Falr vlue changes on equity investments, netof Hxﬂi
deferred tax 58) - - - 9,030 - - - - 9030 - 9,030
Total comprehensive los for he year - - (18 9030 - - - BNy @3 BKY) e)
Transfr o statutory resenve - - - - - - 2039 2039 - - -
Equity-<ettled share-0ased transactions
(note 39) - - - - - 489 - - 189 - 489
Lapse of share options - - - - - (133) - 13 - - -
Dividend relting to 2022 - - - - - - - (153 (1,536) - (1153
Dividend paic and payable to non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (3,120 (3120
At31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024
0317 456465 (47,799) 13179 51 1137 94891 354849 908251 105108 10133%
Loss for the year i - - - - - - - 63 (26339 (52000 (31,609)
Other comprehensiveincome 12EhE
Bichange differences 18
-on ransaton of finencilstatementsof -~ ~BEENHEATLBAER
overseas subsidiaries - - (19,089 - - - - - (19,08 (3305 Q3%
- on tanslton offnanci statements of -BERNBEL T HRER
0Verseas assoclates - - (4.389) - - - - - (4389) - (4.389)
- on translaton of financial statements of an -~ -~ BE-FENAERF EIERR
0versegs oint venture - - 929) - - - - - (925) - 929)
Fair value changes on equity investments, net of - AR E 2 AT EEE (MBETHA
Gefered tax k38 - - - 1600 - - - - 1600 - 160w
Total comprehensiv los for the year EELAERLE - -39 16040 - - - 83 (e 85T (3.269)
Transter to tatutory resrve ;‘%‘:iifﬁﬁ = - - - - N 1 I - s s
Equity-setted share-based transactions B ERRAERREL
(note 39) - - - - - 33 - - 33 - 33
Lapse of share options - - - - - (578) - 578 - - -
Dhidend relatng to 2023 CRo-ERR = = - > - - S s ) - g
Dividend pid and payable o non-contrling MW% AU ARERERH
interests of subsiciaies RERRE = = = - - - = = - (1136 (1130)
At31 December 2024 iduJud 3 4 0357 %465 (219 29219 51 M B0 335 K908 93T %4450

The notes on pages 142 to 276 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FEBHEITMNE X

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE—T-UF+—A=+—RHIFE

2024 2023
—E-ME =
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
s FET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES K
Loss before taxation Fr ¢ B B 18 (22,107) (18,178)
Adjustments for: AT SEELHFE
Interest income FEWA 8 (4,555) (4,993)
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZFE 8 1,802 3,756
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGZHNE 8 9 24
Dividends from equity investments REBRAEEZE ZKE 6 (3.745) (3,945)
Share of results of associates SREE AR 2 EA 19 9,445 9,416
Share of results of a joint venture DIE—REBEDEEE 20 10,660 11,726
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BB NMEE
and equipment e 15 69,743 72,428
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 16 3,231 3,278
Equity-settled share-based payment AR AN s 5t B 1R AR 0 1B
expenses EWMTAAX 39 353 489
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BERREZESE
and equipment HEE 9 1,083 1,301
Reversal of impairment loss on trade FEUBR 30 2 R (B B 18
receivables, net EE P 43(c) (5.009) (15,672)
Release of deferred government grants iR SE UK R B R 32 (1,623) (2,017)
Operating cash flows before EEESRHAZ
movements in working capital REBESHRE 59,287 57,613
Decrease in inventories FERL 1,060 2,101
Decrease in trade and bills receivables EWEER R R 29,653 261
Increase in prepayments, deposits and FERTRIE - R E R H M E K
other receivables FRIBHE N (10,820) (8,294)
Decrease in trade and bills payables ERERREEER D (20,779) (117)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities EstaE R EmENRIE
and other payables o, O ) 7.445 (27,343)
Increase in contract liabilities GHEERM 331 2,948
Cash generated from operations KEEECZRS 66,177 27,169
Income tax paid BEFER 33(a) (8,941) (12,364)
Income tax refunded FRiSRUR T 33(a) 156 62
Dividend withholding tax paid BT BRI 33(b) (967) (2,059)
Interest received B B 8 4,555 4,993

FI1RBEEFE276 8 Z M F HEK AT IFRE T
Al sk Bk 2 21D e

The notes on pages 142 to 276 are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FEBHITMNE X

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—ZT-NF+-A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E-gE —E-=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=g THET FHET
Net cash generated from operating REEREE RS FE
activities 60,980 17,801
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXH
Dividends received from an associate Bl —RKEEE QR ZRE 19 - 1,204
Dividends received from equity BRI E 2
investments f& 2 21 3,745 3,945
Cash outflow arising on disposal of HEBRIFEEER
discontinued operation FrEAHRER 18(c) - (1,978)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE BENMKREZ
and equipment FriS 8 79 176
Payment for purchase of property, plant TNBEDE  BER
and equipment B (16,723) (17,874)
Loan to a joint venture BERT—ReEhHE 20 - (11,083)
Receipt of government grants U B IR TS 4 B 32 = 165
Net cash used in investing activities REXBFAZRESFE (12,899) (25,445)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mMEEE
Dividends paid to shareholders of the BEYNGIE
Company A BB 13 (4,857) (11,536)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests [ B A TQ«H % #E 2=
of subsidiaries A AR B (1,266) (5,847)
Proceeds from bank borrowings ﬁﬁfﬂgféfﬁﬁ?%#\ 25(b) 51,828 106,601
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE 25(b) (49,599) (158,995)
Finance costs paid BB KR 25(b) (1,802) (3,833)
Interest element of lease payments MERMRZFE 25(b) (9) (24)
Capital element of lease payments HENE Z§$*BT’7} 25(b) (327) (321)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FAZRHIIRITFER (3,573) (614)
Net cash used in financing activities RETHFAZRAEFE (9,605) (74,569)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH RERERALWMAZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®in/ R FE 38,476 (82,213)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—A—-BRzEAER
1 JANUARY EEBELEAR 186,365 270,279
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREH) T & (4,018) (1,701)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RTZA=+—HBzHER
31 DECEMBER ZEBELER 220,823 186,365

The notes on pages 142 to 276 are an integral part of these financial 1428 £ 52768 2 Wik K AN &R E T
statements. RISk 2 Bt o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024

1.

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

GENERAL INFORMATION

(a)

(o]

(d)

New Universe Environmental Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12 November
1999 as an exempt company with limited liability under the
Companies Act, Cap. 22 of the Cayman Islands. The registered
office of the Company is at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The principal place of business of the Company is located at
Rooms 2110-2112, 21/F, Telford House, 16 Wang Hoi Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s issued shares have been initially listed on the
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 18 May 2000. With effect from 1 August
2016, the listing of the shares of the Company was transferred
from the GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") that is also the functional currency of
the Company while the functional currency of the subsidiaries
in the mainland of The People’s Republic of China (“Mainland
China” or the “PRC") is Renminbi (“RMB"). As the Company’s
shares are listed in Hong Kong where most of its investors are
located, the Directors consider that it is more appropriate to
present the consolidated financial statements in HK$.

These consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2024 were approved for issue by the
Board on 21 March 2025.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Material accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current accounting
period reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
and the Group’s interests in associates and a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except for the
following:

o Equity investments — measured at fair value (note 2(h))

. Assets classified as held for sale — measured at the lower
of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell (note

2(z)(i)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

31 December 2024

B % R ok M ORE

—E-WF+=—A=1+—H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods. Judgements made by management in
the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on
the financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

() Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA to these financial statements for the
current accounting year:

Amendments to HKAS 1
BEASERE IR BT

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7
BEAGENET RN BT BREERNETR BT

Amendments to HKAS 16
BEAGEAFE16R 2]

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
position for the current and prior periods and/or disclosures
set out in these financial statements:
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(©)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of liabilities as Current
and Non-current and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 and Non-current Liabilities with Covenant

The amendments impact the classification of a liability as
current or non-current and have been applied retrospectively
as a package. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless, at the end of the reporting period, the Group has a
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Covenants that the Group is
required to comply with, on or before the end of the reporting
period, are considered in classifying loan arrangements with
covenants as current or non-current. Covenants that the
Group is required to comply with after the reporting period do
not affect the classification.

The amendments do not result in a change in the classification
of the Group’s borrowings.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 — Supplier Finance
Arrangements

The amendments introduce new disclosure requirements to
enhance transparency of supplier finance arrangements and
their effects on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure
to liquidity risk. The amendments have no material impact on
these financial statements as the Group has not entered into
any supplier finance arrangements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

The amendments clarify how an entity accounts for a sale and
leaseback after the date of the transaction. The amendments
require the seller-lessee to apply the general requirements
for subsequent accounting of the lease liability in such a way
that it does not recognise any gain or loss relating to the
right of use it retains. A seller-lessee is required to apply the
amendments retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of the initial application. The
amendments do not have a material impact on these financial
statements as the Group has not entered into any sale and
leaseback transactions.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting year.

B % R ok M ORE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered. The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an entity if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the elements of control.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line
with the Group’s accounting policies. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
owners of the Company. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do

not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(h)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or joint venture (see note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(I)), unless the investment is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

Associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant

influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

B % R ok M ORE

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under
the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment (if any). The
cost of the investment includes purchase price, other costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment,
and any direct investment into the associate or joint
venture that forms part of the Group’s equity investment.
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted to recognise the
Group's post-acquisition share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture
and any impairment loss relating to the investment. Any
acquisition date excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment (after reassessment) is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an
associate or joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with any
other long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or the joint venture,
after applying the expected credit loss model to such other
long-term interests where applicable.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(e) Associates and joint ventures (continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee
at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(h)).

(f) Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated
in a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration
test is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to
be a business and no further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values,
the remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated
to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis
of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(f) Business combinations or asset acquisitions

(continued)

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which
include an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
acquired processes are considered substantive if they are
critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, including
an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge,
or experience to perform the related processes or they
significantly contribute to the ability to continue producing
outputs and are considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability

to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.

For business combinations in which the acquisition date is on
or after 1 January 2022, the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an asset and a
liability in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework"”)
except for transactions and events within the scope of HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, in which the Group applies HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business

combination. Contingent assets are not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(f) Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values,
except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets and
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employees Benefits
respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to the
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date;

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard; and

- lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

()

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at
their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at
its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

()

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that does not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
re-measured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
would be accounted for on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had disposed directly of the previously
held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the purposes
of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represents the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored of internal management purposes and
not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
(or groups of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the
cash-generating unit within the Group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation within
the cash-generating unit (or a cash-generating units within
a group of cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill
disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative values
of the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed of
and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the group of
cash-generating units) retained.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(h)

Other investments in equity securities
The Group's policies for investments in equity securities, other

than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
are as follows.

Investments in equity securities are recognised/derecognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investment. The investments are initially stated at fair value
plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognised directly
in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments, see note 42.
These investments are subsequently accounted as follows,
depending on their classification.

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes
an irrevocable election to designate the investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI")
(non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the definition of equity from
the issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive income remains
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or loss.
Dividends from an investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2(v)(iii).

Financial assets at FVPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes/excludes any dividend and is included in the other
gains or losses. Dividend income is included in other income,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment.

B % R ok M ORE

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

MABEEREXNERH
REM (E)

(h)

REAE 2 EMIRE
z&;ﬁ@mxm H2RE (RS
NFCBMEARARAELEZREA

BRON BRI o

R ARBEILE N A EBEEEEA
PEZBEREEA®RKRILHE
%o&ﬁ@*ﬁﬂ$@%ﬁ&ﬁw
REMAHNEE  HBBEREAF
BOEBBHEAFEAR) HEZ
HZEREBRIN ZEREZRHK
ZKET%BC%E@WEEWL ° EEQZ’K%
mAEFSRTEAFENZRB
BHi 42 - 2SR EBEEBREED
BIRATHEAR -

REAREFZLERDERBERE
BEAFEAR  RIFZBRAKRE
WINXZF/BENTE BRI L5
RIRER - AEBE TR HE R E
BERERBEBEMEZEKRERA
FEAR(TEBEMEZEHKREZA
FEARD (TAIEE)  HEkE
BAFEZHNE M2 E KRN E
B REEREBNENTARERE
b EESEZETARAKRERRE
BARZERZERTER » fEHE
BER KE@EE% SRR Z
TBRNMBREERFERE (TH
FE)NEEBZRELE R
B F”?ﬁﬁﬁ(TT%E)W
Rt zeRERERERN
EEABR RERAFE %&éz
REERDBER/ERBRERATE
ABRFHEBEMEE KRR AFE
ABR - 19 R IR M EE2(v) (i) BT 88 2 B
REBSERPEIRSEMEA -

BRBEHAFEARZEREE

FEERSHERFEAFET2
YHEREMAFEZRSEHLBRX -
EREPHERFREIFEKRA

a%/%%&ﬂku I EHAE A
WAHBRT - RIFZER AR
REBBEORERA 2B - BHY
B S UWAGT AR B YA -

—E_MEER HFFRAREBEBR AT

155



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8% R R MR

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. wmEEEREXEGTH

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION REH ()
(continued)
() Property, plant and equipment (i) W% BWELEKE
The following items of property, plant and equipment T2z BERZHEEE (£
other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less BIRRIN DEKABRITE
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. KO EEES R -
—  interests in leasehold land and buildings where the - REEIHREFZEZ (K
Group is the registered owner of the property interest; REERZDERR TR
BAAN)
- right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold - HBHEEELEYHEEWEZ®
properties where the Group is not the registered owner AEAEE (MAEBEINEZD
of the property interest; and E¥HI2ERBEAN) R
-~ other items of property, plant and equipment, including - E - BRELAREBZEMIEA
right-of-use assets arising from leases of underlying B -EEaEEDE BE
property, plant and equipment. EERHE s HEEE 2 ERE
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residue
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 3 - 10 years
Computers and equipment 3 -5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised
in profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and is recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

()

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings and structures
under construction, which is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(l)). Cost comprises direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs (see note 2(w))
during the periods of construction. Capitalisation of these
costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred
to property, plant and equipment when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use
are complete.

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is substantially completed and ready for its
intended use.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

0] As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases of low-value assets. When the Group
enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with
these leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(k)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual payments
that are due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as
an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with note

2(v)(ii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the
exemption described in note 2(k)(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2024

WMABEEREXNERH
REM (E)

(k)

HEEE (8)

()

(1)

TERAA ()
EHEABELFLREE
BHRELERENHEHER
BExLZ((HEETD -
BEREREBNEEANRE -
AR EEHERBETERN
ArE-EUER HERRE
REBELETNEENKEHA
EHIR  ERAKETNIR
REBTEMBENRE -

ERePBRRERS K8
HEREBENRNMBOEER
ARNBERRT_MBARB
BZAKNRBRE-

1ER 1A

fif A SR B 4E & T AR
REERRFEERABE
TERRMEHEREEHE -
WEESHEEEECHRE
PiT B 75 2 48 K &R 10 & B & [m
HREBEABEA BHEED
BAMEME-BR -HE
WO BREEMEE -

N

m

EHERFEHEL
%Ihﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
E%—E R ZRES
EE?%%WJJ KEKEHE
2 T & WA R IE B 7 2(v) (i) e

7
R o

WAKESPREROBEA &
%%i@ﬂiﬁﬁiﬁ’ﬂf)ﬂﬁéﬁ
E - oHEIBEAREHRE
IEEHE -HBREERRE
HEE AEEHR2ETH
EF2K))EFTERE - BIA
SEESHEHOBAREHE



2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECL") on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables, including loan to a joint venture
that are held for the collection of principal and
interest);

- contract assets an defined in HKFRS 15; and

- lease receivables.

Measurement of ECL

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting
is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate; and

- lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group
is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8% R R MR

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

In measuring ECL, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECL are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECL: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECL: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease receivables
and contract assets are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL. ECL on trade receivables are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN-[S
27/ | D
31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H
MABEEREXREFH
REM (&)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of a debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.

) EEEEREERE (B)

(1)

TMIT A aHNEERENK
HEZZEEE (&)

=E Rk AR A
REHEBRTENEERR
BYBERUNRES KELE
FR AEBESLERKRE
AEI R R Y6 ER B BT
MEeRMTEZFEENNRR -
ELZEHTER  AEH
CERACEAUSHNTENRTE
MER BEBTEHRNRE
EENEHBZRALE T
ENAI S B RTIE 4 & R} -

)a
IQ

mE FHEEERRS

\ﬁi'
98 R A 7
Bl S BT AR

- SRIANFHAIBE
BRI R B 7R B A
EEL(WH)

- BEBAZEEXEER
EREHEREEE
&

- ﬂ'?ﬁﬁi%%{ilg 5
BREMBENNIERE
BUHEBABRTEHA
Eﬁifﬂt’f%ﬁﬁiﬁ
TR E

—E_MEER HFFRAREBEBR AT

163



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8% R R MR

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECL are measured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:
- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the

Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN-[S
27/ | D
31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H
MABEEREXREFH
REM (&)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environmental that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset, lease
receivable or contract asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amount subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are tested annually for impairment, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8% R R MR

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets;

- construction in progress;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), or value in use, (if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ¥R ® MY R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. R E R F T X &5
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION KA (4)
(continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets I EEEEREERE (B&)

168

(continued)
(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies
the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (notes

2(D)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are assets in the form of materials or supplies
which are held for consumption in the rendering of services in
the ordinary course of business.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those EFEELHR ZEFEZEREE
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which RERBAKRABREANIER—EHH

the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount for inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(n)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contract assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(I)(i) and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become unconditional
(see note 2(0)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such case, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the
effective interest method.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction
prices. Trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. All receivables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(p)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance with policy set
out in note (2)(I).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value,
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing
costs.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires
or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

Defined benefit plan obligations

The Group has a defined benefit plan, representing
long service payment (“LSP”) under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The Group’s net defined benefit
obligation is measured by discounting the estimated
cost to the Group of the benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods, after deducting the negative service cost arising
from the accrued benefits derived from the Group’s MPF
contributions that have been vested with employees,
which are deemed to be contributions from the relevant
employees.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is
performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. Current service cost, any past service
cost and net interest expense are recognised in profit or
loss. Net interest is determined by using the net defined
benefit obligations and the discount rate determined at
the beginning of the year, and also taking into account
any changes in the net defined benefit obligations
during the year resulting from contributions or benefit
payments. Remeasurements arising from defined benefit
plan, which comprise actuarial gains and losses and
the effect of any asset ceiling (excluding interest), are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share option reserve within equity. The
fair value is measured at grant date using the binomial
option pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year under review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(t)

I[ncome tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary difference, provided those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary differences or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, the entity has sufficient
taxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, which will result in
taxable amounts against which the unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8% R R MR

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(t) Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are:

- temporary differences arising from goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes,

- temporary differences arising from the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided that they are not part of
a business combination) and do not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences,

- temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures to the extent
that the Group controls the timing of the reversal and
it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future, and

- temporary differences related to income taxes arising
from tax laws enacted or substantively enacted to
implement the Pillar Two model rules published by
the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % R ok M ORE

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. B EEREXGTH

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(t) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

° the same taxable entity; or

. different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(u)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous
contracts

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognised for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount recognised for
the reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of the
provision.

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a contract
under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to
be received from the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts
are measured at the present value of the lower of the expected
cost of terminating the contract and the net cost of fulfilling
with the contract.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from sale of goods, the provision of services or the use by
others of the Group’s assets under operating leases in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

In determining whether the Group acts as a principal or as an
agent, it considers whether it obtains control of the products
or services before they are transferred to the customers.
Control refers to the Group’s ability to direct the use of and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from the
products or services.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(V)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where the
contract contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised
under that contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest method. The
Group takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

(i) Revenue from provision of services or goods

Revenue from provision of waste and sewage treatment
and related services or goods are recognised when
control of the services or goods are passed to the
customers.

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of
the services or goods is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract, control of the
services or goods may be transferred over time or a point
in time. Control of the services or goods is transferred
over time if the Group's performance:

- provides the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

- creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8% R R MR

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (continued)

(i) Revenue from provision of services or goods (continued)

If control of the services or goods transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation, which is measured
based on direct measurements of the value of individual
services or goods transferred by the Group to the
customer. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the services
or goods.

(@) Revenue from provision of hazardous waste
treatment and landfill services are recognised at
point in time when the services are rendered to the
customers from whom the Group have collected
and disposed the wastes.

(b)  Revenue from provision of industrial sewage
treatment services are recognised over time when
the services are rendered to the customers and
measured by using the meters for recording the
sewage flowing into the central sewage treatment
plant which is operated by the Group inside its
eco-plating industrial zone.

(c)  Revenue from provision of utilities (electricity, gas
and water) are recognised over time when the
utilities (electricity, gas and water) are supplied
to the customers inside the Group’s eco-plating
industrial zone and measured by the respective
meter recording devices.

(d)  Revenue from provision of management services is
recognised over time and on a straight-line basis
over the period of the relevant contract when
the management services are rendered to the
customer inside the eco-plating industrial zone of
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (continued)

(i) Revenue from provision of services or goods (continued)

(e)  Equipment construction and installation services:
Revenue from the provision of equipment
construction and installation services is recognised
over time, by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of performance obligation.

The progress towards complete transaction of the
performance obligation in respect of equipment
construction and installation services is measured
based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of the performance obligation, by
reference to the contract costs incurred up to
the end of the reporting period as a percentage
of total estimated costs for each contract. The
likelihood of the Group earning contractual
bonuses for early completion or suffering
contractual penalties for late completion are taken
into account in making these estimates, such that
revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur. When the outcome of the contract cannot
be reasonably measured, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are expected to be recovered. If at any time the
costs to complete the contract are estimated to
exceed the remaining amount of the consideration
under the contract, then a provision is recognised
in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(u).

(i) Lease income from operating leases

Lease income receivable under operating lease is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the period covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(V)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted equity investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attached to
them. Government grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Government grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred; borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Translation of foreign currencies
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each entity
in the Group are measured using the currency that best
reflects the economic substance of the underlying events
and circumstances relevant to that entity (“functional
currency”). The functional currency of the Company and
its subsidiaries outside Mainland China is Hong Kong
dollar and the functional currency of the subsidiaries in
Mainland China is Renminbi. The financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“presentation
currency”).

B % R ok M ORE

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

MABEEREXNERH
REM (E)

) fEERA

HEEBBNWE REXEEND
0% B P AT BT E (A A
ERR AN A E 2 B R AT
BARM E2RAREEZBIK
o B EERAEE SRR o

MWERAEEEEMS BBUEEK
AARLERREEESEEEA
M EREMETVRENES - K
RAEBEEENMCRABREE
IR AR D « BERAZERLEE
KeaBEREEERBEREEMALH
EREMFNMB BB KA
BT AR I AR LE B L

SN E

()  WEERZIIRE
$§I ERZMBWKRA
ﬂﬁﬁ BRERREZE
BEREMARBERAZEEER
E%ii SHE ([IREEB D FTE -
AR ) e B R B A A A S
ZHBRRZNEEE RE
T MR P EA B R
B2 ER RARKE - B
BRRABTEY (T2 E
B -

—E_MEER HFFRAREBEBR AT

181



182

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8% R R MR

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(x) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)
(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the date on
which the entity initially recognised such non-monetary
assets and liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating
to that operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(y) Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the year in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient
resources and the intention to complete development. The
expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
year in which it is incurred.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2024

WMABEEREXNERH
REM (E)

(x)

(y)

BmE ()

(i) XKBRiEZE
FRAZINEZRZFERZER
ZHITEERBE - AINEE
BrEKEEHBEZBRS
HRZBETEERRE -EX
BIETEZAERRR -

WASNEEAZ R SR PR AN 5 & 2 9F
EREERABERARSE
BzRITEXHE -XHA
HREBN I HRABHAIES
BEERBEZBH - UIH
HKEATEARZIFERKE
ERBERBATVEFEER
HZERBE -

BNEBZ2EEDRRSA
ZHHNEXRBRERET W
BRRABMKRER HRBREH
RZ W IMEE KB S
ToRUEEEZEXRZER
EmaEKm AR IR
REZELFEERR -

HE BB NINZ FH LN HE
ROERSR BEXXHKH
ﬁZ%%ER LA RN
mEHHRERD -

B 5¢ £ i 25 B AR
MREDEENRXEHEELSF
ERRAIW - MRZIEEMIIE
FFERMREE LT MEARE
BEERRMERKRE B T
IE REZHNRZEGETUE
2N A §$kﬁ§@%%ﬂﬁ$*
HEEREATINAKBEE LIBNETE

A - ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁ?%i&
WRAIH -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN-[S
B % R & MY &
31 December 2024 —Z=NF+=-A=+—H
MAUBEEREAXEGFH
KA (4&)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(z) Non-current assets held for sale and

discontinued operations
(i) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as
held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that
will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when
the above criteria of classification as held for sale are
met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a
non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought
up-to-date in accordance with the accounting policies
before the classification. Then, on initial classification
as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below),
or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The principal exceptions to this measurement policy
so far as the financial statements of the Group and
the Company are concerned are deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets
(other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures) and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale,
are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current
asset is classified as held for sale, or is included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale, the
non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8% R R MR

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(z2 Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations (continued)

(i) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group'’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group,
that either has been disposed of, or is classified as held
for sale, and which represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, is part of a
single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations, or is
a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation also occurs if
the operation is abandoned and the above criteria are
met.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(aa) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(2)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(4) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8% R R MR

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(aa) Related parties (continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(5)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(6)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in note 2(aa)(i).

(7) A person identified in note 2 (aa)(i)(1) has
significant influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

(8)  The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(bb) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments that are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2024

WMABEEREXNERH
REH ()

(aa)

BRAZEAL(R)

(i) 4% AT A e bh i AR - B
XERDEAEREARE:
(#)

(5)

(6) % E WM FE2(aa)() PR
BBIZ REAL L
sk R -

(7) M EE2(aa)(i)(1)FT 4 Bl 2
Eo2ATHZERES
BEAMENNBZERE
(R EREZBRAE) 2
FTEEBABZKE -

(8) MAEE WA EEE
NAEHE2ER AR
REzERIEMBE
BHEMKE AT -

A

Z
%
]
=1

i

REANLTZHEBREKE B
BERETR B ARANPE
ALTHAEEZBALTEZEZ
EN 2=

~

bl =[N

Ny Ny

HHEE

R RER AP 2 &&E D 8 R
ENHBEBE 2 W NRBEHRR
HIAEEETEZEERRALUY
AEETREBERWBELEELE
R BL KR R 2 B 5 A R
Bl o

M BEHEME » @ERERZELE
DEIEEHHE  BRIFEZFDE
BRUZBEBBERBUZERR
REEE SEIFEE BEFPE
B D IHEmBIRE R ATRA Z
TE A RBRERER - WA IFE@ER
BEAZBEDHMEARTEETH
REbfD - RIRZFIRERIERN 2 & 5&E

DEBAI B PFEHE o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

(a)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the

Group's accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

(i)

(i)

Fair value of equity investments

The Company has engaged an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair market value of those equity
investments as disclosed in note 21 to the financial
statements. The Directors of the Company made
a review on the judgement of the independent
professional valuer in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for the financial instruments not quoted in
an active market. Valuation techniques applied by the
independent professional valuer are commonly used by
other market practitioners. The estimation of fair value
of the equity investments which are unlisted equity
instruments includes the adoption of a market approach
with some assumptions supported by observable
market data or parameters deemed compatible to the
operations of those investments.

Classification of Qingdao Huamei and Danyang New
Huamei as equity investments

Note 21 to the financial statements described that
Qingdao Zhongxin Huamei Plastics Co., Limited
("Qingdao Huamei”) and Danyang New Huamei
Plastics Co., Limited (“Danyang New Huamei”) are
categorised as equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income of the Group although
the Group owns 28.67% and 24.50% equity interest
in Qingdao Huamei and Danyang New Huamei,
respectively. The Group has no significant influence over
Qingdao Huamei and Danyang New Huamei by virtue
of the contractual rights to appoint only one out of the
seven directors and one of the eight directors to the
board of directors of Qingdao Huamei and Danyang
New Huamei, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ¥R

31 December 2024

= M &
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3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(a)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the

Group’s accounting policies (continued)

(ifi)

(iv)

(v)

Functional currency of the Company

The Company is carrying out its operating activities and
making management decisions in Hong Kong dollar,
amongst others, on raising finance in Hong Kong
dollars and has a significant degree of autonomy from
its subsidiaries in the Mainland China in the way its
business is managed. Hong Kong dollar is the currency
of the transactions and events of the Company for which
the Company primarily receives and expends. In the
opinion of the Directors of the Company, its functional
currency is Hong Kong dollar.

Leased assets under operating leases

As at 31 December 2024, included in the Group's
property, plant and equipment were certain buildings
ancillary to sewage treatment and the leasehold land
of the eco-plating specialised zone with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$89,356,000
(2023: HK$101,667,000) that are leased to the
customers under operating leases for use in accordance
with the arrangement of the master agreements made
between the Group and these customers. As the
industrial sewage services provided to these customers
are significant to the arrangement as a whole inside the
eco-plating specialised zone which is owned, operated
and managed by the Group, these relevant buildings
and equipment facilities are accounted for and classified
under property, plant and equipment, respectively,
instead of investment property, in the consolidated
financial statements.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value-in-use of the cash-generating unit to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value-in-use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. The carrying
amount of goodwill at 31 December 2024 and 2023
was HK$33,000,000. Further details are set out in note
17 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(@) Critical accounting judgements in applying the

Group’s accounting policies (continued)

(vi)

Impairment assessment on interest in an associate

The Group assesses whether or not there are any
indicators of impairment for interest in an associate at
the end of each reporting period. Interest in an associate
is tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of interest
in an associate exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, the Group estimates the present values of
cash flows expected to arise from continuing to hold
the investment and choose suitable discount rates in
order to calculate the present values of those cash
flows. The most significant judgements shall refer to
the impairment assessment of the Group’s 30% equity
interest in Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Tianyu
Solid Waste Disposal Co., Ltd. (“NCIP”). As disclosed
in note 19(b), during the year ended 31 December
2024, NCIP experienced a year-on-year over 22%
(2023: 36%) decline in average unit prices per metric
tonnes on collection of industrial hazardous waste
for environmental incineration under the impact of
changing market demand of the upstream industrial
supply chains, and as a result, incurred a loss of
approximately HK$35,748,000 (2023: HK$33,573,000)
of which the Group shared its loss of approximately
HK$10,724,000 (2023: HK$10,072,000). As at 31
December 2024, the Group’s interest in NCIP in the
carrying amount was approximately HK$98,039,000
(2023: HK$112,259,000). The value in use of the
Group's 30% equity interest in NCIP being determined
and based on the discounted cash flow projections
of NCIP has been prepared by the management of
the Group. The key assumptions used include the
discounted rate, growth rate, budget sales and
gross margin of NCIP. The discounted rate applied is
determined by using the Capital Assets Pricing Model
which reflects specific risk of the business of NCIP,
taking into account the applicable borrowing interest
rates immediately before the projection period and
the growth rate applied is determined based on the
expected long-term inflation in the PRC, while other
key assumptions relating to the estimation of cash
inflows/outflows are determined by taking into account
the financial budgets approved by NCIP’s directors,
past performance of NCIP and expectations of NCIP’s
management on the market development.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8% R R MR

31 December 2024

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the

Group’s accounting policies (continued)

(vi)

Impairment assessment on interest in an associate
(continued)

Determining whether the interest in NCIP is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use on the basis of
data available to the Group.

Based on the impairment assessment, the value in use
of the Group's 30% equity interest in NCIP exceeds its
carrying amount at 31 December 2024 and accordingly,
the Directors of the Company considered that there was
no impairment on the Group’s 30% equity interest in
NCIP.

Should the parameters adopted in the calculations of
the value in use of the interest in NCIP differ materially,
impairment loss may be required to be recognised.

Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(i)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group’s major operating assets represent property,
plant and equipment. Management performs review
for impairment of the property, plant and equipment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts of these assets may not be
recoverable. Management considered there was no
impairment indicator of property, plant and equipment
for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

Management determines the estimated useful lives of
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the actual
useful lives of assets of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of significant
technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to industry cycles. Management will increase
the depreciation charges where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, or will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables on a forward looking
basis. Lifetime ECL on trade receivables (including lease
receivables) are recognised from initial recognition
of the assets. The provision matrix is determined
based on the Group’s historical observed bad debt
loss rates of the trade receivables (including lease
receivables), at the reporting period end, with similar
credit risk characteristics and is adjusted for forward
looking estimates. Other receivables are considered
for 12-month ECL unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial instruments,
in which case the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL. In making the
judgement, management considers available reasonable
and supportive forward-looking information, at the
reporting period, such as actual or expected significant
changes in operating results and financial positions of
the customers, past payment history of the customers,
and actual or expected adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant change in the customers’ ability to
settle their trade debts. At the end of each reporting
period, the historical observed bad debt loss rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking economic
conditions and estimates are analysed by the Group’s
management.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of trade and other receivables (continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of trade
receivables was HK$67,973,000 (2023: HK$92,617,000)
which approximated to the present value of their
respective estimated future cash flows.

The appraisals on allowance for expected credit loss
which resulted in a net reversal of impairment loss on
trade receivables of HK$5,009,000 (2023: net reversal of
impairment loss of HK$15,672,000) was recognised in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2024.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for potential
tax exposures based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will affect the current and
deferred taxation provisions in the financial period in
which such determination is made. Deferred tax assets
relating to certain temporary differences and certain
tax losses are recognised as management considers it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences will affect the
recognition of deferred tax and tax in the periods in
which such estimate is changed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Income taxes and deferred taxation (continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the undistributed profits of
the profitable PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounted
to RMB112,126,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$119,302,000) (2023: RMB115,445,000 (and
equivalent to approximately HK$126,989,000)), which
the Group can control the dividend policies in respect
of the amount and timing of future distributions by
the PRC subsidiaries and accordingly, at 31 December
2024, the Group has made a provision of approximately
HK$7,529,000 (2023: HK$8,028,000) for deferred tax
liabilities in respect of the expected withholding tax on
distributions out of the distributable profits of the PRC
subsidiaries.

Going concern basis assessment

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there was
continued drop in the Group's operating performance,
which was resulted from unfavourable fluctuation of
prices in the hazardous waste disposal service industry.

Upon the gradual recovery of economic situation in the
PRC, management has benchmarked to latest price level
in the industry, together with rigorous cost measures
over its operations, to formulate a forecast which will
generate enhanced positive operating cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

4. Wm By EHRE

Revenue (a) Wz
Revenue represents the revenue from hazardous waste Yo &5 45 2K B 15 I BE Y I N 4R 38 PR
incineration and landfill services, industrial sewage treatment B ITESKEEREMIRHEER
services and providing related utilities and management REREERSE UERKBREMET
services, and from providing factory facilities. iR 35 1t 2 W & o
An operating segment regarding the environmental RREBEHEEREERTRRBHNLE
equipment construction and installation services was DEHERBEEZZTZ_=F+=A
discontinued for the year ended 31 December 2023. = +—HLEFEKILE-
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by BEAHNRGZRREERMADOT
service lines is as follows:
2024 2023
—E2-E —ET-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue from contracts with EFEAHNE
customers
Disaggregation by service lines RREER M S
— Revenue from hazardous waste —REEREMTER
incineration and landfill services HIE RS 2 W 224,254 272,671
- Revenue from industrial sewage —REIESKEERSE R
treatment services and providing RERAELEER
related utilities and management & IR AR
services 2 W= 95,865 100,481
320,119 373,152
Revenue from other sources Hi Rz W=
— Leasing income from providing —RERHIBRENE
factory facilities HERA 29,297 32,460
Total revenue from continuing REFESEEK
operations kA 349,416 405,612
Timing of revenue recognition RIEEFEXN
in respect of contracts ER s
with customers 2 K
- At a point in time — A ZE (B 5 B4 224,254 272,671
— Over time —R—EREERN 95,865 100,481
320,119 373,152
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(a)

Revenue (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024, there was no customer
with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue (2023: Nil).

The Group has applied practical expedient of HKFRS 15,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers to exempt the
disclosure of revenue expected to be recognised in the future
arising from contracts with customers in existence at the end
of the reporting period as the performance obligation is part
of a contract that has an original expected duration of one
year or less.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by segments, which are
organised by business lines. In a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally to the
Company’s executive Directors, being the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following three reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments:

(i)  provision of environmental treatment and disposal
services for industrial and medical wastes;

(i) provision of environmental plating sewage treatment,
management services and provision of related facilities

and utilities in an eco-plating specialised zone; and

(i) investments in plastic materials dyeing business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8% R R MR

31 December 2024

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(©)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of assessing segment performance and

allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most

senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the

following bases:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Segment assets include all tangible assets, goodwill,
interests in associates and a joint venture, and current
assets with the exception of intercompany receivables
and other unallocated head office and corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include current taxation, deferred tax
liabilities, trade payables, lease liabilities, other payables
and accrued expenses attributable to the activities of the
individual segments and borrowings managed directly
by the segments, with the exception of intercompany
payables and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“reportable segment results” “reportable
segment results”, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to

. To arrive at

individual segments, such as head office or corporate
administration costs. Taxation charge is not allocated to
reportable segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
“reportable segment results”, management is provided
with segment information including revenue, interest
income and expense from cash balances and borrowings
managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and additions to
non-current segment assets used by the segments in
their operations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WHZ RO IPiRE (55
(continued)

(c) Segment results, assets and liabilities (00 PEFEE - EERBEE)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE-Z-NE+=-A=+—-HL
FE
Continuing operations AT ETE
Operating segments
g5y
Environmental
sewage
treatment,
management
Environmental services, Unallocated
waste treatment utilities and Plastic dyeing Segment head office
and disposal facilities investments sub-total  and corporate Total
FHERRE
EERE.
ENEREE AREE *AREY
RRE e ZHLERE AR Ri% Eh
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000
TERL TERL Tén Tén TERL TERL
Revenue from external customers SR Bl 204,254 125,162 - 349,416 - 349,416
Other revenue Efphs - - 3,745 3,745 - 3,745
Reportable segment revenue ~ THEA P& 204,054 125,162 3,745 353,161 - 353,161
Reportable segment results ~ THEFPEE (36,280) 25,852 3330 (7,098) - (7,008)
Other income AfA 4427 1,218 - 5,705 - 5,705
Finance income BEUA 4,205 (128) 16 4,093 457 4,550
Finance costs BARK (1.811) = - (1.811) 5 (1.811)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (52312) (20217) - (12,589) (385) (12,974)
Reversal of impairment loss ERER 2 RERE
on trade receivables, net B FE 4,147 862 - 5,009 - 5,009
Reportable segment assets TREIHEE 817,041 305,189 98,754 1,220,984 26,631 1,247,615
Additions to non-current segment  RE FFiEE7
assets BE 2,986 23,149 - 26,135 1,066 27,201
Reportable segment liabilities ~ THEHBEE 208,690 64,444 7,181 280,315 2,850 283,165
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO R R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WHZ RO IPiRE (48

(continued)
(c) Segment results, assets and liabilities (00 PEEE - EERBEE)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-_ZT-=F+=ZA=+—H1
FE
Continuing operations FEARE R
Operating segments
Environmental
sewage
treatment,
management
Environmental services, Unallocated
waste treatment utilities and Plastic dyeing Segment head office
and disposal facilities investments sub-total and corporate Total
BKEREE
ERRE
BNBRAE AREE KAEEY
REE ki ERAERA Air kit &5
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Thn Thn TEn TEn TER
Revenue from extemal customers  SMIEE N 2,671 13,941 - 405,612 - 405,612
Other revenue Ehis - - 3,945 3,945 - 3,945
Reportable segment revenue ~ THEA Pl 22,671 13,941 3945 409,557 - 409,557
Reportable segment results TREADEE (20,324) 15,776 3,284 (1,264) - (1,264)
Other income EfpA 5,138 1,643 - 6,781 - 6,781
Finance income BEWA 5,112 14) (243) 4,655 814 5,469
Finance costs HERA 2328) (689) - (3,016) (764) (3,780)
Depreciation and amortisation FERER (54,097) (21,258) = (75,355) (351) (75,706)
Reversal of impairment loss/ EREFRERE
(impairment oss) on BE/ (REEE)
trade receivables, net FE 20,737 (5,065) - 15,672 - 15,672
Reportable segment assets TREPHEE 906,488 290,110 81,881 1278479 2,945 1301424
Additions to non-current segment ~ RE FERES 5
assets BE 14,152 5,974 - 20,126 6 20,132
Reportable segment liabilities ~ THEHBEE 228076 51,07 6,321 285,434 2,631 288,065
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. W H R 7 bR E (&)

(continued)
(d) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (d) AImEsHBYE  Bm &
profit or loss, assets and liabilities ERBEZHE
2024 2023
—E-gE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Continuing operations HEQSEER
Revenue =
Consolidated revenue FEAaWE 349,416 405,612
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 4y 2B & Uk 25 ¥ £ - -
Other revenue H bz 3,745 3,945
Reportable segment revenue ¥R E o Al 353,161 409,557
Loss from continuing operations REFELEEKZEER
Reportable segment loss AR E D ELE 1B (7,098) (1,264)
Unallocated head office and KoL 4E 0 R 13
corporate expenses 3 (15,009) (16,914)
Consolidated loss before taxation RERBBEREEL L
from continuing operations FEBRTAIEE (22,107) (18,178)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AIREDAEE 1,220,984 1,278,479
Unallocated head office and corporate & %3 B 48 38 &
assets hEEE 26,631 22,945
Consolidated total assets AR EE 1,247,615 1,301,424
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities Tiﬁﬁ‘:%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ 280,315 285,434
Unallocated head office and corporate 7 % B 48 36
liabilities m%ﬁﬁ 2,850 2,631
Consolidated total liabilities LREBai 283,165 288,065
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(e) Geographic information
All revenue and non-current assets of the Group are generated
from and located in the PRC, respectively. Accordingly, no
analysis by geographical basis is presented.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 3 August 2023, the Group disposed of the entire interest in a
subsidiary, Jiangsu Yu Xin Environmental Engineering Management
Company Limited (“Jiangsu Yu Xin") at a consideration of
RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to HK$13,074,000), resulting in a gain
on disposal of a subsidiary of HK$4,945,000. Jiangsu Yu Xin was
principally engaged in the provision of environmental equipment
construction and installation services, accounted for as a separate
operating segment of the Group. Following the disposal of Jiangsu
Yu Xin, the Group ceased to operate its environmental equipment
construction and installation services business. Details of the assets
and liabilities disposed of, and the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal, are disclosed in note 18(c).
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4. W B oaRER & (4)

(e) Hblm & ®
AEBZHBERERIIERBEET
DRIEEXE RMAFRE - Al - I
mEHIZMEE D 2D o

B IEREXH

R-ZB-=FN A=A AEBUAR
#12,000,0007T (8 & 713,074,000/ 7T)
HEWNBRARIIHRFHIRRIEERES
BRAR(NI&FH]) 2Bk EL
& T B A 7 2 Uk 354,945,000 7T ° T
BFVEIrENERERRIBEREERE
KRS 1EAEAEBMBILILELE Z D5
ReHEIHRFHEZ AEEBTHLE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 5. BRLERBEXH (&)
(continued)
2023
—F=-=
Note HK$'000
bz FHET
Revenue g3 1,803
Cost of sales SHE AR (5,104)
Other income Hab g A 61
Distribution costs 53 38 2R (839)
Administrative expenses THAX (1,049)
Other operating expenses HibgEmx (4,389)
Finance income A WA 42
Loss before taxation BiAE B (9,475)
Income tax Fris i (6)
Loss after taxation BaEE (9,481)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—KWE LR 2 W 18(c) 4,945
Loss for the year from RECKRILEEEEEN
discontinued operation FEEBR (4,536)
Loss per share: BRER:
Basic and diluted EAREE HK cents (0.15) 1L
2023
—EC=F
HK$'000
FET
Cash flows used in operating KWEETHFRAZ
activities BEamnE (4,962)
Cash flows used in investing KREEGEBMAZ
activities BEamE (13)
Cash flows used in financing MEETEFAAZ
activities BEmE (1,703)
Net cash outflow BRERHFHE (6,678)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 15 o= M &

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

6. OTHER REVENUE H fth iy 3=
Continuing operations REBREED
2024 2023
—E-E —TE-=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET
Dividend income from equity investments at & (& 5 i@ H b 2 mE W 28 1%
fair value through other comprehensive NEEARZBRAEE 2
income g B A 3,745 3,945
7. OTHER INCOME 7. Hilg A
Continuing operations FEREXD
2024 2023
—E-NE B4
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAET
Waiver concessions received from TEREELEEES 2
service providers BT E 3,082 -
Refund of value-added tax EEFIER (a) 62 1,482
Government grants BT #E BL (b) 296 2,226
Release of deferred government i 3E BR AT 48 B
grants B 1,623 2,017
Sundry income HMIEBA 642 1,056
5,705 6,781
Notes: Htaz

(@)  Pursuant to the tax rules and regulations in the PRC, subsidiaries
of the Group that engage in the environmental operations, comply
with the requirements in the PRC and pay Value-added Tax
("VAT") at 6% (2023: 6%) on invoiced income are entitled to a
refund up to 70% of the net VAT paid. There were no unfulfilled
conditions and other contingencies attached to such tax refunds.
There is no assurance that the Group will continue to receive such
tax refunds in the future.

(b)  There were no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies
attached to the receipt of these grants.
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AZRY RZECHBERFEN
70% - ZE R I EM B RBIT 2K
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 8. BAEUIN R A&
Continuing operations REREER
2024 2023
—E_N4F —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T FHET
Finance income from: KA T Zz@ERA
Interest income on bank deposits RITFERZ2FBUA 4,555 4,993
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain SNEE (B51B) /W e F 58 (5) 476
Total finance income EE= PN -F- 4,550 5,469
Interest expenses on: EETIZHERE
Bank borrowings wITEE (1,802) (3,756)
Lease liabilities HEBE 9) (24)
Total finance costs il g R A 4A KR (1,811) (3,780)
Net finance income mLE WA FEE 2,739 1,689
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO R R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

) SL
9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. RHEAIEIE
Loss before taxation from continuing operations was arrived at after RERBEBREEB ZERBABETLN
charging: BT5I&IE :
2024 2023
—ENE —E=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P 5% FET FHET
Auditor’s remuneration: ZER & -
— audit services —BRRG 1,350 1,350
- non-audit services — BRI 210 210
1,560 1,560
Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ % - Bi/5 R & #
equipment neE 15 69,743 72,428
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {F R EEFE 16 3,231 3,278
Operating lease charges: minimum L& EESHY :
lease payments HEHEERNK
- land and buildings in Hong Kong — BBz EEF 1,080 1,080
— landfill in the PRC —rh 7 IEIES 108 112
1,188 1,192
Other operating expenses: Hih &M -
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME BEREZHEZ
plant and equipment EBFE 1,083 1,301
Costs on clean up of development BB I
site EH = 3,011
Costs on litigations and FAREHRSENZ
non-compliance incidents ZH 707 4,645
Legal and professional expenses ERREERE 4,208 4,523
Other expenses Hith B 1,033 1,971
7,031 15,451
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

B % R ok M ORE

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

9. BRBAREIE (&)

2024 2023
—E-MEF —T=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mo aE FET FET
Staff costs: BT :
— Directors’ emoluments —EEHe 10 4,024 4,107
- salaries, wages and other benefits —1BE (EEKBIN) 2
of employees other than He TIER
directors H 12 56,957 72,147
— contributions to retirement —RR@FETE
benefits schemes = 38(a) 10,240 12,529
— equity-settled share-based —BRAERTERR D
payment expenses EEM MRAX 39 353 489
Total staff costs 488 TR AR 71,574 89,272
Cost of sales (note) SHE A (K5 294,585 340,195
Note: Bt -

Included in cost of sales were raw materials in the amount of
HK$33,938,000 (2023: HK$46,825,000), water and electricity in
the amount of HK$43,087,000 (2023: HK$40,112,000), staff costs
of HK$34,845,000 (2023: HK$47,136,000), and depreciation of
HK$67,622,000 (2023: HK$70,107,000), and of which staff costs
and depreciation have already been included in the respective total
amounts disclosed above.

4 & BK K B 38 R M £433,938,0008 T (=&
— =1 : 46,825,000/ 7T) ~ 7K E 43,087,000
BT (ZEZ=4:40,112,000/ 7T) -
8 T Ak 734,845,000 7T (=T = = 4 :
47,136,000/ 7T) & 3T 867,622,000/ 7T (=
T~ =4 :70,107,000/87T) * Hh - BT
ARMECHALXHEHBEESERN -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

10.E5M <€

RIEEE D RRDIE383(NE kA R (H
BEEMNGER) ROIE28REAKE

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation ZEZEMeWT :
are as follows:
Retirement
Director Salaries and Benefits scheme
fee allowance inkind  contributions Total
¥ g |
Ezne HeRHE BENA & it HE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEL TER TER TEL TER
Year ended 31 December 2024  HZE-ZF-ME+=A
ZT-ALEE
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. XI Yu ZL%4 33 1,633 - - 1,666
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling RNBTt+ 193 - - - 193
Ms. LIU Yu Jie ALt 180 - - - 180
Ms. JIANG Qian BEat 180 - - - 180
Mr. HON Wa Fai BEETE - 1,063 - 18 1,081
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica et 180 - - - 180
Independent non-executive Directors BV #7172 %E
Mr. YANG Harry BAREE 180 - - - 180
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred hREE 180 - - - 180
Ms. XIANG Ling’ A 710 45 - - - 45
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael® B 84 o A0 139 - - - 139
1,310 2,696 - 18 4,024
Year ended 31 December 2023  HE-ZF-=f£+=A#
o ST-ALEE
Executive Directors HIEZ
Mr. XI Yu ZE5E 33 1,633 - - 1,666
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling FNRLT 193 - - - 193
Ms. LIU Yu Jie R 180 - - - 180
Ms. JIANG Qian BERT 180 - - - 180
Mr. HON Wa Fai BERLL = 1,081 - 18 1,099
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica Zxdzt 180 - - - 180
Independent non-executive Directors B 7 3 1TEE
Mr. YANG Harryti VN Steall 180 - - - 180
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred HELE 180 - - - 180
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong®” RASELH 69 - - - 69
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael Brale kg 180 - - - 180
1,375 2,714 - 18 4,107
Notes: Htiz
() Ms. XIANG Ling was appointed as an independent non-executive () MAEZINR_ZE_MFE+A—-REE
Director with effect from 1 October 2024. ZARBULFNITES -
(i) Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael resigned as independent (i) FmRATCEER-_Z-_MF+ANBE
non-executive Director with effect from 9 October 2024. EBLIFRNITES -
(i)~ Mr. YANG Harry was appointed as an independent non-executive (iy HBEBEENR_Z_—F—F—HE
Director with effect from 1 January 2023. BZARBIIENTES -
(iv)  Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong retired as an independent non-executive (ivv RBEBIR-_T_=FRA+/\H
Director at the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on BUOZBRRBFRNSEREMEEL
18 May 2023. EHITEE W -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

11.

(continued)

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office for both years. None of the Directors has waived
any emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2023:
two) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 10. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2023:
three) individuals during the year are as follows:

B % R ok M ORE

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

10.EEM = ()

11.

AMEE AEETERAEETINHE
ERBEEMBAREENNER 2 8E)
FIERBERBE BE-_T_OFE_
E =+ A=t—HIEFE L&
ExHeEAHE -

EE#HAL

FE&EEFALTEY M (ZEZ=F:
ME)BEE  EMSCRWEI10HE -
EM=%2(Z==F:=%8) ATFR
ZWemEnT

2024 2023
—EBNE —EF-=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FHEIT

Salaries and other benefits e REMEF 1,925 1,851

Discretionary bonuses BIEIEAT 499 845

Contributions to retirement schemes R ARAE T FT & 317 340
Equity-settled share-based VAR AR 4 s 5t H AR AR 9

payment expenses EEMI A 157 368

2,898 3,404
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 15 o= M &

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

11.INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST M. E&=e#HAL (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
The emoluments of the three (2023: three) individuals with the =EZ(ZEZ=F =ZR)BeHF AL
highest emoluments fell within the following bands: B & 8 T 5147 :
2024 2023
—E-NF B =4
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AE
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) e85 GET)
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T T 21,000,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/% 7 & 1,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T &2,000,000/% 7T = 1
3 3

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
above three (2023: three) individuals as an inducement to join, or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

12.INCOME TAX

Continuing operations

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss represents:

12.

RAFER AEEYERLR=% (=
To=F ZR) AN ERTEE
HEHmBAEEAMBR 2 ZE HER

BERLW(E -

PTG #

+ 43 L AN e
BTG

Y|

() MABRERANZIMIEALRE

2024 2023
—E_MF —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Current tax B HA B 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax PRI ERER 8,207 9,077
Under-provision in respect of BAFERE
prior years 2R 61 491
PRC Dividend Withholding Tax PR AR SR 967 2,059
9,235 11,627
Deferred tax B IR
PRC Dividend Withholding Tax H AR B TR0 (967) (2,059)
Origination and reversal of TR J Bl 5 8 A A
other temporary differences =R 1,230 3,485
9,498 13,053
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

12.INCOME TAX (continued)

31 December 2024

—E-WF+=—A=1+—H

12.En &% (88)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) ILEBEERAZHIERE :

or loss represents: (continued) (#8)

Notes: Hat -

() Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands () REFNSHEBERIABEZES
and the British Virgins Islands, the Group is not subject to ZHRAEED - REETARE
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgins FENS &EBE TSN
Islands. EIPTIEH -

(i)  Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2023: (i BAEFESHERAFEMEER
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the years. BaHz165% (= =F :
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as 16.5% ) 5T H - HRAEER
the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong HE-_ZT_NFER-_T-=F
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. +ZA=+—BLEFEIESL

BEFEEREIB N Bt
BEHRBANEHIRE -

(i)  The Company’s subsidiaries in PRC are subject to a statutory iy ARAZHBENEQREIR
Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") at the rate of 25% (2023: 25% (ZZE == 1 25%) 2
25%), except for the subsidiaries which are qualified as the EEMNEEREMRED ([
High and New Technology Enterprise in PRC that would Fig®l) AT S
be entitled to enjoy a preferential CIT at the rate of 15% T > 2 &A% 2 MY B A R BR A -
(2023: 15%). Dividend distribution from subsidiaries in ZENB AR BEZEIS% (=
PRC to the holding companies in Hong Kong is subject to a To=F 1 15%) 2EBEBERMN
reduced withholding tax rate of 5% (2023: 5%). ERME -PEMNBARTMSE

BIER AR DI 2R EBES%
TE-=F:5%) 2 EHRRA
BB EAE -
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and b) HEAMEFTE 2HBER
accounting profit at the applicable rates: HEeFEMNEERAT
2024 2023
—E-WEF —EC=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Loss before taxation BrBi AT B 18 (22,107) (18,178)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, ZAHEFIE AR 2 @ F
calculated at the rates applicable in MEAE CBRBAIEEZ
the tax jurisdiction concerned HEBE (2,609) (923)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A #1755 B &% 2 T i 2 & 6,130 10,079
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEREBRBAZH BT E (3,488) (6,657)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7k 2% 18 B 18 ~ B 7 o2 &8 9,276 8,323
Under-provision in respect W FERE
of prior years T 28 61 491
Tax effect of temporary differences CHERAEREZ5E
recognised M8 1,230 3,485
Effect of income tax preferential R RS ESER
policy in PRC -2 (1,102) (1,745)
Tax expense for the year AFEEREMX 9,498 13,053
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO R R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

13.DIVIDENDS 13.1E 2
(a) Dividends payable to owners of the Company (@) AFEEENARAIHEEA

attributable to the year

g

2024 2023
—E2-E e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Final dividend proposed after the R & BREER
end of the reporting ANERAR B
period of HK$0.0016 & /%0.001678 7T
(2023: HK$0.0016) per share (ZEFE==Z%F :0.001657T) 4,857 4,857

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period and is subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (b)
Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

RBERREREBRNZFERE
TERNREMRERSAE AA
FARABRRERERRAFAE
EHUER - TRIEE -

F A E KR £ — B
FEEBNARAERAKRRE
Z BB

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Final dividend in respect of the EBEEARAERENMN F—K
previous financial year, approved R Y RS
and paid during the year of S S
HK$0.0016 (2023: HK$0.0038) BR0.0016/BT (=B == :
per share 0.0038/%&7T) 4,857 11,536
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14.LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % R ok M ORE

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

Basic loss per share (a)
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted

14. Bl &G 18

FREXREE
SREAFIETHENARRD AFE AL
(BB RRARDTFNERTEBRM

average number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue EFHE T ENT
during the year as follows:
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Loss attributable to owners of the NARHEE AEG
Company, as used in the calculation  E BN E
of basic and diluted loss per share: FRERRE#EEIE -
Loss from continuing operations REBEQEER BB 26,335 28,582
Loss from discontinued operation REERIELEEB ZEE = 4,536
Loss from continuing REBEBELEEBR
operations and discontinued ERIEREER
operation i 26,335 33,118
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ZRERMETLHIHY
2024 2023
—E-MEF —T=
Ordinary shares in issue at R—A—BER+=-_A=+—H
1 January and 31 December BT B R 3,035,697,018 3,035,697,018
Diluted loss per share (b) BREFEE

No assumption was made for the exercise of the share options
since the assumed exercise of share options would result in a
decrease in loss per share.

BRITEBRE ZBREEHEK
BRI - U EERRBRERET
5 e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % -BREEZE
Computers
Construction Plant and and Furniture Motor
Buildings  inprogress  machinery  equipment  and fixtures vehicles Total
BF  REIE HERRE EHRRE GARRE RE Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tikn TR Tix Tikn TR T Titn
Cost A
At 1 January 2023 R-E-=F-f—-H 606,360 71629 455,852 24,356 6,459 14,668 1,115,824
Exchange adjustments EHRE (15,857) (296) (12,278) (620) (170 (295) (29,516)
Additions RE U 10,953 7,198 713 64 %3 20,132
Disposals He (2,719) - (1,299) (1,831) (142) (1,204) (7.215)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 18(c) ~ HE-RMBLR A (HZ180) - - - (614) (180) (629) (1423)
Transfer 3 1,419 (4,040) 2,621 - - - -
Transfer to discontinued operation AR K ¥R - - - i - - 1
At 31 December 2023 and R-E-ZE+-A=1-BEk
1 January 2024 ~“E2-N%-FE-H 589,944 14,246 452,094 22,025 6,031 13,483 1,097,823
Bxchange adjustments B A (19,057) (591) (15,104) (651) (197) (324) (35,924)
Additions AE 656 15,491 8,805 a7 444 1,388 27,201
Disposals be (71) - (625) (3,605) (296) (1,835) (6,432)
Transfer 2R 2,166 (7,992) 5,826 - - - -
At 31 December 2024 R-B-DE+ZR=t-8 573,638 21,154 450,99 18,186 5,982 12,712 1,082,668
Depreciation and impairment HERHE
At 1 January 2023 R-B-=£-f—-H 190,263 - 246,595 13,925 4,522 9,355 464,660
Exchange adjustments EiRE (5,293) - (7,155) (390) (127) (189) (13,154)
Charge for the year ERR 24,837 = 41,708 3,38 759 1,739 72,428
Eliminated on disposals RILERES (114) - (1,100) (1,019) (136) (1,111) (3,480)
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary ML E—FHBR Ak 53
(note 18(c) (Wi 180) - - - (551) (180) (407) (1,138)
Transfer to discontinued operation EABRIAEEK - - - 17 - 54 7
At 31 December 2023 and R-E-=E+-A=1-BEk
1 January 2024 “Z-mE-A-A 209,693 - 280,048 15,367 4,838 9,441 519,387
Exchange adjustments EHBE (7,089) - (9,907) (487) (159) (231) (17.873)
Charge for the year ERak 24,493 - 40,448 2,75 i 1,616 69,743
Eliminated on disposals REERHE (36) - (477) (2,653) (283) (1,821) (5,270)
At 31 December 2024 RZBZREZA=+-B 227,061 -3 14,982 4,867 9005 565987
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2024 RZB-ME+-A=1-A 346,577 21,154 140,884 3,244 1115 3,707 516,681
At 31 December 2023 RZBZZETZA=+-R 380,251 14,246 172,046 6,658 1,193 4,082 578,436
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The buildings are situated in the PRC with leases held within 50
years.

As at 31 December 2024, certain property, plant and
equipment with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$47,392,000 (2023: HK$57,483,000) had been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note 27(0)).

As at 31 December 2024, included in the Group’s property, plant
and equipment there were certain factory buildings ancillary to
industrial sewage treatment erected on the leasehold land in the
eco-plating specialised zone with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$89,356,000 (2023: HK$101,667,000) that were
leased to customers for use in accordance with the contractual
arrangement under the master agreements entered into between
the Group and the customers entering the eco-plating specialised
zone which is owned, operated and managed by the Group. As
the centralised industrial sewage treatment services provided by
the Group to the customers are significant to the arrangement
as a whole inside the eco-plating specialised zone, these relevant
buildings and equipment facilities being leased to the customers are
accounted for and classified under property, plant and equipment in
the consolidated financial statements. At the end of both reporting
periods, no impairment were recognised on the property, plant and
equipment at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Movements of carrying amount of the assets, primarily the buildings,

B % R ok M ORE

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

15. % - BB R&

s (48)

ZERFMNFE - WHR50F NIEE R

d

o

B
RZEZMNF+ZA=+—H8 KAE
& $#£4947,392,0008 0 (Z T = = ¢
57,483,000/ 70) <A TWE - BE K&
HETER EARNEBERERRITH
B ER(MFE270) -

RZZEZWF+=ZA=+—H 5t AKX
EEVE BMERZEBEEFNERSE
FEEHELT M FBEFHEIRNITES
mﬁﬁm“$lﬁ§%’E%EﬁA
H #) 589,356,000/ T (Z T = = F :
101,667,0007& 70) © B 1R ¥ /A~ & @ B2 #
ABHALEEE ZEREERZRR
BEERZBEPIUZEHEETALY
ZHEHETZERFPTER HRAEHE
MEFRHEZEPRR T ESKERRE
HERAREFEZRAZEELMEBE
R HMESEERFEFZHEBEFRE
%ﬂmﬂm%é%ﬁﬁﬁAﬁfﬁi

PERDE BERZEET - M E
RERAR TEHR S _NFR-ZT
=+ -A=+—8Bz20E BER
B TERE -

RELLHEHETEPNEE(ZER

leased out to customers under operating leases are as follows: BF)ZEREAEZHNOT
2024 2023
= ks ———
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THIT
At 1 January Bn—A—H 101,667 113,960
Depreciation e (9,160) (9,425)
Exchange adjustments [E 5 (3,151) (2,868)
At 31 December R+=HA=+—~H 89,356 101,667

Leasing income recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$29,297,000 (2023: HK$32,460,000).

AEBEFAER HEWAE29,297,000
BT (ZZE =4 : 32,460,000/ 7C) °

—E_MEER HFFRAREBEBR AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

16.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

16. EEEE

HK$'000
TER
Cost R
At 1 January 2023 A—E-_=F—HF—H 136,467
Exchange adjustments BE 5 3 (1,705)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 ﬁAfz: —F+-A=+—HRK
—E-_mMFE—-HA—H 134,762
Exchange adjustments M T B (2,029)
Release on lease termination TSR (1,055)
At 31 December 2024 R-B-NE+=A=+—H 131,678
Depreciation wE
At 1 January 2023 R-ZZE-_=F—H—H 33,308
Exchange adjustments BE 3, 3 B (371)
Charge for the year F AR
— land use rights — T AR 2,960
— office premises g VN ES 318
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 J‘E’\\: T_=F+-_A=+—HK
—ET-MNFE—HA—H 36,215
Exchange adjustments i (480)
Charge for the year FAME
— land use rights — AR 2,922
— office premises —WNEYE 309
Release on lease termination % 1FFH E AR RR (1,055)
At 31 December 2024 R-ZB-ZWE+=ZA=+—H 37,911
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December 2024 R-B-NE+=A=+—H 93,767
At 31 December 2023 R-BE-_=F+-_fA=+—H 98,547

As at 31 December 2024, certain land use rights with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$7,266,000 (2023:
HK$7,692,000) had been pledged to secure banking facilities

granted to the Group (note 27(c)).

7,692,000/% 75) Zi%ﬂFiimﬁﬁH BET

*@iﬂ—*ﬂiﬂ——ﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ

W EAAEBEMERRBITRE ZE
1R (MF5E27(0)) ©
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16.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

16.

The analysis of the carrying amount of right-of-use assets by class of
underlying asset is as follows:

B % R ok M ORE

—E-WF+=—A=1+—H

FERAESE (8
REBEEBERN P ENERAEESEREA
EBELmT

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Ownership interests in land use rights held 3F{E@ B & L BENFE
for own use, carried at depreciated cost in  FEREZE - P BRI E KA
PRC with remaining lease terms between ~ ABE * &2 N EIN F
30 and 50 years 30E504F 30,972 32,644
Ownership interests in land use rights HAEHRDETEPO I
held for leasing to customers, carried at  {F B HEAIFT B HERE 25 -
depreciated cost in PRC with remaining ERRBRTERAAR
lease terms between 30 and 50 years R T EN F30E504 55,404 57,760
Ownership interests in land use rights held ¥ B8 A &Y L 30 B H
for own use, carried at depreciated cost P Mz - £ EI%
in PRC with terms to be renewed by WEKAAR  HHRA
government (note) BRI &R (F52) 7,391 7,829
Office premises leased for own use, carried B AT EH NG AT - £ HZ
at depreciated cost in PRC, with remaining #T& KA ALR - &2 NHE
lease terms of more than 1 year and less  #B3i814F 2 D ASE
than 5 years - 314
93,767 98,547

Note:

As at 31 December 2024, certain land use rights with carrying amount
of approximately HK$7,391,000 (2023: HK$7,829,000) together
with property, plant and equipment with total carrying amount of
approximately HK$80,981,000 (2023: HK$95,540,000) located at
Xiangshui, Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province, PRC is subject to the
requirement of new incineration facility to be further constructed
thereon in order to comply with the stipulated minimum floor-area
ratio by 23 November 2020. The Group has submitted a development
plan for constructing new incineration facility on the land, which is still
pending governmental approval up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of the Directors of the
Company, once the government approval for the construction of new
additional incineration facility is obtained, the construction work will be
commenced accordingly and there would be no material impact to the
Group's operation and financial position.

At the end of both reporting periods, there were no impairment
recognised on the Group’s land use rights.

—=
—

RZZE-_WFE+_A=+—H8 CR+TH
TR B2 KEIRAEEL A7,391,000
BT(ZE-=4:7,829,0008T) Z2&ET
o b {5 A A R AR T 4R 1B 49 4580,981,000/%
T (ZZF = =4 :95,540,000/8T) Z W% -
BMERSZE BETEELE—PERH
RIEBREZER  WER_E_ZTF+—
AZ+ =R EMAEZRNAEER-
AEBERSRZ L HERTITIERELN
BRITE EERSELRAMBEHmERMER
HMOEFRFIE - AARESERAE — A
ESBSHERETNOEIINRERE &
ETEREESHERR BEfe8HA£EN
EERMBRRNEKRERNLE -

R E

RAMEREHR TERAEEZ L E
FAETERIRE °

—HEFE FFRAEEARAQA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

17.GOODWILL 17. 82
2024 2023
—E-E —EC=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Carrying amount at 1 January and R—A—HEKt+ZA=+—H
31 December ZRHEE 33,000 33,000

Goodwill is attributable to the business segment of environmental
integrated waste treatment services that arose from the acquisition
of 82% equity interest of NUET(JS) in 2007. NUET(JS), through its
subsidiaries, is engaged in the provision of environmental waste
integrated treatment and disposal services in the Jiangsu Province,

PRC.

Impairment test assessment

The goodwill, together with related property, plant and equipment
with carrying amount of HK$45,913,000 (2023: HK$56,270,000),
and land use rights with carrying amount of HK$7,557,000 (2023:
HK$7,841,000), are allocated to NUET(JS) Group as an identified
cash-generating-unit (“CGU") under the operating segment of

environmental waste treatment services.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2024

RREEEVEERBER > HBEGERE
2R T £ FIWENUETUS) 82%%
RERFEEAE o NUET(S)BE BEW B A a N

BI#HENRERHEREYREEREE
B 75 ©

R BB 5 BT 1

=B E BRI {E A45,913,0008 L (= F
— =% :56,270,000/8 7T) 2 AR -
5 K 5% LA I BR T B &7,557,0000%8 7T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment test assessment (continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the assessment on the recoverable
amount of this CGU was determined by Colliers International
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Colliers International”) (2023: Colliers
International), an independent firm of professional valuers, on the
basis of value-in-use calculations which use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period, that are discounted to their present values at
a pre-tax discount rate of 12.33% (2023: 16.12%). Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an annual growth
rate of approximately 1.7% (2023: 2.1%) which does not exceed
the long-term growth rate for the waste treatment industries.
Other key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation relate to the
estimated cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin. Such estimation is based the CGU's past performance,
future business plan and management’s expectations for the future
market development.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as

B % R ok M ORE

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

17. 82 (88)

BB R B FE S ()
RZZE-MF+=—A=+—8 " R
CEABEMZATRESEETZTHA
BUYEEGHEMITR IBEEDERR (B
B)ERARI([EAHBRE) (ZE==F:
SOBER) ERNEREARFESE - FH
BEFAENFEARBEEEEI ARER
FHEZVREEFEZRESRERA -
WIAFBTITIR K1233% (DT - =4
16.12% ) IR = HIBFE - AF B 237
EREEANITI%(ZEZ=F :2.1%)
CERERRHE HIUEBAEVEE
TEZEHEER -BHEFRERAS
MEBEBACTREBAAECEMEER
BEEMEE ZHEERENE - ZMEET
DIRERSELESENBERER KK E
BateI R EEEBYRKMISGHRE 2B
MmiEH °

ERBEAEMRBZIERROT

follows:
2024 2023
—E-pgE —E-=F
Gross profit margin EF = 45.67% 53.34%
Compound annual growth rate in BREHRAIEAFIERK
the initial five-year period 3.4% 4.2%
Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows MUAHETEZEHELIRSRE
beyond the budget period ZHERER 1.7% 2.1%
Pre-tax discount rate applied to the FERARESREENZ
cash flow projections FATITIR =X 12.33% 16.12%

Since the recoverable amount of the NUET(JS) Group as an identified
CGU, to which goodwill and related property, plant and equipment
are allocated, exceeded the aggregate carrying amount of these
assets of the NUET(JS) Group as an identified CGU, no impairment
loss on goodwill and the relevant assets were considered necessary
at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

HREESREAEREEYE BEK
FEZNUETOS) S E (Brl R —EREE
A BN 2 AT IR B £ 58 BNUET(S)& B
(FBAB—ERSELEN) NEZSEE
JHEEEE Wt O R-_E_mER=-
T_=F+-_A=+—"H BHEKLHEH
BEWSGSAEEELRERBS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8% R R MR

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. MM B AR ZRE

(a) The following list contains the particulars of the principal
subsidiaries, which affected the results, assets, or liabilities of

the Group as at 31 December 2024:

Place of incorporation  Form of legal

Particulars of issued and

(a) BEFEAKBER_FT_WE+—
A=+—B%#& BExXBEZE:
EMBRRZFBENT :

Proportion of ownership interest
FRERELA
Group's
effective Held by Held by

Name of subsidiary and operations entity paid-up capital interest the Company  a subsidiary Principal activity
BEAR A5E B-%
WEATAR ARRIREELE  EREBZMRX  HREARE EREE mA0ABE WEAERE TEEH
Ever Champ (China) Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
company
B () BRAA (0 BRAT 10,000 &% A2k
Fair International Investment Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Enterprise Limited company
ERABRECEERAT B BRAA 10,0008 £ &% RELR
Fair Industry Waste Recyclables Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited company
ERIXENELNARRAT B BRAA 10,000 &% REZNK
Fair Time International Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 99,327,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
company
EEARERAT B ERAA 99,327,000 &8 RAZK
Jiangsu Xinyu Environmental PRC Wholly foreign Registered and paid-up 100% - 100%  Environmental technical
Company Limited* owned enterprise ~ HK$81,000,000 consultancy
IHENTRERERAT il NEBELX R 281,000,008 RREMHN
New Sinotech Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 5,000,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
("NSIL") Hong Kong company of USD1 each
HERREBRRA (INSIL)) LRRAER/FE  BRAW 5,000,000R BREEIET RELRK
LERR
New Universe (China) Investment British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 1,800,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong company of USD1 each
HF(PE)REARAR ABRABB/EE  BRLA 1,800,000% 8 EEIET REBR
LEBR
New Universe (China) Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 1,000,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100% Investment holding
company
HF(PE)ERAT Bk BRAT 1,000,000 & &% RELRK
New Universe Environmental British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 4,000,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Protection Investment Limited Hong Kong company of USD1 each
HTRRRABRAR AERAEE/EE  ARAH 4,000,000B S REE T AR

3l
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

(a) The following list contains the particulars of the principal
subsidiaries, which affected the results, assets, or liabilities of
the Group as at 31 December 2024: (continued)

18.

B % R ok M ORE

—E-F+=—A=+—H
RHBARZEE (8)

(a) BEFEAKBER_ZFT_WE+—
A=+—B%#& BEXBEZE
EMBARIZFEBOT : (8)

Proportion of ownership interest

RRERELA
Group's
Place of incorporation  Form of legal Particulars of issued and ~ effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operations entity paid-up capital interest the Company  asubsidiary Principal activity
BER AEEY B-%

WEAAAR AMRIREELE  ERERIKX  AREREE BRER mE0FRE WELERE IEEH

New Universe Environmental Hong Kong Limited liability 21,640,000 ordinary shares 82% - 82% Investment holding
Technologies (Jiang Su) Limited company
("NUET(S)")

FFRRBR(IH) ERAT Bk ERRA 21,640,000 £ R REBR
(TNUET(S)))

New Universe International Ecology British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong company USD1 each

HFEBLRARLA AERAEE/EE  BRAA 10,000k 8RAE XL REBR

New Universe International Group Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited company

FFERER (£E)ERAT Bk BRAA 10,0005 £ &% RELR

New Universe International Holdings ~ British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong company USD1 each

HFERERERAT ERRAES/FE EROA 10000% BRERIZ T2 REBR

New Universe Recyclable Investments — British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong company USD1 each

FTERBLREARRAT LBRLBEE/EE  BROW 10,0005 8 RAEIZTL REBR

g4l
New Universe Recyclables Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% = 100%  Investment holding
company
FTERBENARRAT i ARAT 10,000 2% REENK
Smartech International Group Limited ~ British Virgin Islands/ ~~ Limited liability 1,000,000 ordinary shares 100% 100% - Investment holding
Hong Kong company of USD1 each
ENERSERRAA AERAEB/EE  ARAA 1,000,000k BRAEIZT RERR

3l
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024

18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

18.

(a) The following list contains the particulars of the principal
subsidiaries, which affected the results, assets, or liabilities of
the Group as at 31 December 2024: (continued)

RME AR ZRE (B

(a) BEFEAKBER_FT_WE+—
A=+—B%#& BExXBEZE:
EMBARIZFEBOT : (8)

Proportion of ownership interest

RRERGLA
Group's
Place of incorporation  Form of legal Particulars of issued and ~ effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operations entity paid-up capital interest the Company  asubsidiary Principal activity
BEAR AEEY B-%
WEAAAR AMRIREELE  ERERoKX  AREREE EREE mALARE WELAKE IEXR
Smartech Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 70,380,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Asset holding
company
EMERERAA 0 ERAE 70,380,000 £ HER
Smartech Plastic Moulding Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 100 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Dormant
company
ERZBHERERAA A ERAF 10055 &R gmek
Smartech Services Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 2 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Provision of
company management services
ERERERAT B ERRAE WREBR REEREH
Sugian New Universe Environmental PRC Wholly foreign Registered HK$97,010,000 100% - 100%  Environmental
Solid Waste Disposal Limited* owned enterprise ~ and paid-up hazardous waste
HK$97,000,000 treatment and
disposal services
FREHERENREERLA hE HEEELE it1197,010,000E T R4 & RRERENRERE
97,000,000 7 ERH
Xiangshui New Universe PRC Sino foreign joint ~ Registered and paid-up 65% = 65%  Environmental
Environmental Technology Limited equity enterprise ~ HK$50,750,000 hazardous waste
(“Xiangshui NU") treatment and
disposal services
SKFFRRHRARAA hE hhaEh% 0 Rt 250,750,000 7 RRERENRERR
(1&ksrF1) ERB
Yancheng New Universe Solid PRC Wholly foreign Registered and paid-up 82% - 100% Business operation
Waste Disposal Company Limited owned enterprise  USD700,000 ceased
("Yancheng New Universe")
BT HERRNRERRAT HE IEEALE i RE R 700,000% RESIEE- ¢

(&5 4))
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

31 December 2024

18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18.

(continued)

(a) The following list contains the particulars of the principal
subsidiaries, which affected the results, assets, or liabilities of
the Group as at 31 December 2024: (continued)

— = —

=

mE+=—A=+—H

RMBE AR ZRE (B

(a) BEFEAKBER_ZFT_WE+—
A=+—B%#& BEXBEZE
EMBARIZFEBOT : (8)

Proportion of ownership interest

RRERELA
Group's
Place of incorporation  Form of legal Particulars of issued and ~ effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operations entity paid-up capital interest the Company  asubsidiary Principal activity
BER AEEY B-%
WEAAAR AMRIREELE  RRERoKX  AREREE EREE mALARE WELAKE IEXR
Yancheng NUHF Environmental PRC Sino foreign joint ~ Registered and paid-up 65% - 65%  Environmental
Technology Limited* equity enterprise ~ HK$83,000,000 hazardous waste
("Yancheng NUHF") treatment and
disposal services
RN FBERRIEARLA ol TEELE i1 R 283,000,000% T RRERENRERE
(vt 1) ERH%
Zhenjiang New Universe Solid PRC Wholly foreign Registered and paid-up 82% - 100%  Environmental
Waste Disposal Company Limited owned enterprise  USD10,850,000 hazardous waste
("Zhenjiang New Universe”) treatment and
disposal services
BIFFERENRERRLA ilei NEBERX R 210,850,000% 7T RRERENRERE
(TEIHF]) ERK
Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco- Electroplating  PRC Wholly foreign Registered and paid-up 100% - 100%  Environmental
Development Limited (“Zhenjiang owned enterprise  USD25,000,000 industrial sewage
Sinotech”) and sludge treatment
and facility provision
Services in an
eco-plating zone
BIZHELERNRURARLT P8 NEBELR R B25,000,000% 7T RRIZAKRAER
(TEIZH]) ERNRREERR
R R
Zhenjiang Xinrong Environmental PRC Wholly foreign Registered and paid-up 100% - 100%  Environmental technical
Technologies Limited (formerly owned enterprise ~ HK$1,000,000 consultancy
named as Jiangsu Xin Yu
Environmental Technologies
Limited)*
BIERRRURARAR (RIE A NEBELR 1 R 21,000,0007% T RREMHEA
HTRRMRERAA)
* For identification purpose only

EHHFZ
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO R R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 1. MM B LR ZHE (&)
(continued)
(b)  The following tables summarised the financial information (b) TERHFINREPELERFBREA

relating to each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material
non-controlling interests (“NCI"”) at the end of the reporting
period. The summarised financial information presented below
represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

For the year ended 31 December 2024

SETEAERIFFERER ([IF
zhER ) 2B AR B 2%
ERBE - TIMBERBER
HEENEEANRRRERIIZS
B o

BE-_Z_HWfE+=-BA=+—HL
FE

NUET(JS) Xiangshui Yancheng
Group NU NUHF
NUET(JS)%E fkFF HEFFEZ
(note)
(Hia)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FET
NCI percentage EERERA DL 18% 35% 35%
Non-current assets EMEEE 80,500 89,925 193,026
Current assets MENEE 176,390 5,023 30,675
Current liabilities REBE (108,686) (63,648) (56,111)
Non-current liabilities ERFAG (3,710) - (639)
Net assets BEFE 144,494 31,300 166,951
Carrying amount of NC| R R 2 BREE 26,009 10,955 58,433
Revenue Uz 78,964 160 72,801
Profit/(loss) for the year FEBHN, (FEE) 9,402 (8.865) (11,027)
Total comprehensive 2mElE(E1E) 85
income/(loss) 4,833 (10,072) (16,913)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI DREEERER 2
wmF (BER) 1,692 (3,103) (3.859)
Dividend paid to NCI S F IR S 2
% B - - 1,136
Cash flows generated from/ wESEEES (FTA)
(used in) operating activities 2EERE 1,278 (1,632) 5,967
Cash flows used in investing KREEESFTEZ
activities ReRke (1,034) (163) (1,426)
Cash flows used in financing MEEHFEZ
activities RenE (236) (264) (4,174)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

(b)

31 December 2024

B % R ok M ORE

—E-WF+=—A=1+—H

18. RMB LR ZHRE ()

The following tables summarised the financial information (b)
relating to each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material
NCI at the end of the reporting period. The summarised
financial information presented below represents the amounts
before any inter-company elimination. (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

TREJINRERREREFAAN
SETIHERERIZERER
BAREAZHMBEMEE - T5I
MBEERMET R EAMEER
REIRMY R 228 - (8)

HE-_ZT-_=-—F+=-_RA=+—H1t
FE

NUET(JS) Xiangshui Yancheng
Group NU NUHF
NUET(S)& E KT HEHTFEZ
(note)
(His)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAET
NCI percentage FFERESZBA DL 18% 35% 35%
Non-current assets ERBEE 90,756 106,583 215,898
Current assets MBEE 156,952 10,071 29,569
Current liabilities mBBE (104,642) (75,282) (57,257)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (3,406) - (1,100)
Net assets BEFE 139,660 41,372 187,110
Carrying amount of NC| R ER ZEREE 25,139 14,480 65,489
Revenue g 87,379 22,368 88,179
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHHM(BE) 13,182 (19,371) 5,024
Total comprehensive 2EWE(FE) 88
income/(loss) 9,412 (20,760) (86)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI DRI ER
w=F, (E518) 2,373 (6,780) 1,758
Dividend paid to NCI ST IEERER 2
[@s 1,169 - 1,951
Cash flows (used in)/generated & &&8) (FrA) E4
from operating activities ZHEERE (1,930) 2,909 27,773
Cash flows used in investing KEEEFTAZ
activities BERE (2,868) (4,035) (4,688)
Cash flows used in financing MEEEBFTAZ
activities BERE (9,320) (1,666) (29,878)

Note:

NUET(JS)5 B FANUET(S) (1E B1E IR A
A)RHEMBAREIFT HERT
¥R B N RS TR E RS R E IR D
BRAFHMMK -

NUET(JS) Group comprises NUET(JS) as the holding company and
its subsidiaries, Zhenjiang New Universe, Yancheng New Universe,
and the associate, Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste Disposal Limited.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8% R R MR

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 1. MBI ZIE (8)
(continued)
(c)  Disposal of interest in a subsidiary (0 HE—FRHMBAREZ=

For the year ended 31 December 2023

As referred to in note 5, on 3 August 2023, the Group
completed the disposal of its entire interest in a subsidiary,
Jiangsu Yu Xin. The net assets of Jiangsu Yu Xin at the date of

Wkt EsPT - R EZ=F N\ A
ZH AKREEREEERMER
ALER TR 2 ABAE S o T &R T

disposal were as follows: REERSNFEERNT ¢
Note HK$'000
B 5 FHET
Net assets disposed of FTHEZEEFHE
Property, plant and equipment Y - B R 285
Trade and bills receivables FEMBR R R R IR 29,652
Prepayments, deposits and other TERRIE -« 12 e R H fth fE IR
receivables IE 14,582
Contract assets BHEE 16,921
Pledged bank deposits SR HIHERITE R 1,836
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERBALIEHR 4,011
Trade and bills payables ERERRER (5,742)
Accrued liabilities and other payables JEET B E R EmENRIE (51,464)
Contract liabilities EHEE (2,575)
Deferred tax liabilities B IEE G (100)
7,406
Consideration was satisfied EAEBZNRE
Cash consideration received EUR &R E 2,404
Cash consideration receivable EHRERE 24 10,670
Net assets disposed of FMEECEESFE (7,406)
Costs directly attributable to the disposal EEHEBREEHKE (371)
Release of translation reserve i PR B 3 (o (352)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XWEQ Rz iR 4,945
Net cash flow arising on the disposal HEEEZRERERE
Cash consideration received BBz RENRE 2,404
Costs paid directly attributable to HERBERNHEZENER
the disposal (371)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FtEzReRERRESER (4,011)
Net cash outflow RERHFHE (1,978)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

31 December 2024

—E-WF+=—A=1+—H

19.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. RBE N NRIZHER
2024 2023
—E-WE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Share of net assets PEEERE
At 1 January R—A—H 138,899 153,450
Share of results DEFEE (9,445) (9,416)
Share of other comprehensive income A E A2 E A (4,389) (3,931)
Dividends received 2R S = (1,204)
At 31 December BR+=—HA=+—8 125,065 138,899
Particulars of the associates are as follows: B NRZFIBHT
Proportion of ownership interest
BEERRLH
Place of Particulars of Group's Held Held
incorporation  Form of business issued and paid-up  effective by the bya Principal
Name of associate and business  structure capital interest Company  subsidiary  activity
H-X%
ERA LR E3 20 BETR rEE2 HAAR WEAR
BeNRER EENE ZFR HEEAFE BERER =L BE IEEER
Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste PRC Joint equity Registered 24.60% - 30%  Environmental
Disposal Limited* enterprise and paid-up hazardous
("Zhenjiang Xin Qu") RMB36,000,000 waste landfill
disposal
services
BINREERERND HE RERE HMRAR AR RREREY
ARAA(EIHE]) 36,000,0007T BRRE R
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park PRC Sino foreign joint ~ Registered and 30% - 30%  Environmental
Tianyu Solid Waste Disposal Co., equity enterprise  paid-up hazardous
Ltd. ("NCIP") HK$93,600,000 waste
treatment
and disposal
services
ARLEI£AXT e PAEERE AN § 3 RREREY
EEENEEBRAA 93,600,000 T RER
(TARRE]) RERS
CECMEER NMFRAREEERAA
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B % R * M 5

31 December 2024 —Z=[NF+=-A=+—H

19.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)

The above associates are accounted for using the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements.

(@) Summarised the financial information of the Group’s
associates, adjusted for the differences in accounting policies
and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated

financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2024

19.NEEE RN T

LL

sz

(a)

FER ARG A
w=EANER o

AEEX
(A & 5T BUR

pod
4 2

(HE)

BMiEHERNBRA

Bl ZMIBERE
RAAE) MEEER

BHERAREESRE -

BE-_Z2-_WE+-A=+—-HL

FE
Zhenjiang
Xin Qu *NCIP
EIHE BRERXF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Gross amounts of the associate’'s B& N E 2@ &8
Non-current assets JEMENEE 151,632 461,198
Current assets MBEE 37,347 35,124
Current liabilities mBas (26,952) (88,762)
Non-current liabilities JEREEE (71,939) (80,765)
Net assets BAEFE 90,088 326,795
Revenue I & 34,658 47,478
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHA, (BE) 4,264 (35,748)
Other comprehensive income HAh 2 mE WS
— Exchange difference on —ME M BHRE
translation of financial FESE
statements X =5 (2,977) (11,652)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) & @ Wz, (E18) & 48 1,287 (47,400)
Dividend received from ERBEATZRE
the associate - -
Reconciliation to the Group's HEASEREE AT
interest in the associate a2 Bk
Gross amount of net assets of BEAREEFBEL
the associate Ak 90,088 326,795
Group's share of net assets of the  ANEEHHEAE QT2
associate EEFE 27,026 98,039
Carrying amount in the consolidated R 4R & B i & 2
financial statements FREE 27,026 98,039
Aggregate amounts of the AEEShHENTZESHE
Group’s share of the associate’s
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHM (EE) 1,279 (10,724)
Other comprehensive income H b 2 W as
- Exchange difference on — BB ERE
translation of financial FEAE
statements E =% (893) (3,496)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2 Wz, (E18) 58 386 (14,220)
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B % R & M

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

19.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)

(@)  (continued) (@) (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

19. REE Rz = ()

BE-ZT-=F+=-A=+—H1

FE
Zhenjiang
Xin Qu NCIP
EIHE HARAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Gross amounts of the associate’'s B& NTF 2B &5
Non-current assets FERBEE 129,520 494,217
Current assets REEE 38,810 50,647
Current liabilities REEE (30,190) (87,769)
Non-current liabilities IEREBEaE (49,339) (82,900)
Net assets BEFE 88,801 374,195
Revenue g & 30,257 44,290
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHMN(EE) 2,186 (33,573)
Other comprehensive income H 2w e
- Exchange difference on —ME B mE
translation of financial FESE
statements =R (2,446) (10,657)
Total comprehensive loss 2HEBERE (260) (44,230)
Dividend received from BRBEATZRE
the associate 1,204 -
Reconciliation to the Group's HEAEERBEEARZ
interest in the associate ER 2R
Gross amount of net assets of GEANREEFEZ
the associate BE R 88,801 374,195
Group's share of net assets of the AEBEHHEEZERNAZ
associate EEFE 26,640 112,259
Carrying amount in the consolidated R4 & B iE Mk ~
financial statements BRmEE 26,640 112,259
Aggregate amounts of the rEEPHHEARZESHE
Group’s share of the associate’s
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHAM, (BE) 656 (10,072)
Other comprehensive income H b 2 R as
— Exchange difference on —ME B HRE
translation of financial FTESE
statements ME X =5 (734) (3,197)
Total comprehensive loss T HEEBLRE (78) (13,269)

—E_MEER HFFRAREBEBR AT
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31 December 2024

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

19.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)

(b)

Impairment testing of the Group’s interest in NCIP

At 31 December 2024, the recoverable amount of the
Group's interests in NCIP as a cash-generating-unit has
been determined based on value-in-use calculations. The
Group has appointed Colliers International (2023: Colliers
International), an independent firm of professional qualified
valuers, to perform such valuation. The calculations use cash
flow projections of NCIP covering a five-year period according
to the forecast of its management. The pre-tax discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 11.81% (2023:
15.57%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows
of this cash-generating unit is 1.7% (2023: 2.1%) per annum.
Other key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations relate
to estimation of the performance which is based on the
incineration facilities with a licensed capacity of 38,000 (2023:
38,000) metric tonnes for the hazardous waste treatment of
NCIP, and management’s expectation for market demand in
Nanjing, the capital city of Jiangsu Province, PRC.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations on

19. 1}

(b)

R N

Z W ()

REBRERKFREZBE R
RZFE-_NMF+=—_A=+—H &
SERERRFWER—ERSE
BN MR U £ 5 T AR IR
FTREABFEET AEBEEZMF
BUEXEERHEMITS NEH
R(ZTB-=F: 5 HER) ET

ERGE ZFHEERERXT
RIBEEEE 2 8RR E D FHE

ZHEenREEAN FERAREERE
TERZ BRI R EB11.81% (=ZF
Z=%:1557%) - ERHEE IR
ﬁﬁgﬁﬂEELLﬁt%umEEZﬁﬁf§?7ﬁFE
F1I% (ZFZ=F:21%) ° &t
BEFEREEZEMETFEREZ LSRG
ARE O EERERRFREREYD
B E R IR RS /) AB38,0000 M8 (==
=4 :38,0002MF) 2 MR
UEEEBEEYmA (FEIHESE
g MsHR B -

ERERBERSRERENYASE

which management has based their cash flow projections to lE"F’ﬁ/‘?\%ﬂ‘—%EE’J—MﬂZ@ B
undertake an impairment test of the recoverable amount of TREARMEREBRAERAZ
the Group'’s interest in NCIP are as follows: Iz:zf? R
2024 2023
—E-NEF —E==
Gross profit margin FEF = 40.93% 59.07%
Compound annual growth rate in BERFHRACZESFIERE
the initial five-year period 4.1% 4.2%
Growth rate used to extrapolate RAUAEERERERERE
cash flows beyond the budget Z2IERX
period 1.7% 2.1%
Pre-tax discount rate applied to the ~ ERRIR & R ETEA 2 Fi A
cash flow projections IR =& 11.81% 15.57%

The values assigned to the key assumptions on the discount
rate and growth rate are consistent with information from
external sources. Since the recoverable amount of the Group’s
interest in NCIP exceed the carrying amount of the interests
in NCIP, no impairment was considered necessary at 31
December 2024 and 2023.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2024

ERATRERERENETE/EL
MEEKGINDHRIRAER — B -
BARAEERER KT U
@ﬁﬁgiﬂﬁﬁ)ﬂi+ﬁ§\ 7 AR E
B HURER_Z_NFER=ZF
:E¢+_ﬁ:+ AmnELRE
A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

20.INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 20— xREELHEZER

2024 2023
—EoE —ET-=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FHET FHET
Share of net assets PEEERE
At 1 January n—A—H 33,683 35,213
Loan to a joint venture BERT—REERE (a), (b) = 11,083
Share of results DI EE (10,660) (11,726)
Share of other comprehensive income 5 1f E fth 2 H W 25 (925) (887)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 22,098 33,683
Notes: Hiat
(@) At 31 December 2024, loan to a joint venture is unsecured, (@) RZZEZWF+ZA=+—H BX
bearing interest at fixed rate of 4.05% (2023: 4.05%) per annum. F—RELLEDERTF - FUETE
In accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement, both FREKLO05% (T =4 :4.05%)
parties provided loans to the joint venture in proportion to their ZHE - AEEFREBEEEKLESH
equity interests under equal terms. Repayment of any amount of 2B BB ABRAER L OIERSE
the loan requires both venturer's approval and is subject to the BRTHEEREREER - BEZ
joint venture having sufficient assets. BERzsEmeBRTESEE 28t
HE O WEERTAECEEARAZ
BE o
(b)  The Directors of the Company are in the view that there has been by ARAEEZRE MEEREREE
no significant increase in credit risk in loan to the joint venture. HZEEBRE IR FEEIL N - RET
Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 43(c). HEF 15 IR EE43(c) ©
Details of the Group's interest in the joint venture, which are AEBTEEELEZEZNES MBR
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial KPDEARDERE  FBWT -

statements, are as follows:

Proportion of ownership interest

RERERLY
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation  Form of legal issued and effective Held bythe  Held bya
Name of joint venture and operations  entity paid-up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
H-%
AR LR BRR rE@e  AARE WELF
RELEER EENY ERERCKR  BRERRE BRER B8 BE IEEER
Liuzhou Xinyu Rongkai Solid Waste ~ PRC Sino foreign joint  Registered 65% - 65%  Environmental
Disposal Company Limited* equity enterprise  and paid-up hazardous waste
("Xinyu Rongkai") RMB80,080,000 treatment and
disposal services
MAFFRIERENRE e PihaERE  EMRERARE BRERBENRE
AR (TR 80,080,0007C REEMRTH
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Bt 15 o= M &

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

LY '—I—| 2 A Y -I-Iu— -t
20.INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 20 —REELEXEZHER
. 4=

(continued) (#8)

(@) Summarised the financial information of Xinyu Rongkai (a) FFLIZUBEERMERELES
relating and reconciled to the carrying amount in the B ISR N AR EE AR -
consolidated financial statements.

2024 2023
—E-NEF T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Gross amounts of the joint venture’'s S8 MCECZHASE
Non-current assets FERBEE 144,586 160,707
Current assets MBEE 554 778
Current liabilities B EE (111,142) (87,316)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (16,492) (39,399)
Equity AR 17,506 34,770
Included in the above assets: NEEEGHE:
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERAEIEBEAR 1 211
Revenue Wz 99 1,853
Loss for the year FEEIE (16,399) (18,039)
Other comprehensive income HEh 2wk
- Exchange difference on translation of —#E P KBRATESE
financial statements [N =5 (1,423) (1,364)
Total comprehensive loss ZHEERE (17,822) (19,403)
Included in the above loss: NEEBEaRE:
Depreciation and amortisation e R (11,004) (15,578)
Interest income B A = 6
Dividend received from EhEgELEY
the joint venture BE - -
Reconciliation to the Group's interest EERNEERAEE ¥
in the joint venture ERZHE
Gross amount of net assets of the ARTCEEEFECASHE
joint venture 17,506 34,770
Group's share of net assets of the REEBSHEELEZ
joint venture BEFE ! 11,378 22,600
Group's share of shareholders’ loan REESERFEER 10,720 11,083
Carrying amount of net assets of the joint @& ¥ FEERMAE
venture 22,098 33,683
Carrying amount in the consolidated REEH SRR ZEAE
financial statements 22,098 33,683
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s HEBSHEELEZ
share of the joint venture’s BeE
Loss for the year FEER (10,660) (11,726)
Other comprehensive income H b2 mikas
- Exchange difference on translation of ~ — & B # R &K i E
financial statements HE R ERR (925) (887)
Total comprehensive loss 2HEERRE (11,585) (12,613)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20.INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
(continued)

(b)

Impairment testing of the Group’s interest in Xinyu Rongkai:

At 31 December 2024, the recoverable amount of the Group's
interests in Xinyu Rongkai as a cash-generating-unit has been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. The Group
has appointed Colliers International, an independent firm
of professional qualified valuers, to perform such valuation.
The calculations use cash flow projections of Xinyu Rongkai
covering a five-year period according to the forecast of
its management assuming Xinyu Rongkai resumes normal
operations in foreseeable future. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 11.73%. The growth
rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of this cash-generating
unit is 1.7% per annum. Other key assumptions for
the value-in-use calculations relate to estimation of the
performance which is based on the incineration facilities with
a licensed capacity of 20,000 metric tonnes for the hazardous
waste treatment of Xinyu Rongkai, and management’s
expectation for market demand in Liuzhou, Guangxi Province,
PRC.

The key assumption used for value-in-use calculations on
which management has based their cash flow projections to
undertake an impairment test of the recoverable amount of
the Group's interest in Xinyu Rongkai are as follows:

31 December 2024

B % R ok M ORE

—E-WF+=—A=1+—H

20N —REEEFZER

(48)
(b) AEERFFRIMERZAENR

R-ZTE-_WE+—_A=Z+—H &
SERFFERIN(EA—ERSE
BN MM AU £ 5B T AR I
FRBETEET ALEEEET
BUEESERGEMTE HEE
HETHEBRGEE ZSTEFFTELY
BERATRERRREEEELEAR
BEEEECRIRERAFHAEZ
ReEmEEl EANRRERERE
Bl 2 BT IR E AB11.73% - AR
ERBREELBENRERE 218
RERABHFE17%  tEFREEY
HEZ/MEIHSRMGTERE  EE
R FERIEREDREERIEEN
#20,000 8 M8 2 I RERR s » A KRB
BEHNMN(PREERE)MHEEK
2 TEH] -

EEEREBEERSRERABAE
B 70 T R B M 2R ) R R[] 2 BR
TRERAMERERFTERAZ
TE/EET

2024
—E-ImF
Gross profit margin FEF = 33.79%
Compound annual growth rate in the ERFHEZEEFIEBREEX
initial five-year period 4.0%
Growth rate used to extrapolate cash AN EEREREREZEREK
flows beyond the budget period 1.7%
Pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash JERRRERETEN 2 HATdriR X
flow projections 11.73%

The values assigned to the key assumptions on the discount
rate and growth rate are consistent with information from
external sources. Since the recoverable amount of the Group's
interest in Xinyu Rongkai exceed the carrying amount of the
interests in Xinyu Rongkai together with loans and advances to
Xinyu Rongkai, no impairment was considered necessary at 31
December 2024.

EBRTRERERENFTEBELNR
BEHREIIBRFEHER —H - ARA
SENFFEYE R A IR E S 5B R
NI FRYIESERERRBEFHF
KLY MERME  HERAR T _MF
+—A=+—BEXNBENE -

—E_MEER HFFRAREBEBR AT
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MO R R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

21.EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 21. ZBHM 2 EWHER L

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FENEZBAES
INCOME

2024 2023

—®=-mF —Eo=%

HK$’000 HK$'000

5 FETT

Equity instrument designated as measured 5 F &5 B H b 2 W 25 1%
at fair value through other comprehensive = AF{EFE AT A

income (non-recycling) (AT El8) 98,400 81,500
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
At 1 January R—B—H 81,500 70,300
Net fair value change transfer to FREMEPERSRERE
equity through statement of other [ AN S -]
comprehensive income gE)FH 16,900 11,200
At 31 December R+=HA=+—H 98,400 81,500
The Group has designated the unlisted equity investments as AEBEZEELTRAKEEREAT
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income on AEEyEREMEAREE A FER
non-recycling basis (“FVOCI”) (non-recycling), as the investments E((EREMm2EWREEAFEAR]D
are held for strategic purposes. Dividends with amount of (rajdleE) RARZEREDIRXR
HK$3,745,000 (2023: HK$3,945,000) were received on the unlisted BEMMEBEAE BE-_T-_MNE+=A
equity investments for the year ended 31 December 2024. ET—HLEFE AZEFLTREAER

& 1 g B 2 B B A&3,745,0008 T (=&
— =4 :3,945,000/87T)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21.EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME (continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has interests in the following

unlisted equity investments:

B % R ok M ORE

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

21 ZRHEMEEW mER
FEANRZBRERE (F)

—E-_NWFEF+_A=+—H ' &x&EEH

JiN
RIFIBEETRAEEREE

Proportion of ownership interest

BRRERLA
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation  Form of legal issued and effective Held by the Heldbya  Principal
Name of investee and operations  entity paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary  activity
B-%
AMALE BEIR -3 HALE WEAR

HRELAER EEBY ERERKS  HRERREK BN EH ] ¥E IEER

Suzhou New Huamei Plastics Co., PRC Sino foreign joint ~ Registered 18.62% - 18.62%  Plastic materials
Limited ("Suzhou New Huamei") equity enterprise ~ USD16,000,000 dyeing
(note (a)) and paid-up

USD5,000,000

BMREXZRERLE hE mHhaELE 16,000,000 BHEE

(e (Hite) ETRER
5,000,000% 7T

Danyang New Huamei Plastics Co., PRC Sino foreign joint ~ Registered 24.50% - 24.50%  Plastic materials
Limited ("Danyang New Huamei") equity enterprise  and paid-up dyeing
(notes (3), (b) USD1,600,000

AEHEXEHERAT Gl mHRELE A RAR PREE
(Eic i=3) 1,600,000% ¢
(i) o)

Qingdao Zhongxin Huamei Plastics Co., PRC Sino foreign joint ~ Registered 28.67% - 28.67%  Plastic materials
Limited ("Qingdao Huamei") equity enterprise  and paid-up dyeing
(notes (a), (b)) USD1,650,000

EENHEXEHARAA Gl MmHEELE R BRAE
([E8%x)) 1,650,000% 7T

(Hitle) - (b))

—E_MEER HFFRAREBEBR AT
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B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

21.EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 21. ZBH it 2 EmK XL
FEANRZEARE ()

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

Notes: it -

(@)  The unlisted equity investments carried at fair value represent (@) FLETRAEE ERAFEAR) D
investments in Suzhou New Huamei, Danyang New Huamei BREMNFEE NBEHEXERSTS
and Qingdao Huamei, which are principally engaged in plastic EZX (ZERAXTERFEABKE
materials dyeing manufacturing business in Mainland China. BHACREXR) 2 RE-R_T
As at 31 December 2024, the fair value of these unlisted equity ZHFE+ZA=Z+—RH KEEZ
investments was determined by reference to the valuation EFLMEEARZTERB MR E
carried out by Colliers International (2023: Colliers International), 15.05% (ZZT Z=4F : 15.94% ) 1% -
an independent firm of professional valuers, using a market ZEFRLTREAREZRAFENZ
approach model based on the EBIT multiple of enterprise value to EHBUFEEFTEMS NBEER (ZF
earnings before interest and tax (“EV/EBIT") of comparable listed Z=EF g hBER)RAMSEER
companies in the same industry, after having taken into account of ZIEEEE - ZEXTARRITER
the discount for lack of marketability of 15.05% (2023: 15.94%) BB ETARIZEEBEBELERA
for these unlisted investments. Details of fair value hierarchy for i A 2 EBITAE # ([EV/EBIT]) A& &%
these investments are disclosed in note 42 below. H— SR IEE M FE425 57 -

Fair value relative to
EBIT Dividend yield Fair value the Group's total assets
RYrERAEE
EBIT kEx AYE 20V
(note (i) (note (i)
(W) (W)
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
ZBoRE CT-CF ZBCRE CTC-F ZBC@E ToDE CBomE R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AL Ta7 THn
Suzhou New Huamei EEES 3,801 1,710 11.5% 29% 12,600 7,000 1.0% 0.5%
Danyang New Huamei ARiER 3387 3,018 23% 3.3% 10,300 7,600 0.8% 0.6%
Qingdao Huamei gBEx 15,309 17,033 23% 2.8% 75,500 66,900 6.1% 5.1%

(i) Dividend vyield represents the net dividend received (net
of PRC dividend withholding tax paid) from the respective
unlisted equity investment during the reporting period in
a ratio to the fair value of the respective unlisted equity
investment of the Company at the end of that reporting
period.

(i) The fair value of each of the unlisted equity investments
at the end of the reporting period was determined by
reference to the respective independent and professional
valuation performed by Colliers International (2023: Colliers
International).

(i) In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, there was
no impairment on each of the above unlisted investments
at the end of both reporting periods, and there was no
impairment charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for both years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21.EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)  Qingdao Huamei and Danyang New Huamei were not regarded
as associates of the Group, because the Group could not exercise

significant influence over their

financial and operating policies

under the constitutional frameworks that the Group has less than
20% voting power of the board of directors of these investees.
Accordingly, the investments in Qingdao Huamei and Danyang
New Huamei are accounted for as unlisted equity investments.

B % R ok M ORE

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

21 ZRHEMEEW mER
FEANRZBRERE (F)

Hat (&)

(b) BEEXRNGHEXTHERASE
EzBeENE RERERNEENIL
SRRENEZEHATR20%KE
BZERERT  AKETEHZE
REAZHBREEBRRITEEATE
AeFl RNEBEXRAGHES
ZRE A ETBRAKRE AN -

22.INVENTORIES 22.7&
2024 2023
—E_F T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Raw materials B 3,876 4,936

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
and included in profit or loss is presented as follows:

ERRRAXAAABEZFESEON

Carrying amount of inventories consumed  FriE#fEFS 2 REE

5T ¢
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=ZF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
33,938 46,825

23.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

23. BWER T B R IR

2024 2023

—E-ME —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#& T FET

Trade receivables JE U B 3R 63,639 73,337
Lease receivables FEU & IR 11,809 15,853
Bills receivables e Z i 10,194 26,823
85,642 116,013

Less: allowance for credit loss B EEEBZEE (17,669) (23,396)
67,973 92,617
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 15 o= M &

31 December 2024

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

o =]
23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23. BRI R ER (48
(continued)
Ageing analysis AREC D AT
The ageing analysis of trade receivables (including lease receivables) RS BRER RS (B EREKREEIE)
and bills receivables as of the end of the reporting period, based on REKEHRREZAHRMNBKREERE
the invoice date and net of loss allowance is as follows: ZIRBROME T
2024 2023
—E-NE —TE-=4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT FET
0 to 30 days 0B Z30H 35,782 57,669
31 days to 60 days 31HZE60H 9,449 9,236
61 days to 90 days 61HZE90R 6,511 10,694
91 days to 180 days 91HZ=180H 6,761 6,305
181 days to 360 days 181H £360R 2,271 3,738
Over 1 year Hid—F 7,199 4,975
67,973 92,617
The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on AEBFZUEEFRATEREFRES
credit. The Group allows an average credit period of 60 days to its BR-AEEARTEBRIEEY )5
customers of the environmental industrial waste, sewage and sludge KEESREERBEP REAMBAZTF
treatment services and its lessees, and an extended average credit BB R AH608 r MK BEER M
period of 180 days to the customers of regulated medical waste BERYXRENBERENREERRP 2T
treatment from hospitals and medical clinics. Further details on the BHEEHERE180A - BEEALEEE
Group's credit policy and credit risk arising from trade receivables BEREWREFMEEAEERRK 2 #—
are set out in note 43(c). HEEIBEE T 7E43() ©
o
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 24 B RE-RERH Mt

24

OTHER RECEIVABLES

FE W IR

2024 2023
—E-MEF —EC=F
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FET FET
Other receivables H Ath jE Y 3k 0E 327 402
Prepayments TEf IR 4,456 7,990
Amount due from a joint venture R —REELERK (a) 28,213 13,435

Consideration receivable from HE—ZXWEB AR ZEW
disposal of a subsidiary KRB 18(c) 10,321 10,670
43,317 32,497

Note: Hiat -

(@)  The amount due is unsecured, bearing interest at rates ranging
from 3.20% to 4.05% (2023: 3.55% to 4.05%) per annum and
with no fixed terms of repayment.

The above other receivables and prepayments are expected to be
recovered within one year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a)

By

31 December 2024

%R & R

—E-WF+=—A=1+—H

B ReRFRAREEEB R

H 3R

ERER

Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) R NFERBFSEBENK:
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FTHERT FHET
Cash and bank balances Re MIBITHER 79,276 113,670
Time deposits E BT 145,851 73,426
225,127 187,096
Less: Pledged bank deposits B ZBRHIEIRITIFR 0) (4,304) (731)
Cash and cash equivalents in REEERERMERANZ
the consolidated statement of RekEFERRE
cash flows IEH (i) 220,823 186,365
Notes: BaE

0]

(ii)

As at 31 December 2024, bank deposits of HK$4,304,000
(2023: HK$731,000) are pledged to banks for payments to
the suppliers and the issuance of guarantees by the bank
to customers in respect of the specific performance under
certain service agreements and for the issuance of bills
payables to suppliers of the Group.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates on daily
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are placed for
varying periods of between one day and 3 months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged bank
deposits are placed with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

RZE-_WF+=-—A=+—8
B 84,304,000 L (T = =
F:731,0008 ) ZRITHER
WHHTFET BRREERS
NHEARRETREHHEET
BEEBEABRBITRHEFHAE
1R I 17) 2N 55 [ 44 E 7 B L R A

Rig e

FRRBFTZHSEEAFEK
MEFHEZFHFETS - &
HERFERZ2EFME—RE
ZEARREMERE BRFEA
SEZHBSREFEME A
RREE TR ET R - R
THBRZ R ORTERT
BMREERFIHYEENT
82 RAT o

SPoNEER HFRAESEARAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO R R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

25.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 25 R&RERKEEEBAR

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION HREREN ()
(continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing b) METHELEAEHNE
activities: ) -
Lease Accrued Bank
liabilities interest borrowings Total
HEAE EstRE RITEE et

(note 30) (note 29) (note 27)
(H1:£30) (H1:£29) (Ktat27)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT FET TER TER
At 1 January 2024 RZZTZMF
—H—H 332 - 44,000 44,332
Changes from financing BMERSR
cash flows: g
Proceeds from bank RITEEMS
borrowings HIH - - 51,828 51,828
Repayment of bank EERT
borrowings BE - = (49,599) (49,599)
Finance costs paid EATEEKA - (1.802) = (1,802)
Capital element of lease HENRZ
payments EARE (327) - - (327)
Interest element of lease HMERMRZ
payments 2 EBH (9) = = (9)
Total changes from financing & & IR &7
cash flows 2ome (336) (1,802) 2,229 91
Exchange adjustments BE 54, 3 B (5) - (1.477) (1.482)
Other non-cash changes: HIER & :
Interest expenses recognised M8z MR 2
in profit or loss BRI 9 1,802 = 1,811
At 31 December 2024 R-B-_M%F
+=-A=+-—H - - 44,752 44,752
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & MY &
31 December 2024 —ZZ—MF+=-A=+—H
B.HERERAEERAR
HthREREHN ()

25.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing b) METHELEZEBENE
activities: (continued) g (&)
Lease Accrued Bank
liabilities interest  borrowings Total
HEaE JE 5T 2 RITEE st
(note 30) (note 29) (note 27)
(H1&E30) (H17#29) (H15E27)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2023 RZZTEZ=%F
—A—H 667 77 97,959 98,703
Changes from financing BMERSR
cash flows: g
Proceeds from bank HITEEMS
borrowings IR - = 106,601 106,601
Repayment of bank EERT
borrowings BE - - (158,995) (158,995)
Finance costs paid EATEE KA = (3,833) = (3,833)
Capital element of lease HENRZ
payments B AR5 (321) = = (321)
Interest element of lease MERMRZ
payments BB (24) S = (24)
Total changes from financing & & IR &7
cash flows BE)aezE (345) (3,833) (52,394) (56,572)
Exchange adjustments PE H % (14) - (1,565) (1,579)
Other non-cash changes: HiIER &%
Interest expenses recognised M8 MR 2
in profit or loss F BF XX 24 3,756 - 3,780
At 31 December 2023 R-E-—=%
+=H=+-—8 332 = 44,000 44,332
—ECoMEER HFRREEBSRAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

26. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE

On 16 June 2020, the Company’s subsidiary, Yancheng New
Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited has entered into
a demolition and relocation compensation agreement with the
local authorities to dispose of the land and buildings situated at
Yancheng, Jiangsu Province, the PRC at a total compensation of
approximately RMB13,061,000 (or equivalent to HK$13,896,000)
under an urban development plan promulgated by the local
government. The related assets classified as held for sale were stated
at the net consideration on disposal of HK$13,896,000 (2023:

HK$14,367,000) as at 31 December 2024.

As at 31 December 2024, the related assets classified as held for
sale located at Yancheng, Jiangsu Province, the PRC was subject to
the environmental restoration works done to be approved by the

relevant governmental environmental authority.
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[RGB TERAL  AQ TW%
AEERFFEEREVEEERA
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MMt R EEY BB ERIFE
& E RS R EF 513,896,000
T(ZE-=F: 14%7m&%ﬁ)%:
T_mMFE+=-A=+—H%E

R=B-ME+T=A=+—R  ZRF
T 36  B T 5 R S FE 1 0 5
AENBHEED RN TRA FIEBK
TR R EBPIE0 BTF o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27.BANK BORROWINGS

At the end of the reporting period,

interest-bearing bank

31 December 2024

27. 3R 1T

B % R ok M ORE

—E-WF+=—A=1+—H

fB&

RBREPR  AEEZABRRTEESR

borrowings of the Group were repayable as follows: RUAT EAREEE -

2024 2023
—EBomE —EZ=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt 5 FHET FHET

Current liabilities nBEE
- Secured bank borrowings — BT EE (a) 21,280 22,000
- Unsecured bank borrowings —EIFRITEE (b) 23,472 22,000
44,752 44,000

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
Group's bank borrowings were denominated in the following

RBEMR REBATIEEHEZ
RITBEZEREENT

currency:
2024 2023
—E-ME —ET_=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Renminbi AR 44,752 44,000
Notes: Bt -
(a)  Secured bank borrowings carry fixed interest rates ranged from (@) BEWRITEEZEEFEMNENT

3.50% to 4.00% (2023: 3.90% to 4.25%) per annum.

Unsecured bank borrowings carry interest rates ranged from
3.20% to 3.50% (2023: 3.20% to 7.99%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2024, the secured bank borrowings were
secured by pledge of land use rights and certain property,
plant and equipment of approximately HK$7,266,000 (2023:
HK$7,692,000) and HK$47,392,000 (2023: HK$57,483,000)
respectively.

The Group's short-term loan facilities amounting to
HK$96,672,000 (2023: HK$197,300,000), of which
HK$44,752,000 (2023: HK$44,000,000) has been utilised at the
end of the reporting period.

2 mm

3.50%%F4.00% (- &=
ZF4.25%) o

=4 :3.90%

EEARTEEZFRNENF3.20%
E350% (ZFE =4 :3.2
7.99%) °

0% %=

%:;:E¢+:HE+*E'ﬁE
HRTEE AL ERERE T

¥ BMELEZED DN AT266, ooo
BT (T =% :7,692, 000,571:)
47,392,000 L (Z T = = & :
57,483,000,%7@2%%5{?%&#

RBEHR AEBEFEHEH
,\mmﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ% 672,000 7T (=

T — =4 :197,300,000/8 7T)
244,752,000 0 (Z T = = &F :
44,000,000/ 7T) °

FEH HFRAESEARAT

241



242

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 15 o= M &

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

28. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 28. FETER A R E R
2024 2023
—E_F —ET-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE& T FHT
Trade payables FEABE K 33,612 59,392
Bills payables FERT E & 5,001 -
38,613 59,392

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables based on the

RBEMR BENERREZBHAZE
[

invoice date at the end of the reporting period: DT .
2024 2023
—E-mEF —ET_=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
0 to 30 days 0B %30H 9,485 12,740
31 days to 60 days 31HZE60H 4,344 5,422
61 days to 90 days 61HZ%E90H 3,384 3,022
Over 91 days #B3E918 16,399 38,208
33,612 59,392

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and normally settled within

90 days to 180 days.
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B % R ok M ORE

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

29. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER 20. B &t £ 18 R £ 1t E £ 50 IE
PAYABLES
2024 2023
—E-OF —E-Z=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FET FET
Salaries and bonuses payable B TERIEL 5,893 6,627
Accounts payable for acquisition of  WEWE WEMZREZ
property, plant and equipment FETBR X 19,999 9,521
Costs accrued for land restoration and ﬁ%ﬁ}%%ﬁ}%z;ﬁmk@&
soil remediation of obsolete plants EESR 2 BRI AR 25,514 26,377
Dividends payable to non-controlling FEH EXNEVNGIE S il
interests of a subsidiary EmZRE (a) 57,336 57,466
Other payables H b fE A5 3108 (b) 46,425 37,383
155,167 137,374
Notes: B &t
(@ As at 31 December 2024, the dividends payable to the (@ RZTZWMF+ZA=+—H &

non-controlling interests of the subsidiary, NUET(JS), is comprised
of amounts attributable to (i) Mr. YIN Yong Xiang approximately
to HK$25,540,000 (2023: HK$25,540,000), (ii) Mr. SUN Jia
Qing approximately to HK$25,540,000 (2023: HK$25,540,000),
and (iii) Mr. LIU Lai Gen approximately to HK$6,256,000 (2023:
HK$6,386,000). Mr. YIN Yong Xiang, Mr. SUN Jia Qing and
Mr. LIU Lai Gen hold 8%, 8% and 2% of the equity interests in
NUET(JS) respectively, and they are also the existing directors of
Zhenjiang New Universe, the wholly owned subsidiary of NUET(JS).

As at 31 December 2024, other payables mainly comprised (i)
audit fee HK$1,350,000 (2023: HK$1,350,000), (ii) retentions
and deposits received of approximately HK$16,853,000
(2023: HK$14,318,000), (iii) provision for selling expenses of
approximately HK$4,891,000 (2023: HK$3,697,000), (iv) other tax
payables of approximately HK$1,689,000 (2023: HK$1,854,000),
(v) sewage treatment costs of approximately HK$4,007,000
(2023: HK$1,836,000), and (vi) repairs and maintenance costs of
approximately HK$8,206,000 (2023: HK$4,456,000).

NHE R TNUET(JS VEERER A
BB B 3E ¢ (IDBR K ¥ 5t & B (h 3 1E
#)25,540 000,%75 (ZZE =%
25,540, ooo,%yz) (IVERETEE
1 3K 1B 4925,540, 000,%75 <_ = - =
F : 25,540,000/ 78) (i) K AR
55 4 FE A 3B 496,256,00008 7T (— &
— = : 6,386,000/ JT) ° BRKEELL
£ BREEERBRIBLEED B
BNUET(S)8% ~ 8% M2 %K) A% # - 1
75 BNUET(S)Z & K B 2 &) ST #
FHRIES -

R-ZT-WE+-_A=+—H Hf
FERTRIE E EBE()E%Z £ 1,350,000
BT (ZE==%4 1,350,000/ 7T) -
(B WIRE & KiZ& #16,853,000/8
ﬁ (ZZF = =4 :14,318,000/8 7T) -
(i) 84 & F 2 58 8 494,891 ooo,%yz
— T~ =4 : 3,697,000/ 7T) °
FH\@F&E?%HRTAIE%’]1,689,OOO/E7E(_
T~ =4 : 1,854,000 7T) - }%7J<
BE B K AN 494,007, oooﬁén(f =
£ 11,836,000/ 7T) * M%%
A& 7K #98,206,0007% 7T (_ = ::i :
4,456,000/87T) °©

—P_MEER FHFRAREBEBR AT
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Bt 15 o= M &

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

30.LEASE LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the lease liabilities were payable

30.FHE&E

RB|EBMR BNEEAGET :

as follows:
2024 2023
1 3 —EC=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Within 1 year —FR - 332
31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 1. EHEE
2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Deposits received from customers BEREFZS 4,603 4,272
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

32.DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants were obtained by the subsidiaries, Yancheng
NUHF and Zhenjiang Sinotech to subsidise the construction of their
respective environmental energy saving facility and controlling
facility of sewage discharge in the eco-plating specialised zone. The
grants are recognised as other revenue over the estimated useful

lives of the plant facilities.

32. I IE B FF 4 Bh
MEARENFTFIELS RETERES
ZHBBEM D EARNRREE R FEZE
HESBZRREER
T 2 AL o FBL YR E R &
ZIEEHEREERASEMUA -

B Ko 55 7K BE R BE

HK$'000
FET
Receipt of grants W ER 465 Bb
At 1 January 2023 R-_ZTE-_=F—HF—H 22,099
Exchange adjustments ME W A (589)
Receipt for the year F AU EL 165
At 31 December 2023 and at 1 January 2024 RZE-_=ZF+-_A=+—HxR
—Z-m&E—H—H 21,675
Exchange adjustments PE X 3 5 (709)
At 31 December 2024 R-B-NFE+=A=+—H 20,966
Release of grants N
At 1 January 2023 RZZE-_=%F—HF—H 9,702
Exchange adjustments M 3 A (285)
Release for the year FRNEL 2,017
At 31 December 2023 and at 1 January 2024 R-_E-_=F+-A=+—A8xK
—E-mMFE—-A—H 11,434
Exchange adjustments M 5 B (401)
Release for the year FREH 1,623
At 31 December 2024 R-ZB-WMFE+ZA=+—H 12,656
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 December 2024 R-ZB-WFE+ZA=1+—H 8,310
At 31 December 2023 R-_E-_=F+—-_A=+—H 10,241

—P_MEER FHFRAREBEBR AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO R R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

32.DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS 32. IE & B 46 BY (48)
(continued)

The government grants were analysed for reporting purpose as: BBHERERMS OB
2024 2023
—E-MEF —EZ=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FET
Current liabilities REBAEE 1,595 1,881
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 6,715 8,360
8,310 10,241

33.INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 33 RGEMBEMRABE TN

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Zﬁﬁ it
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement @) MNEEMBIRIAERAZ
of financial position: Eﬂ%ﬁ%lﬁi
2024 2023
—EomE —ETZ=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Provision of PRC Corporate RNEFFBEDEMGREE
Income Tax for current year 8,207 9,073
Provision of PRC Corporate Income @4 E h B> ¥ TS5 &
Tax for prior years 2,790 6,069
Exchange adjustments PE i A% (80) (111)
Income tax refunded FriS At iR 151 156 62
Income tax paid [RENRIECE (8,941) (12,364)
2,132 2,729
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B % R & M

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

33.INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(i)

B.REEHMBMRAKERA
ZEHEH (&

(b)

EHRBELTCHBEEENM

BE:
Movement of each component of deferred tax assets () BEFEAEERBESKG
and liabilities ZEE)
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities REEE T BEREERANER
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial RIEHRE(EE) /ABEZR
position and the movements during the year are as follows: mRERNEBEEHEHF AT :
Effect of
withholding
tax on
Fair value distributable
Fairvalue  adjustment profits of
adjustment of assets  the Group’s  Impairment
on equity  on business PRC loss on trade
investments  combination  subsidiaries  receivables Total
EEIE R
rEEZ
REHEH HEAHBAT
RAaREe HEEELZ ok ERRXZ
AYERE ATERE  RAZRE AEEFS st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER FHEL FHEL FHEL
At 1 January 2023 W-E-=%—-F—H 4,151 15,873 10,376 (10,229) 20,171
Charge to other comprehensive St AEMZE
income g 2,170 - - - 2,170
Release upon distribution WIS 5
of dividends B - - (2,059) = (2,059)
Charge to profit or loss STABRR = (497) (12) 3,994 3,485
Release upon disposal of REE-RHBE LA
a subsidiary e - = (277) 177 (100)
Exchange adjustments RS - - - 212 212
At 31 December 2023 and R-E_=%+_-A=1+—H
1 January 2024 kZZ-_mE-HF—-H 6,321 15,376 8,028 (5,846) 23,879
Charge to other comprehensive 3 A2
income g 860 - - - 860
Release upon distribution N7 kR B
of dividends Bt = = (967) = (967)
Charge to profit or loss ftABR - (498) 468 1,260 1,230
Exchange adjustments 5 AT - - - 171 171
At 31 December 2024 R=B-RmE+=A=+-H 7,181 14,878 1,529 (4,415) 25,173

SPoNEER HFRAESEARAT
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Bt 15 o= M &

31 December 2024

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

33.INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

33. 1

HEMBARRKREA

ZEHEH (&)

(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) EERELERIBEE X
(continued) BE (8
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial (i) ARE MR H
position
2024 2023
—E-gE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Net deferred tax assets recognised R 424 BN R iR
in the consolidated statement of ZIEFER IR
financial position BEEFH (4,415) (5,846)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised 44 BF 75k R & R
in the consolidated statement of ZIEERIE
financial position BREFHE 29,588 29,725
25,173 23,879
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised: () RERZBELERIBEE :
The Group has tax losses arising in the PRC of approximately AEEGEFREEANREEELD
HK$36,172,000 (2023: HK$35,009,000) that will expire in 736,172,000 T (Z T = =%
one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. 35,009,000 7T) + E 0] LUK 88 R
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect RERBEMNER—ZRFRAE
of these losses as it is uncertain that taxable profits will be Ho@mR I ETEEBERAN R
available against which the tax losses can be utilised. AAREHEZENEERE Bt
AAZEEERRRELEHIEELE -
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of AREBGCREREENNEEBED
approximately HK$50,036,000 (2023: HK$50,036,000) for 450,036,000 L (ZE = =F :
offsetting against future taxable profits indefinitely. Deferred 50,036,000/ jr) + A] DA 4 (R AR 3K
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses HARERB @A - MARZES
and it is uncertain that taxable profits will be available against BHERARBEERIBEE AT #
which the tax losses can be utilised. TE LD B EAR TR M AR &
IR 1A ©
(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised: (d)y RERZELERIEARE

At 31 December 2024 and 2023 there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

—E-WF+=—A=1+—H

31 December 2024

34.SHARE CAPITAL 34. g A&
Number of shares Share capital
R EE R
2024 2023 2024 2023
“BRo@mE  —To-f  ZBCINE —TO=F
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti T TET FTET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREBIEBTZERR
Authorised EE
At 1 January and 31 December m—A—BE+=ZA=+—HB 100,000,000 100,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid BRETRAR
At 1 January and 31 December ®H—A—-BEk+-A=1+—-H 3,035,697 3,035,697 30,357 30,357
35.RESERVES 35. % 1B
(@) The Group (a) NEE
Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves are set out AEBRBZEDFBINGEE
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. mEFRK o
(b) The Company (b) &A7A]
Share
Share option Retained
premium reserve profits Total
RGEE  BRERE REER @t
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MizE THET THET FHL T
(note 35 (c)(i))
(W35 (o))
At 1 January 2023 WZEZ=%—-F—H 456,465 1,381 188,065 645,911
Profit for the year ERRT - - 2,765 2,765
Dividend relating to 2022 “Z-_FRA - - (11,536) (11,536)
Equity settled share-based NRAER T ERRN
transactions fEARZ2Z S 39 - 489 - 489
Lapse of share options BREXN - (733) 733 =
At 31 December 2023 and RZBZ=F+ZA=+-Ak
1 January 2024 “E-NE-F—-H 456,465 1,137 180,027 637,629
Profit for the year EREA - - 4170 4,170
Dividend relating to 2023 ZZZ=ERE - - (4,857) (4,857)
Equity settled share-based IR A BRI
transactions EER RS 39 - 353 - 353
Lapse of share options BIRELN - (578) 578 -
At 31 December 2024 R-B-ME+=-A=+-AH 456,465 912 179,918 637,295
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8% R R MR

31 December 2024

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

35.RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

Under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of overseas operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies of
translation of foreign currencies set out in note 2(x) to
the financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments at the end of the reporting period and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies in
note 2(h) to the financial statements.

Capital reserve

On 17 February 2011, the Group's effective interest
in NSIL was increased from 38% to 98%, and NSIL
Group became 98% indirectly owned subsidiaries of
the Company, and the excess of fair value of net assets
acquired over cost of acquisition of 98% equity interest
in NSIL Group of HK$4,185,000 (after deduction of
acquisition related costs) was recognised as deemed
contribution from the transferors, New Universe
Enterprises Limited and another party, in their capacity
as shareholders of the Company and fully credited as
capital reserve in the equity of the Group.

On 7 October 2015, the Group's effective interest in
NSIL was increased from 98% to 100%, and the excess
of carrying value of net assets acquired over cost of
acquisition of the remaining 2% equity interest in NSIL
Group of HK$378,000 (after deduction of acquisition
related costs) was recognised as deemed contribution
from the transferor in his capacity as shareholder of
the Company and fully credited as capital reserve in the
equity of the Group.
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B Bz B &A1 5] BE 5 10 1
ENEEXBEETIH
&7 e

VE 5 1 1
EHFERERREBINES
ZHBEREREL Z A I
EER-FEHEIDREMBR
KM 200 A RBIREINE
ZEET BRI o

REZEIG B
REEHRFBEERENRSH
RFFBEARERAFEZR
AHEEFE EREBEHENY
BmEME2N 2 GFERET
IABRIE ©

B #E
RZE——F=ZA++tH"
AEBEMNSILZ BB EZ B
38%IZ INZE98%  NSILE B
BN T EE R BI8%E &=
ZHBAR  FKEEEF
B2 AFEHBENSILEEI8%
f% % 2 Wy B8 RK 72K 2 4,185,000
7T (F0BR U B8 E 18 48 B A
Rig) B R B EE ANew
Universe Enterprises Limited
EES—T (ARRRIRRZ &
M ZEEHE WEHZA
REBBRARN 2 ERGHRE -

R—ZZE—RE+ALEA
AEBNBNSILZ B #EZFIRK
98% 1% =100% * A U BE &Y
FEAE ZREEBHNSILE
Bt T2%#E 2 WK AN 2
378,000/ 7T (¥ Bk W i =18
HEKAR) EERABEZEA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

35. i #a ()
(0 HHzZHEARAR(H)

35. RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(v)  Share option reserve

Share option reserve comprises the value of the
unexercised share options granted by the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 2(s)(iii) to the
financial statements.

(vi)  Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC,
the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
required to transfer a certain percentage of its profits
after tax to reserve funds. Subject to certain restrictions
set out in the relevant PRC regulations and in the
subsidiary’s articles of association, the reserve funds may
be used either to offset losses, or for capitalisation by
way of paid-up capital.

36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

(v)

(vi)

BIRKER
BRERGEEERBY B R
2 B B2 2(5) i) P 5% 489 1 LA B £
A R & 5T R R A
AARERORETERK
BnEE-

A TE 1
RIBFBEBEER  KAQF
RPBEKZZHBARASE
BMEETHO ZBRBE )G
EfBLrEE -GETEHEH
EREMBEAR ZABER
MAUZHERT  REEITER
]/ 4K SH B 1B S A R AR
RZIABEER -

36. XEHERIE

ALREEREMEA
R|EWHR  FEBRBAZYERT
SIBHE R 2 T A B R E 2 ROk

leases in respect of office premises which fall due as follows: REMERENT
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Within 1 year 15 A 560 560
The Group as lessor AEBEERAEEA

The Group leases out certain of its factory buildings under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally provides for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

AEERBREHERHEERSETT
BAE HEGRK-—BRAERBEERKD
MERBERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 —T-UF+-A=+—H
36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(continued)
The Group as lessor (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable under the non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

36.

REHExE (&)

AEBEERLAEA(E)
RBERK AEBTIREEERE
AT M RBE BB E T T -

2024 2023

—E2-EF —T=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FHEIT

Within 1 year —FR 28,166 28,766
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFNRN 23,559 23,665
After 2 years but within 3 years MFBE=FN 19,552 18,921
After 3 years but within 4 years —F®ENFA 12,323 15,313
After 4 years but within 5 years MEBBRFA 4,038 8,263
After 5 years fF & 2,439 5,492
90,077 100,420

37.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
capital commitments:

37.

B AR

RIS ER - AEE Y ARRENT

2024 2023
—E-EF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHEIT

Contracted but not provided for: BETHERBE -

— Capital expenditure in respect of —BEEME  BMERRHEZ

property, plant and equipment B R HE 19,198 44,084

— Capital contribution payable to — R TRAERE
the equity investment & 15,915 15,976

38.EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 38. EERIAEF
(a) Defined contribution retirement plans (a) TEMFGRIRGTE

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
pension schemes operated by the PRC government. The Group
is required to make contributions to the Schemes at certain
percentage of the eligible employee’s salaries. The local
government authorities are responsible for the entire pension
obligation payable to the retired employees.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38.EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(continued)

(a)

Defined contribution retirement plans
(continued)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (2023: HK$30,000).
Contributions to the plan vest immediately. There are no
forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group to
reduce the existing level of contributions.

Long service payment obligation

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the
Group has the obligation to pay long service payment (“LSP")
to qualifying employees in Hong Kong upon retirement,
subject to a minimum of 5 years’ employment period, based
on the formula of “last monthly wages (before termination
of employment) x 2/3 x years of service”. Last monthly wage
is capped at HK$22,500 while the amount of long service
payment shall not exceed HK$390,000. This obligation is
accounted for as a post-employment defined benefit plan. The
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance permits the
withdrawal of accrued benefits derived from an employer’s
MPF contributions for the purpose of offsetting LSP payable
to an employee under the Employment Ordinance. The LSP
obligation, if any, is presented on a net basis.

The Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the
“Amendment Ordinance”) was gazetted in June 2022 and
will take effect on 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Under
the Amended Ordinance, accrued benefits derived from an
employer’s mandatory MPF contributions after the Transition
Date can only be applied to offset the pre-Transition Date LSP
obligation but no longer eligible to offset the post-Transition
Date LSP obligation. Furthermore, the LSP obligation before
the Transition Date will be calculated based on the last
monthly wages immediately preceding the Transition Date.

The Group has determined that the Amendment Ordinance
has no material impact on the Group’s LSP liability with
respect to employees.

31 December 2024

B % R ok M ORE

—E-WF+=—A=1+—H

38.EERKET ()

(a)

EBRHFURIRET S ()

AEBERBEERBHEMLE —
Rt EREEEE ([REE
) -mEetE N RABILE
AAEERZERHEFTERMAKE -
RiRESE  BEREREAS
PR EB B BB A Z5%M %5t &l
ERHR MABEBRARZREA
30,000/ T (=& = =4 : 30,000
B IT) o Maat &R Z HKTIA
KRB - AREALLE A HBER
KRB HFOKF 2 BORMAPEK

RERBEEE

RIEEERBGKN  AEBEET
HEBARERKRE (AEEEHZDS
F 2 RE) RRIKE XA R AR
e ((RERBK2]) sTE22K
BlxEAGzEH e KIEEAR)
X2B3XRIEFH] - ZBE 2B AH
© FPRI1%22,5008 LAt E MK
fR7% & 2 & % A~ 13 #15390,000
BT I NEXTRBBRETE
BARGT B ETSTER - GaslM
AESFTEHELD A FIREER
BRESEHRZRERAERE  UY
SFIRBEBBGOETESNREEZ
EHRES - EHRBEET (0
B)ALUFREYIR -

(ZEZZFEMHERRIKTEED
(EEZH) (BE]) &/ (BT 1§
BIRZEZ—FNATEBEERBER
—E-_hAFRA—B(BEEBHD
ER o BIBZIEET RO - BEEB
HAHE 2B MR ESERE
A RERAMEZ  ERERRY
RBE R BRI s RERBEEE
MABEFEERNE T EEBHE
ZERBRBESEMT I BER
Halc kARG eEEEREER
HERHR 2 &RE—EANESER
AEEE -

AEBECHEZETGRILEEAN
FEAKEHEEZRMREEE
£ -
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31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

39.SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s non-executive directors, including independent
non-executive directors, employees of the Group, consultants of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers
of the Group, the Company’s shareholders and any non-controlling
shareholders of the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became
effective on 5 May 2015 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
on the adoption date. The maximum number of shares issuable
under the Scheme to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value, based on
the closing price of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of
HK$5 million, within 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of grant, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors,
commence after a vesting period and ends on a date which is not
later than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price of share option is determinable by the Directors,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotation sheets on the date of the offer of the share options; (ii)
the average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares on the date of offer. Share options
do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at the
shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme:

B % R ok M ORE

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

39. B HERHE (48)

BREZTEEBHESTET  BTF
ERTIEREE : RLBRERBAR
ABRNRBIAERRESE LMR W
WmE: (ARABROREERR L BRE
HHAAEXZAAERIMARES L
PR 2 P U & ¢ (i) AN 2 BB D 2%
BLHRHsEHE - BRELIEETHS
AZEBRBEIRBERREG LIREZHER -

REBZAAE R ATEZBRENT

2024 2023
—E-ME “E-CF

Weighted Weighted
average  Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options

mEFH METH
TEE BREZE 1128 BREHE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 BT T4
Outstanding at 1 January W—A—AHKENE 0.293 15,656 0.281 29,059
Lapsed during the year FREH 0.272 6,339 0.250 9,640
Cancelled during the year FREREHE = = 0.308 3,763
Outstanding at 31 December (note) RTZA=+—BHRETE W7 0.308 9,317 0.293 15,656
Vested during the year FAGE - - 0.308 9,317
Exercisable at the end of the period AEERITE 0.308 9,317 0.293 15,656
Note: The number of shares of the Company that may be issued in Bt -5£9,317,00010 (& — = &

respect of 9,317,000 (2023: 15,656,000) outstanding options are
9,317,000 (2023: 15,656,000) shares, representing approximately
0.31% (2023: 0.52%) of the issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2024.

No share options were exercised during the year. The options
outstanding at 31 December 2024 had a weighted average exercise
price of HK$0.308 (2023: HK$0.293) per share and remaining
contractual period of 0.59 years (2023: 0.59 years to 1.59 years).

15,656,00017 ) 1) A % 17 {5 2 B8 A% 4
HE ARFAREBITIRNDEBE A
9,317,0000% (—Z=& = =4F : 15,656,000
i) HEARRARBE_T-_ME+—
A=+—HBIEE&TRHH0.31% (=
T =45 :052%) °

MEERERFREAE R0
FE+-_A=+ B HARITEEREZ M
B ITEEAESR3ETL(ZE=_=
F 02938 7L) - Ftre HFEHA059F
TE =4 :(059FF159%) -
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31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

39.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted on 18 January 2022,
15 January 2021 and 15 January 2020 was approximately
HK$1,092,000, HK$578,000 and HK$836,000 respectively, of which
the Group recognised total share option expense of HK$353,000
(2023: HK$489,000) charged to profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2024.

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted
is measured with reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of share options is measured
based on binomial option pricing model by the independent firm of
professional valuer, Colliers International, taking into account the
terms and condition upon which the options were granted during
the year. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

o. B ER & ()

RZEZZF—A+NB -ZT=—%F
—At+HRAR-ZZTE-ZEF—A+EBE
HRERERN A FED R4 41,092,000
7 7T~ 578,000/ JT 836,000/ jT + H
PARAEBEREBEE_Z_NF+ = A
T+ RALFERERERESTHAX
353,000/ 7T (Z & = = & : 489,000/
L) WEEEETF R -

MBMERHBERERNRERE 22 FE
D2EERLBEREZAFEFE B
Bz A FEZEFIRABLEEMGE
fim W BEIBRARE —EA PR EERNG
B WEBRFAT R GRRRARSE
TRIETAERNEXNEAE:

Date of grant

B BH

18 January

2022

—A+NH

Fair value at measurement date STEHBAYE HK$0.1017%& 7T
Share price at grant date BHBERODER HK$0.305/8 7T
Exercise price TEE HK$0.3087% 7T
Expected volatility TEHRE B % 51.845%
Expected life of options TE T A F AR 3.54 yearstF
Expected dividend yield TBHEAIN B X 2.36%
Risk-free interest rate 42 3 B FI| R 1.18%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated
based on the weighted average remaining life of the share options),
adjusted by any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share option granted.
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31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 39.BEBR#EEtE] (48)

No options was granted during the year ended 31 December 2024. RBEZT-_MF+_A=+—HLF

The terms and conditions of the options granted and outstanding as ERERLBRE R_T_MFE+=

at 31 December 2024 are as follows: A=+—R EBERBRRTEEREZ
BRI

Number of shares
to be issued upon
exercise in full of

the options granted  Vesting conditions Contractual life of options
REBREE2ETE
BEFRITROBE  BEGY BRENSHED

Options granted 9,317,000 shares vested The Options granted shall be vested upon Subject to the Options having been
to employees achievement of certain vesting conditions (the vested, the Options granted
on 18 January 2022 "2022 Vesting Conditions") as specified in the are exercisable from the date
and vest to offer letter (the "Offer Letter”) of each respective of publication of the annual
employees: Grantee. If the 2022 Vesting Conditions applicable results of the Company for the

to the relevant Grantee are not achieved, the year ended 31 December 2024
unvested Options granted to such Grantee shall be (the "2024 Results Date") to
cancelled as specified in the Offer Letter. the earlier of (i) the date on
which such Options lapses in
The Options shall vest in the proportions to be accordance with the terms of the
determined according to each particular Offer letter Share Option Scheme; or (i) the
on the date the 2022 Vesting Conditions applicable 90th business day after the 2024
to the relevant Grantee are achieved. Results Date.

RZZZZF—-F  9317,000EHE FIREERESRERBARANENR(E2Om]) GFEREGRE MEOER
TABETR WETAEETHBIEM (1202288 Gi]) 2R BARHEARAHE_Z
EHEBEEZ BE - WERARAEARAN202258 G Rz “METZA=T-HIEE
Bl - B RTAEBARANREBBRESZEN AR MEEXBEER(Z2-N

H)RRTE T LASTEH - FEERHEAE -BEE

ATRB(ABRERE)

BRESRERRBBEARAN02EB KT ERE (VB BB RIBEBES 8110

BRRBERNRETNLIGE - EARRBBE : Ki) =T
FRERMRFOEEXA -

—P_MEER FHFRAREBEBR AT

257



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

0. EXFRBALR S

TRANSACTIONS

(a) List of related parties (a) BEBIALT 2R
For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the REZ-_Z_NER-_FT-_=F
Directors are of the view that the following entities and +TZA=+—HIFE FERE

persons are related parties to the Group:

Name of the related party
BEAER

Sun Ngai International Investment Limited
("Sun Ngai”)
MBREREBRAR ([FHE])

Zhenjiang Xin Qu
BT

Xinyu Rongkai

T

L—.E

(b) Transactions with related parties

TIRBRAREEZGRAEB AL

Relationship
22RES

The Company’s Director, Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling are
also directors of Sun Ngai.

ARBEERFTAERKRNIRLEINAHEZES -

An associate of the Group.
RNEE 7B E R A

A joint venture of the Group, of which the Company, being one of
the two joint venturers, holds an indirectly owned equity interest of
65% and shares joint control of the joint venture.
REFBzEERE ARIHEAMEEE T2 —  HEHEBHEE5%
BEWHAZEZEEDE T HFIERE -

(b) BEBERBALZRS

2024 2023
—E-mEF —T=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Rental expenses vizkeal -
- Sun Ngai —srEt 960 960
Charges on hazardous waste EREYEEEEHE
landfill disposal
— Zhenjiang Xin Qu — TR 4,834 7,118
Charges on office equipment WMAEREBE
— Xinyu Rongkai — iRy 23 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(©)

(d)

Balances with related parties

B % R ok M ORE

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

40.EXEBHBALTR S (E)

() BABFEAM AL &R
Maximum outstanding
balance during the year ended

BEUTFERSRHESRR

2024 2023 2024 2023
—BRD@mE T ZBED@E CTCO=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR THT
Accounts payable for charges on 8 — 5B & 3 7] 5 B A 4
hazardous waste landfill disposal EREMEEEENR 2
in relation to an associate FE1TBR K
- Zhenjiang Xin Qu ~BIHE 799 934 - -
Other receivables Hith YA
- Xinyu Rongkai —HTEY 28,213 13,435 28,213 13,435
Loan to a joint venture ERT-REELE
— Xinyu Rongkai - BT 10,720 11,083 11,083 11,083

Provision of guarantees to a related party

On 25 September 2020, the Company and the joint venturer, as
the joint guarantors, entered into the guarantee agreement with
a bank in the PRC to jointly guarantee the repayment obligations
of Xinyu Rongkai (a 65% indirectly owned joint venture of the
Company) in relation to the bank loan facilities in a total amount
of RMB120,000,000 (approximately HK$127,680,000) and the
guarantee is effective until 31 December 2027, for the purpose
of financing the construction of the integrated hazardous waste
treatment project undertaken by Xinyu Rongkai in Liuzhou,
Guangxi Province, the PRC.

On 7 December 2022, the Company as the guarantor, entered
into the guarantee agreement with another bank in the PRC
to guarantee the repayment obligations (in the proportion of
65% interests in Xinyu Rongkai) amounted to RMB5,850,000
(approximately HK$6,224,000) in relation to the short term
bank loan being granted to Xinyu Rongkai with a total
amount of RMB9,000,000 (approximately HK$9,576,000)
for its purpose of general working capital in the PRC and
the guarantee has been extended to 4 December 2027. The
guaranteed bank borrowing of RMB9,000,000 had been fully
settled on 4 December 2024.

(d) [\1A B A IR EER
RZFZFFNAA=-THAB A2
AHEAEET (EAARERA) HE
FE—RBTEIERDE AR
RERTFLI (AR BHERA
5% ALY MBELEAARK
120,000,0007T (49127,680,000/% 7T)
ZIRITERRME  ZERBRE=ZS
—t+tH&+=-A=+—RH BEMAM[H
T LRI R B E M
ZIEREMGRARERGRESS -

RZZE-_=—F+=-AtAH ARx7A
EAERAEPES —RIBITHRE]
ERpE ATTFTRINERTE
HIE 4% A R ¥9,000,0007T (49
9,576,000 7T) MERER (EHE
FTFERY 5% 2 L h) IR AR
#55,850,0007T (#96,224,000/% JT) &)
ER BERAETFRIETRHANL
H—REEES  ZEFRARHET
E-E-+&F+=FAMA - FERA
R #9,000,0007T A SRITIEKE R =
T_NFE+_ANBEHEE -

—P_MEER FHFRAREBEBR AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

Provision of guarantees to a related party
(continued)

The guarantees disclosed above were not recorded at fair
value, as in the opinion of the management, the difference in
the interest rates, by comparing the actual rate charged by the
bank with this guarantee made available, with the estimated
rate that the bank would have charged had the guarantee not
been available, is not material.

The banking facilities of Xinyu Rongkai guaranteed by
the Company amounting to 65% of RMB129,000,000,
(approximately HK$137,256,000) (2023: RMB129,000,000,
approximately HK$141,900,000) of which RMB125,100,000
(approximately HK$133,106,000) (2023: RMB125,100,000,
approximately HK$137,610,000) was utilised, and
loan of approximately RMB47,048,000 (approximately
HK$50,059,000) (2023: RMB63,148,000, approximately
HK$69,462,000) were outstanding as at 31 December 2024,
which is repayable on 21 June 2025 and bearing interest at
4.25% (2023: ranging from 4.35% to 6.00%) per annum.

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group
and the Company, including amounts paid to the Directors
of the Company as disclosed in note 10 and certain of the
highest paid individual as disclosed in note 11, is presented as
follows:

40.EXRBHBALR S

(d)

(HE)

[ A BE B A IR E R (A8)

pu

BEENERLERATFEARE
HAERERR BBLLBRTAERHK
ZERNBRT BRI = &
RITEL | HEROBER T
WERH A R 7 ) Z 2K -

NABIFTEREF65% S BRI FE
glIR1TREE A A R %129,000,0007T
(#9137,256,000/ 70) (Z T = =4 :
A R #129,000,0007T (£7141,900,000
BL)) EPREBAEARE
125,100,0007T (49133,106,000/% 7T)
(ZE2==%F: AE%usmooooE
(#9137,610,000/7L)) » A =ZZF =Y
F+-_AZ+—HB XEEEIZYH
A R #47,048,0007T (#750,059,0005%
x)(fg:—ﬁ /\Em%smsooo
7C (4969,462,000/8 L)) BN =

:ﬂéﬁ/\ﬂ —t+—HBE I[?;z¢ﬂ
KA 25% (ZE_=F : N F435%F

6.00%) 5T 8. °

FEEBEEALTZME
AEBEARAETEEERBALZ
@Mi (BIEM 10 BB 2 BN F A&
NEEEZREMMFNBEEZER
FETEHFRENE)&INOT

2024 2023

—E-E —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Salaries and other benefits e kHEMEF 10,924 12,228

Discretionary bonuses E’] IBIEAT 655 1,354

Contributions to retirement RIKTE A ET B

schemes 1,157 1,420
Equity-settled share-based payment  LARE AN HE %5 51 F 42 B4 1

expenses AR ANREX 353 489

13,089 15,491
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY M EZEREEszZeMIEA

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities for each AEBRGEHASEeRIAZSH

category of the Group’s financial instruments as at the end of the EERBGEREAELT
reporting period are as follows:
2024 2023
—E-ME =
HK$000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Financial assets at amortised cost DSt EZERMEE
Trade and bills receivables FEW R R E 67,973 92,617
Other receivables H b fE Y 5K I8 327 402
Amount due from a joint venture E—KREEEERK 28,213 13,435
Consideration receivable from disposal of HE—FKWBARZ
a subsidiary FEU R AB 10,321 10,670
Pledged bank deposits R B RITIER 4,304 731
Cash and cash equivalents ReERERRELIAE 220,823 186,365
Financial assets at fair value through ZBHEMEEWNREAFEAR
other comprehensive income ZEMEE
Equity investments at fair value FREMEERRIEAFEAR
through other comprehensive income =
(non-recycling) (A &eE) 98,400 81,500
Total financial assets TREERLR 430,361 385,720
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHALTEZ
kA=K
Bank borrowings RITEE 44,752 44,000
Trade and bills payables FE R R R I& 38,613 59,392
Accrued liabilities and other payables FE&T B 15 I H fth FE A 5/ I8 155,167 137,374
Lease liabilities HEBE = 332
Total financial liabilities THaERE 238,532 241,098

TRITANFEREERGAVBRERS
notes to the financial statements. MIaE o

Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in the respective

—P_MEER FHFRAREBEBR AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

42.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

42. sMITRAZ

—E-mNE ZZ-=F

A TE AR

BAMEEESBMERESY AT EM
EEN AREZEBMIAZEEER
AFENT :

Carrying amount Fair value
BEE AV E
2024 2023 2024 2023

—E-_QmE ZZ-=F

Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ks TER TER FET THT
Financial assets at fair ERHME2EKS
value through other BAFEAEZ
comprehensive income SREE
Equity investments at fair value BB 2 E K&
through other comprehensive A TEAE Y
income (non-recycling) AR E (a8l E) 21 98,400 81,500 98,400 81,500

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, financial assets included
in refundable deposits and other receivables, contract assets,
trade payables, financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities
and other payables, deposits received from customers, contract
liabilities, amounts due from/to subsidiaries approximately to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturity of these
instruments. The Directors consider the carrying amounts of the
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortised cost of the Group is determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices from observable markets transactions.

The fair values of non-current portion of interest-bearing bank
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using rates currently available for the instruments with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings
and other borrowings as at 31 December 2024 was assessed to be
insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of unlisted equity investments in plastic materials
dyeing have been estimated based on assumption that are not
supported by observable market prices or rates. The valuation
requires the Directors of the Company to make estimates using
the enterprise value to earnings before interest and tax ratio of
comparable listed companies adjusted for discount on lack of
marketability. The Directors believe that the estimated fair value
resulting from the valuation methodology, which are recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
changes in fair values, which are recorded in other comprehensive
income, are reasonable and they were appropriate values at the end
of the reporting period.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period on recurring basis, which categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities at the measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market date are available.

B % R ok M ORE

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

R2.sgMIREZAFEFFE

(4&)
REPHRACHNFLTRARE ZRF
BNERYEERAFMSERIA X
XFFZBRMAE - ETHER AR A
EEFERAUELBR LT ARZEE
EELE B BA &N XM HAE
TEEHRZTSRBUEZ T RFE -
EEME/RENEMERZAEHATE
(BRI AGE A HRRAK) RAFEZH
MEy (RIARMEz2AKER) BEBA
2 UARREHNRKEE 2EE-

AFERR
TRINNAFERREPRREFER
EFBEZEMIAZAFE FHRZHE
TEREREAMBHRELASIZRA
FEFEMATCZ=ZEARAFEER -~
FEFAEFRAZERIZ2RUTHE
BAMABEZAIBEREREERE
& E

- B-EHE:ERE-EHEHE
ATE BRHEEDAACREA
ERAFEIRTS 2 AEALE
B o

- FELEE-ERF_EHETE
NFEBIRENEE 2RI
BRBINZHE  URTEATH
ERGICEZHE - TABER
Az BEEARBRBOTISEUE -

—P_MEER FHFRAREBEBR AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO R R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

42.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF 2. cMIAEZATFEFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (48)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEERER(E)
- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant - F-ERE FRATUERFIZ
unobservable inputs. EZHBHEATFE-
2024 2023
—EomE TR
Fair value Fair value
at31 at 31
December December
2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
iy B®
“ECQE It ey
t=A T4
Sr=FZ =+-H2

AYE %-E % %=F L¥E 2B FZE  %-F
Note  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ik TEn Tz Tz  TEx Tz TEr TR TEX

Unlisted equity investments at fair value #@E 42 ENEERATFE
through other comprehensive income A8 2 3 FiiRAiR A

(non- recycling) (ReglH) 21 98,400 - - 98,400 81,500 - - 81,500
During the year ended 31 December 2024, there were no transfers REBEE_Z_NF+_A=+—HI*F
between level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3 (2023: E - UERFE-—ERE_E 2BEE-
Nil). The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of FEANELE=ZB(ZT_=F: &) -
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which AEEBZHREAREBELENREHAR
they occur. HRAFEEHRENER -

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements: FE=ERTEFECER:
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Key data applied
HERE EXTHBEAGAZE TZERAYE
2024 2023

—E-ME —T-=F

Unlisted equity investments in plastic Market comparable Discount for lack of
materials dyeing companies marketability 15.05% 15.94%
BHABZ mHAELRAA Rz mERBL
FEmRARE g
EV/EBIT ratio 18.50 16.65
EV/EBITEL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair value measurement is negatively correlated to the
discount for lack of marketability. As at 31 December 2024, it was
estimated that with all other variables held constant, a decrease/
increase in discount for lack of marketability by 5% would have
increased/decreased the Group’s other comprehensive income by
HK$5,800,000 (2023: HK$4,900,000).

B % R ok M ORE

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

R.egMIRZAFERE

(#8)
DT EER (E)

AFEFEERRZTE RSB UITNER
Be-RN_ZE_MF+_A=+—H " 14
AREHMEERBTE  RZMER
BRI %E S AERm 2 &
b2 Y58 A0, 45,800,000 7T (=
T~ =4 : 4,900,000/ 7T) °

The movements during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair value FRNE-ERAVFEFEZ2EBKLEHNT
measurements are follows:
2024 2023
—EC_NE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Unlisted equity investments: FLTREARE :
At 1 January Rn—AHA—H 81,500 70,300
Net unrealised profit in fair value R E AL 2 S TR
recognised in other comprehensive NTE 2 RE R % FF5E
income 16,900 11,200
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H~ 98,400 81,500

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The main risk arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage
these risks are described below.

(@) Foreign currency risk

Most of the Group's assets and liabilities are denominated
in HK$ or RMB, which are same as the functional currencies
of the relevant group entities. The Group undertakes certain
transactions denominated in foreign currencies, and hence
exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. The Group
does not expect any significant exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuations and shall use derivative contracts to hedge against
its exposure to currency risk only when it is required. The
Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring
the movement of the foreign currency rate.

43 B EREE BT RER

KEAEESBRTAZIEAKRAINE
Bk FIRE R - = 8RR RS MR
e ALEBEEYHZERR KAEH
ERZERBIUBRBREERRRE
EEMMAT -

(a) SMER R
AEBRBPEERABTINAE
THEARKEE  EEEEEER
BB B AKEETET
ASNESHEZ X S - B i 5| BUE %
ERpEER  AKELTHEF;E
EBREANMERBER  RRAER
FERIEATEANEMEER
B o N6 H DA B ) BE 4 SN [ R
BRERIE AR -
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B %% ok MY R

31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Interest rate risk

Since the interest-bearing borrowings have fixed interest rates,
there was no significant interest rate risk as at the end of the

reporting period.

(c) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade receivables, other receivables contract assets and loan
to a joint venture. The Group's exposure to credit risk arising
from cash and cash equivalents and bills receivables is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial institutions
for which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

Trade and lease receivables

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
in industries or countries in which the customers operate.
Significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual customers.
At the end of the reporting period 3.8% (2023: 1.3%) and
10.4% (2023: 5.6%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest

customers respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade and lease
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is

calculated using a provision matrix.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R & M

31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT A3. B EREE BT RBUR
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued) (%48)
(c) Credit risk (continued) (o =ERR (&)
ECL rates are based on actual loss experience over the past EHEEBEBEDNERBACSF
3 years, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, HNEREELR BEBAEER
and an assessment of both the current and forecast of general HHETHE) RRERFIBERE
economic conditions at the end of the reporting period over Bz 5 HACR Y B AT R R R BB R A
the expected lives of the receivables. At 31 December 2024, BIER e T _MFE+_A
lifetime ECL of trade and lease receivables in the amount of =+—H AEBEDFIREKER
HK$17,669,000 (2023: HK$23,396,000) was provided as REVEEREZ 2 HAHEER
amount of impairment measured under the ECL model. BB 17,669,000 T (Z 2 ==

£ 123,396,000/ 7T) - tEAIRIETE
HEERAFEZRESSE -

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure AT &S BEBRAREERETER
on the Group’s trade and lease receivables using a provision SEENERRERBEREBZE
matrix: ERBRAEER

As at 31 December 2024 R=ZB-WmFE+=A=+—H

Trade and lease receivables

EWER R ELEERE
Days past due
BHAY
More than More than
30 but 120 but
Not yet due Less than less than less than More than
or current 30 days 120 days 360 days 360 days Total
%1308 %MM20A
REBHHNE HH308  BHR1208  BHR3608 %1360 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THERL TER TET TET
Expected credit loss rate ~ EEIEEFEXR 5.85% 7.02% 12.37% 28.82% 63.44% 20.63%
Gross carrying amount FRgAE 48,042 7,002 1,116 3,190 19,692 85,642
Loss allowance BRAR 2,811 492 954 919 12,493 17,669
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ¥R ok MY AE
31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H
43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT A3. M BRKBEE BERBKR
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued) (#8)
(c) Credit risk (continued) (o0 =ERR (&)
As at 31 December 2023 R-ZZE-_=ZF+=-A=+—H

Trade and lease receivables
IR R BN EFE

Days past due
aHAY
More than More than
30 but 120 but
Not yet due Less than less than less than More than

or current 30 days 120 days 360 days 360 days Total

%1308 %1208
BT SH308  BARI1208  BHR360A %3608 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAER T T T TEL TER
Expected credit loss rate ~ BEEEFER 3.89% 7.86% 23.44% 25.13% 76.93% 20.17%
Gross carrying amount ERAaE 69,610 11,606 8,235 4,993 21,569 116,013
Loss allowance BiRER 2,705 913 1,930 1,255 16,593 23,39

Movement in the credit loss allowance account in respect of
trade and lease receivables during the reporting period is as

EURESR R EREERBZEEE
BERESENREFANZEEHIT

follows:
2024 2023
—E-omEF —E-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHEIT
At 1 January ®—A—H 23,396 41,388
Impairment loss recognised: EERZMEEE
— continuing operations —SREREEY 2,174 5,100
— discontinued operation — BRI EER - =
Impairment loss reversed: L ZREERE :
— continuing operations —REREEY (7,183) (20,772)
— discontinued operation —ERIEREER - (1,162)
(5,009) (16,834)
Amount written off 1 8H & 28 (36) (289)
Exchange adjustments PE W 3% (682) (869)
At 31 December R+=HA=+—H 17,669 23,396

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade and lease receivables contributed to the
decrease in the loss allowance:

& Ui BR R e 8 W A B SRR R AR (B
ZATERESHEHERBEFRD

- decrease in amounts past due more than 360 -
days resulted in a decrease in loss allowance of
HK$4,100,000 (2023: HK$17,853,000).

BHBBE360E 2L B E
B B EE R 24,100,000
T (ZZE = =4 17,853,000/
T e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(©)

Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk arising from loan to a joint venture

The Group regularly monitors the business performance
of the joint venture. The Group's credit risk in this balance
is mitigated through the value of the assets held by the
joint venture and the power to jointly control the relevant
activities of the entity. For the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Group assessed the ECL for loan to a joint venture is
insignificant and thus no credit loss allowance is recognised.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity through maintaining a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank borrowings, banking facilities, and other
interest-bearing borrowings. In management of the liquidity
risk, the Group maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
considered adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation
in cash flows. The Group regularly monitors its liquidity
requirements and its compliance of financial covenants, and
ensures sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer terms. As at 31
December 2024, the Group did not have any available secured
banking facilities not yet drawn down and the unsecured
banking facilities not yet drawn down by the Group were
approximately HK$51,920,000 (2023: HK$153,300,000).

Liquidity needs are monitored on a day-to-day basis.
Long-term liquidity needs for a 360-day lookout period are
identified monthly. Funding for long-term liquidity needs
will be considered when there is any potential investment
identified. For term loans subject to repayment on demand
clauses which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion,
the following table shows the cash outflow based on the
contractual repayment schedule and, separately, the impact of
the timing of the cash outflows if the lenders were to invoke
their unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect.

31 December 2024

B % R ok M ORE

—E-WF+=—A=1+—H

A3 MBHEREEERRER
(%)

(©)

Bt

EERR (&)

G EPEBENTELZ 5EER
REBETHETALELEZERK
R - AEBMBBEECEMBEL
BEEBELRERZHZEECRABE
BHrENRBEZESR 2 EER
R o BET-_MFF+_A=1+—
HEFE ASEFEREGEDE
ERCzEBEEBELIIER A
L EEREEBERSE -

il

\
/

i B L B
REEFZEBFARITEE  RiTH
BERHEMFEEE CESBAHR
FEEEE N s BERTE WA
EEHEBSARBE - EEEER
HEBE  AEERBEEERA
BEKINBESEERBEEEEMN
BEAAEB 2 EEME RBESR
CRBEDHTE - NEETHE
RERGUESRKRETEREZLY
Bh THEREARReHFERE
TEMERBESEEES KRR
MERHERBRSEZ R - R
E-NME+-A=+—H A&£EH
7 4 A ] 14 R SR BN 2 5 B IR AR
TRLE RN & [ i R 1R B2 4K 1
R 1780 & #951,920,0008 T (==
— =% : 153,300,000 T) °

mEMERER  WEASAER
360RBEHRHME 2 RREME ©
BEERNINEMEBLRER  BEE
REHARDMERRKEE BERAE
BHTEHEZR  WeERITRIEA
EREREEERNGR  TRE
P T IREBEE N B REEMIE SR
RnE R (EAEGHRER) ZK
SENESR - E 5 Rl ¥ IR & i R

By 488
of-2- 0

—P_MEER FHFRAREBEBR AT

269



NOTES TO THE;FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br & ¥R & M &

31 December 2024 —Z-UFE+-F=+—H

43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT A3 EREEBERBKR
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued) (#8)

(d) Liquidity risk (continued) Bt
TREARBENRARTLMA

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period for the BEER NEHEEA ZFFE - HiRE
Group's financial liabilities, which are based on contractual SRARFIRE @0 L AREE AT
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the Group can EXRERCHFHBARESE

be required to pay:

As at 31 December 2024
BR=B-ME+=A=t-H

Total
Carrying undiscounted  Less than 1to3 3 months 1to  More than
amount cash flows 1 month months  to 1year 5 years 5 years
KRBRE
REE nELAE  DHMER 12318 3ERZE1E 125% BB5F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART TERT TERT TR TR TR TR
Financial liabilities ~ $@MAfH
Bank borrowings BOEE
- at fixed rates - REEHE 44,752 45,661 - 5,351 40,310 - -
Trade and bills payables [EFEE 2 RE 38,613 38,613 16,930 9,644 12,039 = -
Accrued liabilities and ~ JEEF & E R A
other payables s 155,167 155,167 26,448 4,291 124,428 = =
238,532 239,441 43,378 19,286 176,777 - -
As at 31 December 2023
R-ZF-_=F+-A=t-H
Total
Carrying  undiscounted Less than 1103 3 months Tto  Morethan
amount cash flows 1 month months to 1 year 5 years 5 years
KRR E
REE nERE  SMERA 123@A  3EAZIE 1255 HB5F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TR ThER TR TR TR TR
Financial liabilities ~ £®E&fE
Bank borrowings REE
- at fixed rates —RETH = 44,000 45,085 = = 45,085 = =
Trade and bills payables ERERHRER 59,392 59,392 38,207 8,444 12,741 = =
Accrued liabilities and ~ JExtEEREM
other payables JERFRIE 137,374 137,374 26,685 1,169 109,520 = =
Lease liabilities HEAE 332 34 28 57 256 - -
241,098 242,192 64,920 9,670 167,602 - -
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31 December 2024 —Z=PF+=-A=+—H

43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT A3 FEREEBERBKR
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued) (#8)

(e) Capital management (e) BEAER
The Group's capital management objectives are: REBZEREEBEZNT :

(i)  to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern;

(i) to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders;

(iii)  to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital;

(iv)  to support the Group's sustainable growth; and

(v)  to provide capital for the purpose of potential mergers
and acquisitions.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain and adjust the capital structure, the Group will adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, issue new shares, buy
back its shares, issue new debts or redeem existing debts.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements.

There was no change in the objectives, policies or process for
managing the capital during the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023.
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31 December 2024 —Z-F+_-A=+—H

43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT A3.MHEREE BT RER
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued) (48)
(e) Capital management (continued) (e) BAEIE (&)
The Group monitors its capital using gearing ratio. The Group REERFRAEABBLRETHE
expects to maintain its gearing ratio at less than 50%. The Ko REBEBERBHFSHERGELR
gearing ratios as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 were as EHES0% AN - R T _HFE R
follows: EC=FT_A=T—RAZEESA
BELLEMT
2024 2023
—E-ME —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Current liabilities REBAE
Bank borrowings RITHE 44,752 44,000
Lease liabilities HEAE - 332
Total interest-bearing debts AFEEKAR 44,752 44,332
Total equity R A 964,450 1,013,359
Gearing ratio EESEHLER 4.6% 4.4%
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31 December 2024 —Z-MMF+—-HA=+—H

44 . STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

44, 75 B B 75 7R I R 3R

2024 2023
—E-NF —ET-=

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 F#& T FET

Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RBRAR Z e 626,651 618,933

Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS 17,890 28,690
Prepayments TET IR 455 511
Cash and cash equivalents HekERIEEEHE 23,327 20,633
41,672 49,834
Current liabilities REBaE

Accrued liabilities and other payables FE&T & & & H fib f& {5018 671 781
671 781
Net current assets RBEEFE 41,001 49,053
Total assets wEE 668,323 668,767
Total assets less current liabilities REERAEBERS 667,652 667,986
Total liabilities weE 671 781
Net assets EEFE 667,652 667,986

Capital and reserves BEXR#EE
Share capital B& X 34 30,357 30,357
Reserves i 35 637,295 637,629
Total equity R 4EEE 667,652 667,986

SPoNEER HFRAESEARAT
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31 December 2024

—EZNF+=—A=1+—H

45. CONTINGENCIES

(a)

Legal contingencies

Legal proceedings were in process against NUET(JS), an 82%
indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in
Hong Kong. Two existing shareholders (each a “Plaintiff”,
Mr. YIN Yong Xiang and Mr. SUN Jia Qing, both are the
existing directors of Zhenjiang New Universe and each
holding 8% of the issued share capital of NUET(JS)) actioned
separately against NUET(JS) and alleged that NUET(JS)
should immediately pay each Plaintiff accrued and unpaid
dividends of approximately HK$26,579,000 (approximately
RMB22,478,000) and interest thereon in the amount of
approximately RMB4,058,000 (the “Actions”). In connection
with the Actions, Jiangsu Zhenjiang Intermediate People’s
Court (the “Court”) had approved each of the Plaintiffs’
applications to grant each of them an asset preservation order
to preserve (the “Asset Preservation”) 38.54% of the equity
rights of Zhenjiang New Universe, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of NUET(JS) in the PRC, with effect from 18 March 2022 and,
unless extended, will last until the earlier of 17 March 2025
or until the Asset Preservation is lifted by the Court. Although
the Court handed down two civil judgements dated 4 January
2023 and 5 January 2023 in respect of the two Actions
respectively, both Plaintiffs did not admit to the judgements
of the Court and have each submitted a civil appeal both
dated 29 January 2023 to request for (i) the revocation of
the judgements of the Court; and (ii) NUET(JS) to bear the
respective judged costs of the Actions.

The civil appeals have been heard in the Jiangsu Province
High People’s Court in Mainland China and are pending
for judgement. As such Actions are still ongoing, the Asset
Preservations will continue to remain in effect and have been
extended by the Court to 12 March 2028.

The Group has already recognised the amounts being claimed
under the Actions as dividends payable to non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary under accrued liabilities and other
payables in the consolidated financial statements (note 29)
but no provision has been recognised for any interest claimed
under the Actions on those accumulative and rolling amounts
payable to the non-controlling interests without fixed terms of
payment.

As at 31 December 2024, the amounts accrued in the
consolidated financial statements for both Plaintiffs were
in aggregate of approximately HK$51,080,000 (2023:
HK$51,080,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. CONTINGENCIES (continued)

(b)

Environmental contingencies

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s
subsidiaries have provided regulated medical waste treatment
and disposal services to hospitals and medical clinics, and
provided hazardous industrial waste treatment services
and industrial sewage treatment and disposal services in
Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The related operations require
valid operating permission licences for processing specific
categories of hazardous waste and/or regulated medical
waste and industrial sewage treatment services issued by
the Environmental Protection Department of the Jiangsu
Province, the PRC. To the best knowledge of the Directors,
each of the Group's subsidiaries which carries out treatment
operations for hazardous industrial waste treatment and/
or regulated medical waste and industrial sewage treatment
services has complied with the relevant regulations to ensure
continuous renewal of the licences concerned with best
efforts, or otherwise, the subsidiary would cease its operations
temporarily until the relevant licence(s) is being issued. Save
as disclosed therein, for the year ended 31 December 2024
and up to the date of this report, the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC have not incurred significant expenditures for
environmental remediation and have not currently involved
in any significant environmental remediation. In addition, the
Company and the Group'’s subsidiaries in the PRC have not
accrued any amounts for environmental remediation relating
to its operations. Under existing legislations and regulations,
the management believes that there are no probable liabilities
that will have a material adverse effect to the financial position
or operating results of the Group.

Save as disclosed herein, there were no other significant contingent
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

46. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE

31 December 2024
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46. FAEHREREER

REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the Directors proposed a final
dividend. Details are disclosed in note 13(a).
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31 December 2024

47.

% ¥R MY E

“EE+ZA=1+—H

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2024

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of new or amended standards, which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2024 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 21

BRGFENE21HK 2R BRZ A

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

Lack of Exchangeability

ATEBZZ_FZ

Amendments to the Classification and

mE+—H
=+—HILEEEEBHEBE
MEERZIEET R EE]

BEARRBEZARZE

HEZSUBRENNERAR g5
MASEEMmZ BRG] RIS
BEYkREHE-_SE-_NE+=_B=+—
AtFEES BMAEZEVBRE
PIRM e ZEBRRBIFATAJREEARE
ERENAR -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BERRFER
ZEe gt

1 January 2025
—ZE-RHF-H—H

1 January 2026

BB 14 R A BOR
EB SRR RIBTR 2 54T

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards 2024

FEWBRE LS ER
“ECMEFENE

HKFRS 18
BB E AR 185

HKFRS 19
BB EREEAFE195%

Measurement of Financial Instruments
SRMTANERFTEZIEE]

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7
BRMBHREENF 1R - BEMBHHRE LA
L7 BAMBRELAER - FEM
BRELRZ10R BB G EAETRZ
CH)

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

B BmERT 25 S E

Subsidiaries without Public Accountability
BEANBEEM ZME QA

T RF—A—H

1 January 2026

—E-RF—A—H

1 January 2027
—E-+F—A—H

1 January 2027
T +F—-H—H

48.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors of the Company on 21 March 2025.
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